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We are proud 10 announce that for 2007, your Company earned
a record 54,612,000 a 12% increase over 2006, Shareholders’
equity increased by 7% to over $55 Million and our dividend pay
out increased from $.88 per share to .93 per share, a 6 % increase.

These results were achieved under the guidance of our fully
engaged Board of Directors and the efforts of a dedicated staff
who worked continuously toward making our company a place
where people want to do their business. We have successfully
worked toward improvements in all areas of our customer
experience which has made Fidelity Deposit and Discount Bank
the place where people can truly satisfy their financial needs.

Overall, 2007 turned out to be a tough vear for the banking
industry, One of our prime benchmarks, the interest rate
environment, has been extremely difficuli for banks as the spread
between short and long rates has been mostly flat, putting
unpredictable pressure on bank margins. Then in mid year, the
sub-prime mortgage problems began to surface nationally. Yet,
even with these issues, Fidelity's interest margins actually
increased slightly from 3.31% to 3.34%. We did not, and we won't,
make sub-prime mortgages.

Steven €. Ackmann, President & Chief Exccutive Officer



Notably, our deposits grew more than $15 million or 4% in
2007. Our total Assets ended at $587 million, another record for
us. We were pleased by a significant increase in Trust Assets and
by our Financial Services sales and revenues, with both areas
achieving new heights.

In May 2007, we opened our new Green Ridge office, a key part
of our continuing focus on the customer. The office was the
culmination of exhaustive efforts to identify the best concepts in
retail banking from around the country. Customers seem to
agree: since the office relocation, deposits grew by over 22%, and
we continue to get rave reviews about the facility, staff and the
positive banking experience. The grand opening this spring was
unique, attracting over 2,000 guests. Fidelity offered everything
from live music to pony rides, face painting, professional
document shredding and a grand prize cruise to Bermuda.
Designed from the customer's perspective, our new branch has
an open and friendly atmosphere. It includes a newly designed
first impression desk, an internet café, 24-hour “smart” ATM
machine and a conference room which can be used to meet with
our customers or for local community organizations, and free
coffee and cookies.

The theme of this year's report, Back to Basics, illustrates
Fidelity's commitment to bring our customers the paramount
in community banking service and professionalism, while
continuing to build value for our shareholders. We're focused on
developing a corporate culture anchored by a professional and
knowledgeable staff. By focusing on the details - how we look,
how a branch is organized, how a telephone is answered, how our
service personnel interact with the customer - we are creating the
right environment for our customers to entrust us with all of their
financial needs.

We invite you to stop in and see a thoroughly modern,
world-class branch at work, The coffee is on us!

WW

Patrick ). Dempsey, Chairman of the Board

wis? [

Steven C. Ackmann, President & Chief Executive Officer

L

Patrick ). Dempsey, Chairman of the Board
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FOR THE YEAR
Net Interest Income
Net Income

Cash Dividends

Return on Average Assets
Return on Average Equity
Net Interest Margin

PER SHARE

Net Income - Diluted
Cash Dividends
Book Value

weighted-Average Shares Outstanding

AT YEAR END
Assets
Earning Assets

Investment Securities
Total Loans, net
Depasits

Borrowings
Shareholders’ Equity

Shares Qutstanding at Year End

RATIOS
Net Loans to Deposits

Non-performing Assets to Total Assets

Equity to Assets
Tier | Risk Based Capital
Total Risk Based Capital

2007 2006 2005 2004 2003
Amount % Change Amount % Change Amount Amount Amount

$ 17,619.282 2.63%W $ 17,168,600 0.76% 3 17,259.27% $ 15215356 S 14,224,964
$ 4,611,572 11.79% § 4,125,283 -10.16% $ 4,591,697 § 3.364,474 $ 1,643,248
§ 1,921,533 6.67% $ 1,801,301 1090% § 1,624,263 $ 1,610,423 $ 1,601,898

0.80% 0.73% 0.86% 0.61% 0.29%

8.65% 8.31% 9.64% 7.51% 3.63%

3.34% 3.31% 3.51% 3.20% 2.74%
s 2.23 10.95% 1 2.01 -10.67% $ 2.25 b 1.67 s 0.82
$ 0.93 5.68% s 0.88 10.00% § 0.80 S 0.80 s 0.80
$ 26.62 G.10% 5 25.09 4.76% 5 23.95 $ 22.92 $ 21.9
2,066,683 0.91% 2,047,975 0.83% 2,031,211 2,013,798 2,002,443
§ 587,412,555 4.46% $ 562,317,988 3.36% $ 544,060,698 § 536,675,138 $ 575,215,466
$ 549,755,987 4.98% $ 523,682,180 4.22%  $502,480,130 $ 499,849,188 $ 535,579,648
$ 122,984,160 22.48% $ 100,410,736 2.80% $ 97,678,573 $ 115,668,818 $ 139,654,074
$ 422251629 1.18% $ 417,321,048 3.41%  $403,572,679 $ 382,122,753 § 386,845,217
$ 425,708,361 3.75% $ 410,334,595 2.13% $ 379,498,640 $ 365,615,335 $ 401,442,546
$ 102,365,031 6.42% $ 96,192,360 -14.48% $112477185 §121,653,234 $ 126,633,012
$ 55,191,294 6.94% § 51,611,863 5.66% 3 48,846,029 $ 46,366,760 $ 43,931,899
2,072,929 0.75% 2,057,433 0.87% 2,039,639 2,023,529 2,005,347

99.19% 101.70% 106.34% 104.51% 96.36%

0.67% 0.65% 1.78% 1.99% 1.52%

9.40% 9.18% 8.98% 8.64% 7.64%

12.53% 12.77% 11.99% 12.68% 11.61%

13.63% 14.04% 13.26% 13.91% 12.88%

v,
DEPOSIT & INSCOUNT Member FIHC
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Board of Directors

Mr, Patrick ). Dempsey is
Chairman of the Board. He
is also Chairman of the
Board of Dempseay Uniform
& Linen Supply, Inc. Mr.
Dempsey has been a
member of the Bank Board
since 1985 and the
Company Board

since 1999,

e
T
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Mr. John T. Cognetti is
Secretary of the Board of
Directors. He is President
of Hinerfeld Realty, Co. Mr.
Cognetti joined the Bank
Board in 1988 and the
Company Board in 1999,

=

Mr. Steven C. Ackmann
joined the Bank and
Company in July 2004

as President and Chief
Executive Officer. Mr.
Ackmann has been a
member of the Bank Board
since July 2004 and the
Company board since
August 2007,

Mr. David L Tressler, Sr.
is a businessman with
extensive banking
expertise, He is a
consultant with The
Quandel Group, Inc. Mr.
Tressler joined the Bank
Board in 1998 and the
Company Board in 1999,

Mr. Samuel C. Cali serves

as Chairman Emeritus. Mr.

Cali joined the Bank Board
in 1958 and the Company
Board in 1999. He is a

retired business executive.

Mrs. Mary E. McDonald is
Assistant Secretary of the
Board of Directors. Mrs.
McDcnald is a retired
educator with substantial
business experience. Mrs.
McDonald joined the Bank
and Company Board

in 2000.

Mr. Michael J. McDonald
is Vice Chairman of the
Board, Mr. McDonald is a
partner with the law firm
of Foley, McLane, Foley,
McDonald and MacGregor,
P.C. Mr. McDonald has
been a member of the
Bank Board since 1994
and the Company

Board since 1999,

Mr. Brian }. Cali maintains
a private law practice. Mr.
Cali joined the Bank and
Company Board

in 2001.

Back 1o Basics...

2007 ANNUAL REPORT




Good lLeadersiip

Leadership is showing the way, building potential, and raising
people's standards higher than they ever thought possible. Qur
focus on the details, the blocking and tackling and the execution
of ideas, has helped us to have some tremendous successes
this year. An increase in asset size, deposits, loans, trust and
investment assets under management, has helped your Bank to
realize its most profitable year in its 104 year history.

We continue 1o see deposits increase steadily. Both our Retail
and Commercial deposits grew by 6% in 2007, highlighting a
continued effort to become the primary bank of our customers and
to grow our core customer relationships. Much of the growth in
deposits was fueled by a 29% increase in the number of checking
accounts opened for the year and by our attractive Money
Market product.

Besides the growth in net interest income, other key elements to
our success include deposit fee income and a continuing effort to
improve the credit quality of our loan portfolio. Loan losses have
also decreased significantly over the past four years, adding to the
profitability of the Bank.

From left to right:
Daniel J. Santaniello, Executive Vice President
& Chief Operating Officer
Salvatore R. DeFrancesco, Jr, CPA, Executive Vice President
& Chief Financial Officer
Steven C. Ackmann, President & Chief Executive Officer
Timothy P. O'Brien, Executive Vice President
& Chief Commercial Banking Qfficer

Leading the charge on the retail side is Dan Santaniello,
Executive Vice President and Chief Operating Officer. He's built a
team that focuses unwavering attention to hiring and training our
staff to be trusted financial advisors. This manifests itself by
making good hiring choices, upgrading skill sets with training,
creating preducts to enhance each lifestage of our customer. We
also focused on how the branch looks, how we interact with our
customers, and professional dress. These are just same of the
small steps that when combined, are helping to refocus attention
on the Fidelity brand promise,

Our Commercial Division has done an excellent job of
continuing to increase the guality of our loan portfolio. Our new
Chief Commercial Banking Officer, Timothy O'Brien, has already
started creating initiatives 1o increase the effectiveness of our sales
staff, building a sales culture that will help our commercial and
business bankers become trusted advisors to their customers,
not just lenders.

k‘e fo &6;65...
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Trested Advisors
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Highlighting our staff is an important component to our marketing initiatives, creating awareness of our expertise, putting a face to the name,
and helping our customer fulfill their dreams. Our managers frank Cimino, MaryLou Janeski, and Ellen Kanton are highlighted during a

recent loan promotion.

As Aristotle eloquently said, “We are what we repeatedly do.
Excellence, then, is not an act, but a habit.” Qur employees are our
competitive edge! They are the touchpoint where a relationship
with a customer prospers or fails. Because of this, we're building a
culture that continually encourages and expects the very best
customer interactions from our employees. We've outlined our
model Customer Experience and have set forth a series of
expectations for each employee. In addition, we've provided
training that helps them identify the right products for the
customer, how to have a meaningful and insightful sales
conversation about the true needs of the customer, and how to
coach and mentor for success. This is an on-going positive process,
one that we will build upon year after year.

Focusing on the basics has also led in the direction of branch
appearance and “dressing for success”. We've made sure that the
branches are clean and conducive to insightful and meaningful

financial conversations. We created a professional atmosphere
where distractions have been minimized.

The final manifestation came in the introduction of a dress code.
Now all of our retail staff are easily identified by their attire and can
easily be spotted through a sea of customers. Managers and
Customer Service Representatives are all in blue and black suits,
while tellers are in dress shirts embroidered with Fidelity
Bank's name. The customers reaction te our dress code was
enthusiasm and delight, making the initiative a resounding success.

All of these items are geared towards helping our employees feel
good about their environment and employment. It is important that
the customer can depend on the advice given by our staff - their
trusted financial advisors. All of these small steps add up to a long
journey towards a complete and delightful customer experience for
all our customers.
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WEST SCRANTON BRANCH GROUND BREAKING

GREEN RIDGE BRANCH GRAND OPENING

Ofedelity Bank
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CHOICE BANKING

Qur goal is to build long-term sustainable relationships with our
customers. To do that, we need to make sure that we are adding
value to every product and service we offer, that we become our
customers trusted financial advisor, and we help our customers
identify the financial needs they have throughout their lives.

Research tells us that most people have accounts at three or
more financial institutions. The reasons are many, but it's mostly
because there's nothing encouraging the customer to create a
deep relationship with their Bank. We want to create such a deep
and abiding relationship with our customer that they wouldn’t even
consider using another financial institution. By creating products
that provide an incentive to a customer for broadening and
deepening their relationship, we've stated clearly that loyal
customers who consolidate their financial relationship with us will
be rewarded. The introduction of our Cheice Banking relationship
packages in May 2007 is the culmination of months of work to
determine just the right combination of products and services that
would appeal to our customers.

But building a relationship is more than just the products and
sarvices offered. Qur employees are chosen with the greatest care,
to build a workforce capable of providing trusted financial advice
to all our customers. Training our staff to listen to the needs of
our customers and provide expert advice is key to making this
partnership work.

William McAndrew, Vice President & Financial Services Manager with
Fidelity Asset Management, leads a discussion on retirement planning.
The Fidelity Asset Management group contributed greatly to the success
of the Bank in 2007 by creating an additional means to solidify
relationships with our customers.

Diane Fonner, Assistant Vice President
& Corporate Trust Officer

We celebrated a milestone this year, as our Trust
Department celebrated neot only its 10th anniversary, but
also its most successful year ever. This year, personal trust
experienced their highest growth of assets under management.
Throughout the years, we have served our customers with both
personal and corporate trust services, including revocable and
irrevocable trust relationships in the form of living trusts,
testamentary trusts, life insurance trusts, special needs trusts,
investment agency accounts, guardianships, estate administration
acting as executor or administrator, Individual Retirement
Accounts, 4071(k) plans, paying agent and transfer agent services,
and cash management.

Diane Fonner joined our team as Corporate Trust Officer, to
caontinue to serve and grow our relationships with school districts
and municipalities.

M fo B@SI.C\S...
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Presenting a professional look to our customers is an important basic
component of our customer experience. All Managers and Customer
Service Representatives are required to dress in blue or black suits, while
tellers are required to wear white shirts embroidered with the Fidelity Bank
logo or blue or black suits,

From left to right, front row:
Jennifer Kimes, Teller

Jody Lewis, Assistant Vice President, Retail Branch Manager - Moosic \:c
Sonie Hendricks, Teller

From left to right, back row:

Lisa Moreltli, Teller

Mary Sabol, Customer Service Representative

Brad Green, Teller

Anthony Merritt, Teller

Suzette Besciglia, Retail Branch Manager - Keystone Industrial Park
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RETOOLED AND RE-EQUIPPED BRANCHES

In early May, we opened our newly built Green Ridge branch, replacing an older,
in-line mall office. During our June Grand Opening celebration featuring a “Family Fun
Day” theme, we attracted over 2,000 people to our branch. Most importantly, during
those two days, we opened a number of new accounts, made a tremendous number
of new friends, and re-positioned Fidelity in the marketplace. Qur new branch is
comfortable, inviting, and a resounding success, with a growth in deposits of 22% and
a growth in household relationships of 32% since the relocation.

Our West Scranton branch is slated to open early in the third quarter of 2008, with
a building design that gets noticed. Built to inform and provide the ultimate in
customer experience, the new branch has a comfortable, open area with a reference
section to help our customers gain insight into new and additional product information
on topics such as mortgages and retirement accounts. A special children’s area is
designed as a comfortable retreat for the kids when mom or dad are concentrating on
banking. Within this branch office, customers wili come to find a comfortable seating
area to relax, read the paper, and surf the net, while enjoying freshly brewed coffee
from the adjacent coffee shop.

To help our customers access their money faster, as well as to continue to improve
our efficiency, we introduced Back Counter Capture, which allows our tellers to process
deposits quickly, easily and more efficiently. This new technology lets our Branches
accept same day depaosits through the actual end of a business day and to have them
processed through our national check ctearing system in record time.

‘- - 1
Green Ridge branch interior
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From left to right:
Mary Pierre, Mecrtgage Underwriter
Melissa Sadaka, Mortgage Underwriter
Sharon Silvon, Mortgage Underwriter
Brian Rinaldi, Mortgage Consultant
Paul Arvay, Mortgage Consultant
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Catherine A. Langan, Assistant Vice Presidemt & Mortgage Consultant
Bonnie Baker, Assistant Vice President & Residential Mortgage Manager

Commernty

Doing what's right for our community is a natural extension of
doing what's right for our customers. In 2007, our employees
generously gave their time to many different organizations inctuding
non-profits, service organizations, and economic development
groups. Hundreds of hours of time have been donated to groups such
as the Boy Scouts, Kiwanis, American Heart Association, Regional
Cancer Institute, YMCA, Chambers of Commerce, United Way, local
Little Leagues and other children’s groups, Dress for Success, Rotary,
and more.

As a Community Bank, it is very important that we continue to not
only be a good corporate citizen, but a good neighbor as well. Many
of you have heard of the sub-prime real estate crisis. The Bank has

taken its role as good corporate citizen seriously, and made a
conscious decision not to participate in that form of lending. Doing
so would not be good for our customers, our sharehoiders, or
our community.

Our Mortgage Department, led by Bonnie Baker, is very careful that
we extend only the amount of credit that a customer can reasonably
afford. Qur Mortgage Consultants, Paul Arvay, Catherine A. Langan,
and Brian Rinaidi, are well-versed in explaining all the different types
of mortgage products available, determining the needs of the
customer, and providing information so that the customer can make
an intelligent decision about their home purchase.
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Trvestor Kelalions

FIDELITY D & D BANCORP, INC.

Blakely and Drinker Streeis
Dunmore, PA 18512
(570} 342-8281

WE ARE A PUBLIC COMPANY WHOSE STOCK IS TRADED ON THE

OVER THE COUNTER BULLETIN BOARD (OTCBB) UNDER THE SYMBOL FDBC.

REGISTRAR AND TRANSFER AGENT

Shareholders services provided
= Stock transfer

= Dividend reinvestment plan

s Direct deposit of dividends

» Duplicate mailing notification

REGISTRAR AND TRANSFER COMPANY

Attn: Investor Relations
10 Commerce Drive
Cranford, NJ 07016-3572
(800) 368-5948
info@rico.com
www.rtco.com

SHAREHOLDER/INVESTOR INQUIRIES
Requests for information or assistance regarcing Fidelity D & D Bancorp, Inc. stock should be directed to
Ms. Barhara Shimkus in our Investor Relations Department at {570) 348-4357 or invesior@fddbank.com

MARKET MAKERS

The following firms are believed to presently make a market in Fidelity D & D Bancorp, Inc. stock on the OTCBB

Automated Trading Desk
Financial Services, LLC
(843) 785-2000

11 eWall Street

Mount Pleasant, SC 29464

Boenning & Scattergood, Inc.
(610) 8321212

Four Tower Bridge

200 Barr Harbor Drive, Suite 300
West Conshohocken, PA 19428

Ferris, Baker Watts, Incarporated
(410) 685-2600

100 Lighi Street

Ninth Floor

Baltimare, MD 21202

Hill, Thompson, Magid & Co., Inc.

(201) 434-6900

15 Exchange Place
Suite 800

Jersey City, NJ 07302

Knight Equity Markets, L.P.
(201) 557-6844

545 Washington Boulevard
Jersey City, N) 07310

Monroe Securities, Inc.
(312} 327-2530

100 North Riverside Plaza
Suite 1620

Chicago, IL 60608

Back o Basics...
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Pershing, LLC

{201) 413-2930

One Pershing Plaza
Eighth Floor

Jersey City, NJ] 07399

Ryan Beck & Co,, Inc.
(973) 597-6000

18 Columbia Turnpike
First Floor

Flarham Park, NJ 07932

UBS Securities LLC

(203) 719-7448

677 Washington Boulevard
Sixth Floor

Stamford, CT 06901
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Branches and ATMs

Childs e

LACKAWANNA Eynon e
COUNTY Peckville
Dunmore

e Clarks Summit
s Scranton

* Moosic

Pittston »
West Pittston ¢

Kingston

BRANCH AND
ATM LOCATIONS
Abington Office

1311 Morgan Highway
Clarks Summit, PA 18411
570-586-3212

Downtown Scranton
139 Wyoming Avenue
Scranton, PA 18503
570-344-4994

Eynon Office

511 Scranton-Carbondale Highway
Eynon, PA 18403

570-521-5000

Fidelity Financial Center
338 N. Washington Avenue
Scranton, PA 18503
570-504-8001

Green Ridge Plaza
111 Green Ridge 5t.
Scranton, PA 18509
570-342-5532

Keystone Industrial Park

1232 Keystone Industrial Park Road
Dunmore, PA 18512

570-348-4003

Kingston Office

247 Wyoming Avenue
Kingston, PA 18704
570-338-0119

Main Office

Blakely & Drinker Streets
Dunmore, PA 18512
570-342-8281

LUZERNE
COUNTY

Moosic Office
4010 Birney Avenue
Moosic, PA 18507
570-504-0789

Peckville Office
1598 Main Street
Peckville, PA 18452
570-483-3300

Pittston Office

403 Kennedy Boulevard
Pittston, PA 18640
570-883-7339

West Pittston Office
801 Wyoming Avenue
West Pittston, PA 18643

570-908-0103

ATM ONLY LOCATIONS
Convenient Food Mart

100 RHighland Avenue

Clarks Summit, PA 18411

Marywood University
Nazareth Hall
Scranton, PA 18509

Snd Mountain Ski Lodge
1000 Montage Mountain Road
Moosic, PA 18507

T's Corner News
1000 Providence Road
Scranton, PA 18508

The Ice Box
3 West Olive Street
Scranton, PA 18508

The Shoppes at Montage
1035 Shoppes Blvd.
Moosic, PA 18507

U.S. Mini Marts
511 Main Street
Childs, PA 18407

TRUST DEPARTMENT
Personal and Corporate Trust,
Estate Administration and
Investment Services

Main Office

Blakely & Drinker Streets
Dunmore, PA 18512
570-504-2244

FIDELITY ASSET
MANAGEMENT
Full Brokerage and
Insurance Services

Main Office

Blakely & Drinker Streets
Dunmare, PA 18512
570-504-2206

CUSTOMER CARE
CENTER
570-342-8281
800-388-4380
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‘@ 2007 ANNUAL REPORT




Directors, OFficers, & SaperV:'S ors

FIDELITY D & D BANCORP, INC. BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND OFFICERS

DIRECTORS

Samuel C. Cali, Chairman Emeritus

Patrick . Dempsey, Chairman of the Board

Michael }. McDonald, Vice Chairman

John T. Cognetti, Secretary of the Board

Mary E. McDonald, Assistant Secretary cf the Board
Brian ). Cali, Esq.

David L. Tressler, Sr.

Steven C. Ackmann, President & Chief Executive Officer

OFFICERS
Steven C. Ackmann, President & Chief Executive Officer
Daniel J. Santaniello, Vice President & Chief Operating Officer
salvatore R. DeFrancesco, Jr., CPA, Treasurer & Chief Financial Officer
Barbara Shimkus, Assistant Secretary to the Board

& Investor Relations Officer
Diane Davis, Assistant Secretary to the Board

FIDELITY DEPOSIT DISCOUNT BANK OFFICERS AND STAFF

EXECUTIVE MANAGEMENT
Steven C. Ackmann, President & Chief Executive Officer
Daniel J. Santaniello, Executive Vice President & Chief Operating Officer
Salvatore R. DeFrancesco, Jr., CPA, Executive Vice President
& Chief Financial Officer
Timothy P. Q'Brien, Executive Vice President
& Chief Commercial Banking Officer
John T. Piszak, Senior Vice President & Chief Risk Officer

FINANCIAL DIVISION

Robert Farrell, Vice President & Cashier and Contraller
Alexander T. Behr, Vice President & Financial Analyst
Mary Ann Coviello, Account Services Manager

RETAIL BANKING DIVISION

Michelle Carr, Vice President & Regional Retail Banking Manager

Donna Gizenski, Vice President & Regional Retail Banking Manager

Frances Banick, Assistant Vice President, Assistant Secretary to the
Board & Customer Service Specialist

Maryann Ellefsen, Assistant Vice President & Retail Services Manager

Catherine A. Langan, Assistant Vice President & Mortgage Consultant

Jody Lewis, Assistant Vice President & Retail Branch Manager- Moosic

Victoria Randis, Assistant Vice President & Consumer Loan Manager

Bonnie Baker, Assistant Vice President & Residential Mortgage Manager

Suzette Besciglia, Retail Branch Manager - Keystone Industrial Park

Jacqueline Castellani, Retail Branch Manager - Financial Center

Frank Cimino, Retail Branch Manager - Kingston

Susan Colborn, Retzil Branch Manager - Peckville

MarylLou Janeski, Retail Branch Manager - Scranton

Ellen Kanton, Retail Branch Manager - Abington

Dina Scavone, Retail Branch Manager - Pittston / West Fittston

Karen Sweeney, Retail Branch Manager - Dunmaore

Christine Valvano, Retail Branch Manager - Green Ridge

Maureen Williamson, Retail Branch Manager - West Scranton

Richard Healey, Customer Care Center Manager

Margaret Dermody, Consumer Loan Specialist

Paul Arvay, Mortgage Consultant

Brian Rinaldi, Mortgage Consultant

TRUST

Mary McNichols, Vice President & Trust Officer

Diane Fonner, Assistant Vice President & Corporate Trust Officer
virginia Kielar, Trust Operations Manager

FIDELITY ASSET MANAGEMENT

william McAndrew, Vice President & Financial Services Manager

COMMERCIAL BANKING DIVISION

James T. Gorman, Executive Vice President & Market Manager, Luzerne County
Francis Crowley, Senior Vice President & Commerciai Banking Officer
John Ferrett, Senior Vice President & Commercial Banking Officer

John Keeler, Senior Vice President & Government Banking Officer
Thomas Zabresky, Senior Vice President & Commercial Banking Officer
John Cantarelia, Vice President & Small Business Sales Manager
Marilyn Skettino, Vice President & Small Business Banking Manager
Rosalia Strausser, Vice President & Business Banking Officer

Harold Wesley, Assistant Vice President & Business Banking Officer
Kathleen Fimlin, Business Banking Officer

Doreen Calpin, Cash Management Officer

RISK MANAGEMENT DIVISION
John Corcoran, Vice President & Resource Recovery Manager
Thomas Caswell, Assistant Vice President & Credit Analysis Supervisor
Laura Rivezzi, Assistant Vice President & Security Cfficer
Darlene Roberts, Assistant Vice President, Compliance Officer
& Bank Secrecy Act Officer
Richard Strauss, Assistant Vice President & Lozn Workout Officer
Robert Siarniak, Assistant Vice President & Collections Manager
Mary Alice Washko, Credit Administrator

SUPPORT SERVICES
Theresa Ferraro, Vice President & Human Resources Manager
Nadine Marranca, Vice President & Senier Banking Operations Officer
Joann Marsili, Vice President & Marketing Director
Yvonne DelRosso, Assistant Vice President

& Information Technology Manager
Maureen Polster, Assistant Vice President & Loan Operations Officer
Barbara Shimkus, Assistant Vice President & Executive Secretary
Sharon Vanleuven, Assistant Vice President & Data Processing Manager
Denise Bernier, Electronic Banking Manager
Elizabeth Loughney, Deposit Operations Manager
Elaine Motichka, Loan Qperations Specialist
Beth Munson, Imaging Supervisor
George Yakubisin, Facilities Manager
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UNITED STATES
SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION

WASHINGTON, D.C. 20549

FORM 10-K

X] ANNUAL REPORT UNDER SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECPRITIBSeceived SEC
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FIDELITY D & D BANCORP, INC.

PART I

ITEM 1:  BUSINESS

Fidelity D & D Bancorp, Inc. (the Company) was incorporated in the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania, on August 10, 1999,
and is a bank holding company, whose wholly-owned state chartered commercial bank is The Fidelity Deposit and Discount
Bank (the Bank) (collectively, the Company). The Company is headquartered at Blakely and Drinker Streets in Dunmore,
Pennsylvania.

The Bank has offered a full range of traditional banking services since it commenced operations in 1903. The Bank has a
personal and corporate trust department and also provides alternative financial and insurance products with asset management
services. A complete list of services provided by the Bank is detailed in the section entitled “Products and Services”
contained within the 2007 Annual Report to Shareholders, incorporated by reference. The service area is comprised of the
Borough of Dunmore and the surrounding communities within Lackawanna and Luzerne counties.

The banking business is highly competitive, and the profitability of the Company depends principally upon the Company’s
ability to compete in its market area. The Company competes with, among other sources, the following:

* local community banks = insurance companies

®  savings banks *  money market funds

*  regional banks *  mutual funds

s credit unions *  small loan companies

= savings & loans * other financial service companies

The Company has been able to compete effectively with other financial institutions by emphasizing technology and customer
service, including local decision making on loans. These efforts enabled the Bank to establish long-term customer
relationships and build customer loyalty by providing products and services designed to address the specific needs of its
customers.

There are no concentrations of loans that, if lost, would have a materially adverse effect on the continued business of the
Bank. The Bank’s loan portfolio does not have a material concentration within a single industry or group of related
industries that are vulnerable to the risk of a near-term severe impact. However, the Company’s success is dependent, to a
significant degree, on economic conditions in Northeastern Pennsylvania, especially in Lackawanna and Luzerne counties,
which the Company defines as its primary market area. The banking industry is affected by general economic conditions
including the effects of inflation, recession, unemployment, real estate values, trends in nationai and global economies and
other factors beyond the Company’s control. An economic recession or a delayed economic recovery over a prolonged
period of time in the Company’s primary market area could cause an increase in the level of the Bank’s non-performing
assets and loan losses, and thereby cause operating losses, impairment of liquidity and erosion of capital. We cannot assure
you that adverse changes in the local economy would not have a material effect on the Company’s future consolidated
financial condition, results of operations and cash flows,

The Company had 188 full-time equivalent employees on December 31, 2007, which includes exempt officers and part-time
employees.

Federal and state banking laws contain numerous provisions that affect various aspects of the business and operations of the
Company and the Bank. The Company is subject to, among others, the regulations of the Securities and Exchange
Commission {the SEC) and the Federal Reserve Board (the FRB) and the Bank is subject to, among others, the regulations of
the Pennsylvania Department of Banking and the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (the FDIC). Refer to Part 11, ltem 7
“Supervision and Regulation” for descriptions of and references to applicable statutes and regulations which are not intended
1o be complete descriptions of these provisions or their effects on the Company or the Bank. They are summaries only and




are qualified in their entirety by reference to such statutes and regulations. Applicable regulations relate to, among other
things:

*  operations consclidation

= securities " reserves

*  risk management = dividends

»  consumer compliance »  branches

*  mergers = capital adequacy

Annually, the Bank is examined by the Pennsylvania Department of Banking and/or the FDIC. The last examination was
conducted by the FDIC as of December 31, 2006. During the preparation and prior to the filing of this Form 10-K, the Bank
was in the process of being examined by the Pennsylvania Department of Banking as of December 31, 2007.

The Company’s website address is hitp://www bankatfidelity.com. The Company makes available through this website the
annual reports on Form 10-K, quarterly reports on Form 10-Q and current reports on Form 8-K and amendments to those
reports as soon as reasonably practical after filing with the SEC. You may read and copy any materials filed with the SEC at
the SEC’s Public Reference Room at 100 F Street, NE, Washington, DC 20549. You may obtain information on the
operation of the Public Reference Room by calling the SEC at (202) 551-8090. The SEC also maintains an internet site that
contains reports, proxy and information statements and other information about the Company at hitp://www.sec.gov.

The Company’s accounting policies and procedures are designed to comply with accounting principles generally accepted in
the United States of America (GAAP). Refer to “Critical Accounting Policies,” which are incorporated by reference in Part
I, Item 7.

ITEM 14: RISK FACTORS

An investment in the Company’s common stock is subject to risks inherent to the Company’s business. The material risks
and uncertainties that management believes affect the Company are described below. Before making an investment decision,
you should carefully consider the risks and uncertainties described below together with ail of the other information included
or incorporated by reference in this report. The risks and uncertainties described below are not the onty ones facing the
Company. Additional risks and uncertainties that management is not aware of or focused on or that management currently
deems immaterial may also impair the Company’s business operations. This report is qualified in its entirety by these risk
factors.

If any of the following risks actually occur, the Company’s financial condition and results of operations could be materially
and adversely affected. Ifthis were to happen, the value of the Company’s common stock could decline significantly, and
you could lose all or part of your investment,

Risks Related to the Company’s Business

The Company s business is subject to interest rate risk and variations in interest rates may negatively affect its financial
performance.

Changes in the interest rate environment may reduce profits. The Company’s earnings and cash flows are largely dependent
upon its net interest income. Net interest income is the difference between the interest earned on loans, securities and other
interest-eaming assets, and interest paid on deposits, borrowings and other interest-bearing liabilities. As prevailing interest
rates change, net interest spreads are affected by the difference between the maturities and re-pricing characteristics of
interest-earning assets and interest-bearing liabilities. In addition, loan volume and yields are affected by market interest
rates on loans, and rising interest rates generally are associated with a lower volume of loan originations. An increase in the
general level of interest rates may also adversely affect the ability of certain borrowers to pay the interest on and principal of
their obligations. Accordingly, changes in levels of market interest rates could materially adversely affect the Company’s net
interest spread, asset quality, loan origination volume and overall profitability.




The Company is subject to lending risk.

There are inherent risks associated with the Company’s lending activities. These risks include, among other things, the
impact of changes in interest rates and changes in the economic conditions in the markets where the Company operates as
well as those across the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania and the United States. Increases in interest rates and/or weakening
economic conditions could adversely impact the ability of borrowers to repay outstanding loans or the value of the collateral
securing these loans. The Company is also subject to various laws and regulations that affect its lending activities. Failure to
comply with applicable laws and regulations could subject the Company to regulatory enforcement action that could result in
the assessment of significant civil money penalties against the Company.

As of December 31, 2007, approximately 51% of the Company’s loan portfolio consisted of commercial, commercial real
estate and real estate construction loans. These types of loans are generally viewed as having more risk of default than
residential real estate loans or consumer loans. These types of loans are also typically larger than residential real estate loans
and consumer loans. Because the Company’s loan portfolio contains a significant number of commercial, commercial real
estate and construction loans with relatively large balances, the deterioration of one or a few of these loans could cause a
significant increase in non-petforming loans, An increase in non-performing loans could result in a net loss of earnings from
these loans, an increase in the provision for possible loan losses and an increase in loan charge-offs, all of which could have a
material adverse effect on the Company’s financial condition and results of operations.

The Company’s allowance for possible loan losses may be insufficient.

The Company maintains an allowance for possible loan losses, which is a reserve established through a provision for possible
loan losses charged to expense, that represents management’s best estimate of probable losses that have been incurred within
the existing portfolio of loans. The allowance, in the judgment of management, is necessary to reserve for estimated loan
losses and risks inherent in the loan portfolio. The level of the allowance reflects management’s continuing evaluation of
industry concentrations; specific credit risks; loan loss experience; current loan portfolio quality; present economic, political
and regulatory conditions and unidentified losses inherent in the current loan portfolio. The determination of the appropriate
level of the allowance for possible loan losses inherently involves a high degree of subjectivity and requires the Company to
make significant estimates of current credit risks and future trends, all of which may undergo material changes. Changes in
economic conditions affecting borrowers, new information regarding existing loans, identification of additional problem
loans and other factors, both within and outside of the Company’s control, may require an increase in the allowance for
possible loan losses. In addition, bank regulatory agencies periodically review the Company’s allowance for loan losses and
may require an increase in the provision for possible loan losses or the recognition of further loan charge-offs, based on
judgments different than those of management. In addition, if charge-offs in future periods exceed the allowance for possible
loan losses, the Company will need additional provisions to increase the allowance for possible loan losses. Any increases in
the allowance for loan losses will result in a decrease in net income and capital and may have a material adverse effect on the
Company’s financial condition and results of operations.

The Company is subject to environmental liability risk associated with lending activities.

A significant portion of the Company’s loan portfolio is secured by real property. During the ordinary course of business, the
Company may foreclose on and take title to properties securing certain loans. In doing so, there is a risk that hazardous or
toxic substances could be found on these properties. If hazardous or toxic substances are found, the Company may be liable
for remediation costs, as well as for personal injury and property damage. Environmental laws may require the Company to
incur substantial expenses and may materially reduce the affected property’s value or limit the Company’s ability to use or
sell the affected property. In addition, future laws or more stringent interpretations or enforcement policies with respect to
existing laws may increase the Company's exposure to environmental liability. Although the Company has policies and
procedures to perform an environmental review before initiating any foreclosure action on real property, these reviews may
not be sufficient to detect all potential environmental hazards. The remediation costs and any other financial liabilities
associated with an environmental hazard could have a material adverse effect on the Company’s financial condition and
results of operations.

The Company’s profitability depends significantly on economic conditions in the Commonwealth of Pennsyivania and the
local region in which it conducts business.

The Company’s success depends primarily on the general economic conditions of the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania and
the specific local markets in which the Company operates. Unlike larger national or other regional banks that are more
geographically diversified, the Company provides banking and financial services to customers primarily in Lackawanna and
Luzerne Counties. The local economic conditions in these areas have a significant impact on the demand for the Company’s




products and services as well as the ability of the Company’s customers to repay loans, the value of the collateral securing
loans and the stability of the Company’s deposit funding sources. A significant decline in general economic conditions,
caused by inflation, recession, acts of tetrorism, an outbreak of hostilities or other international or domestic occurrences,
unemployment, changes in securities markets or other factors could impact these local economic conditions and, in turn, have
a material adverse effect on the Company’s financial condition and results of operations.

There is no assurance that the Company will be able to successfully compete with others for business.

The Company competes for loans, deposits and investment dollars with numerous regional and national banks and other
community banking institutions, as well as other kinds of financial institutions and enterprises, such as securities firms,
insurance companies, savings associations, credit unions, mortgage brokers and private lenders. Many competitors have
substantially greater resources than the Company does, and operate under less stringent regulatory environments. The
differences in resources and regulations may make it more difficult for the Company to compete profitably, reduce the rates
that it can earn on loans and investments, increase the rates it must offer on deposits and other funds, and adversely affect its
overall financial condition and earnings.

The Company is subject to extensive government regulation and supervision.

The Company, primarily through the Bank, is subject to extensive federal and state regulation and supervision. Banking
regulations are primarily intended to protect depositors’ funds, federal deposit insurance funds and the banking system as a
whole, not shareholders. These regulations affect the Company’s lending practices, capital structure, investment practices,
dividend policy and growth, among other things. Federal or commonwealth regulatory agencies continually review banking
laws, regulations and policies for possible changes. Changes to statutes, regulations or regulatory policies, including changes
in interpretation or implementation of statutes, regulations or policies, could affect the Company in substantial and
unpredictable ways. Such changes could subject the Company to additional costs, limit the types of financial services and
products the Company may offer and/or increase the ability of non-banks to offer competing financial services and products,
among other things. Failure to comply with laws, regulations or policies could result in sanctions by regulatory agencies,
civil money penalties and/or reputation damage, which could have a material adverse effect on the Company’s business,
financial condition and results of operations. While the Company has policies and procedures designed to prevent any such
violations, there can be no assurance that such violations will not occur.

The Company’s controls and procedures may fail or be circumvented.

Management regularly reviews and updates the Company’s internal controls, disclosure controls and procedures, and
corporate governance policies and procedures. Any system of controls, however well designed and operated, is based in part
on certain assumptions and can provide only reasonable, not absolute, assurances that the objectives of the system are met.
Any failure or circumvention of the Company’s controls and procedures or failure to comply with regulations related to
controls and procedures could have a material adverse effect on the Company’s business, results of operations and financial
condition.

New lines of business or new products and services may subject the Company to additional risks.

From time-to-time, the Company may implement new lines of business or offer new products and services within existing
lines of business. There are substantial risks and uncertainties associated with these efforts, particularly in instances where
the markets are not fully developed. In developing and marketing new lines of business and/or new products and services the
Company may invest significant time and resources. Initial timetables for the introduction and development of new lines of
business and/or new products or services may not be achieved and price and profitability targets may not prove feasible.
External factors, such as compliance with regulations, competitive alternatives, and shifting market preferences, may also
impact the successful implementation of a new line of business or a new product or service. Furthermore, any new line of
business and/or new product or service could have a significant impact on the effectiveness of the Company’s system of
internal controls. Failure to successfully manage these risks in the development and implementation of new lines of business
or new products or services could have a material adverse effect on the Company’s business, resuits of operations and
financial condition.




The Company's ability to pay dividends depends primarily on dividends from its banking subsidiary, which is subject to
regulatory limits.

The Company is a bank holding company and its operations are conducted by its subsidiary. Its ability to pay dividends
depends on its receipt of dividends from its subsidiary. Dividend payments from its banking subsidiary are subject to legal
and regulatory limitations, generally based on net profits and retained earnings, imposed by the various banking regulatory
agencies. The ability of its subsidiary to pay dividends is also subject to its profitability, financial condition, capital
expenditures and other cash flow requirements. There is no assurance that its subsidiary will be able to pay dividends in the
future or that the Company will generate adequate cash flow to pay dividends in the future. The Company’s failure to pay
dividends on its common stock could have a material adverse effect on the market price of its common stock.

The Company’s future acquisitions could dilute your ownership and may cause it to become more susceptible to adverse
economic events.

The Company may use its commton stock to acquire other companies or make investments in banks and other complementary
businesses in the future. The Company may issue additional shares of common stock to pay for future acquisitions, which
would dilute your ownership interest in the Company. Future business acquisitions could be material to the Company, and
the degree of success achieved in acquiring and integrating these businesses into the Company could have a material effect on
the value of the Company’s common stock. In addition, any acquisition could require it to use substantial cash or other liquid
assets or to incur debt, In those events, it could become more susceptible to economic downturns and competitive pressures.

The Company may not be able to attract and retain skilled people.

The Company’s success depends, in large part, on its ability to attract and retain key people. Competition for the best people
in most activities engaged in by the Company can be intense and the Company may not be able to hire people or to retain
them, The unexpected loss of services of one or more of the Company’s key personnel could have a material adverse impact
on the Company’s business because of their skills, knowledge of the Company’s market, years of industry experience and the
difficulty of promptly finding qualified replacement personnel. The Company has an employment agreement with its
President and Chief Executive Officer.

The Company s information systems may experience an interruption or breach in security.

The Company relies heavily on communications and information systems to conduct its business. Any failure, interruption
or breach in security of these systems could result in failures or disruptions in the Company’s customer relationship
management, general ledger, deposit, loan and other systems. While the Company has policies and procedures designed to
prevent or limit the effect of the failure, interruption or security breach of its information systems, there can be no assurance
that any such failures, interruptions or security breaches will not occur or, if they do occur, that they will be adequately
addressed. The occurrence of any failures, interruptions or security breaches of the Company’s information systems could
damage the Company’s reputation, result in a loss of customer business, subject the Company to additional regulatory
scrutiny, or expose the Company to civil litigation and possible financial liability, any of which could have a material adverse
effect on the Company's financial condition and results of operations.

The Company continually encounters rechnological change.

The financial services industry is continually undergoing rapid technological change with frequent introductions of new
technology-driven products and services. The effective use of technology increases efficiency and enables financial
institutions to better serve customers and to reduce costs, The Company’s future success depends, in part, upon its ability to
address the needs of its customers by using technology to provide products and services that will satisfy customer demands,
as well as to create additional efficiencies in the Company’s operations. Many of the Company’s competitors have
substantially greater resources to invest in technological improvements. The Company may not be able to effectively
implement new technology-driven products and services or be successful in marketing these products and services to its
customers. Failure to successfully keep pace with technological change affecting the financial services industry could have a
material adverse impact on the Company’s business and, in turn, the Company’s financial condition and results of operations.




The Company is subject to claims and litigation pertaining to fiduciary responsibility.

From time-to-time, customers make claims and take legal action pertaining to the Company’s performance of its fiduciary
responsibilities. Whether customer claims and legal action related to the Company’s performance of its fiduciary
responsibilities are founded or unfounded, if such claims and legal actions are not resolved in a manner favorable to the
Company they may resuit in significant financial liability and/or adversely affect the market perception of the Company and
its products and services as well as impact customer demand for those products and services. Any financial liability or
reputation damage could have a material adverse effect on the Company’s business, which, in turn, could have a material
adverse effect on the Company’s financial condition and results of operations.

Severe weather, natural disasters, acts of war or terrorism and other external events could significantly impact the
Company’s business.

Severe weather, natural disasters, acts of war or terrorism and other adverse external events could have a significant impact
on the Company’s ability to conduct business. Such events could affect the stability of the Company’s deposit base, impair
the ability of borrowers to repay outstanding loans, impair the value of cotlateral securing loans, cause significant property
damage, result in loss of revenue and/or cause the Company to incur additional expenses. Severe weather or natural
disasters, acts of war or terrorism or other adverse external events may occur in the future. Although management has
established disaster recovery policies and procedures, the occurrence of any such event could have a material adverse effect
on the Company’s business, which, in turn, could have a material adverse effect on the Company’s financial condition and
results of operations.

Risks Associated with the Company’s Common Stock
The Company's stock price can be volatile.

Stock price volatility may make it more difficult for you to resell your common stock when you want and at prices you find
attractive. The Company’s stock price can fluctuate significantly in response to a variety of factors including, among other
things:

+ Actual or anticipated variations in quarterly results of operations.

+ Recommendations by securities analysts.

+ Operating and stock price performance of other companies that investors deem comparable to the Company.

» News reports relating to trends, concerns and other issues in the financial services industry.

» Perceptions in the marketplace regarding the Company and/or its competitors.

= New technology used, or services oftered, by competitors.

» Significant acquisitions or business combinations, strategic partnerships, joint ventures or capital commitments by or
involving the Company or its competitors.

« Failure to integrate acquisitions or realize anticipated benefits from acquisitions.

« Changes in government regulations.

» Geopeolitical conditions such as acts or threats of terrorism or military conflicts.

General market fluctuations, industry factors and general economic and political conditions and events, such as economic
slowdowns or recessions, interest rate changes or credit loss trends, could also cause the Company’s stock price to decrease
regardless of operating results.

The trading volume in the Company s common stock is less than that of other larger financial services companies.

The Company’s common stock is listed for trading on the over-the-counter bulletin board; the trading volume in its common
stock is less than that of other larger financial services companies. A public trading market having the desired characteristics
of depth, liquidity and orderliness depends on the presence in the marketplace of willing buyers and sellers of the Company’s
common stock at any given time. This presence depends on the individual decisions of investors and general economic and
market conditions over which the Company has no control. Given the lower trading volume of the Company’s common
stock, significant sales of the Company’s common stock, or the expectation of these sales, could cause the Company’s stock
price to fall.




An investment in the Company's common stock is not an insured deposit.

The Company’s common stock is not a bank deposit and, therefore, is not insured against loss by the FDIC, any other deposit
insurance fund or by any other public or private entity. Investment in the Company’s common stock is inherently risky for
the reasons described in this “Risk Factors™ section and elsewhere in this report and is subject to the same market forces that
affect the price of common stock in any company. As a result, if you acquire the Company’s common stock, you may lose
some or all of your investment.

The Company’s articles of incorporation and by-laws, as well as certain banking laws, may have an anti-takeover effect.

Provisions of the Company’s articles of incorporation and by-laws, federal banking laws, including regulatory approval
requirements, could make it more difficult for a third party to acquire the Company, even if doing so would be perceived to
be beneficial to the Company’s shareholders. The combination of these provisions effectively inhibits a non-negotiated
merger or other business combination, which, in turn, could adversely affect the market price of the Company’s common
stock.

Risks Associated with the Company’s Industry
Future governmental regulation and legislation could limit the Company s future growth.

The Company is a registered bank holding company, and its subsidiary bank is a depository institution whose deposits are
insured by the FDIC. As a result, the Company is subject to various regulations and examinations by various regulatory
authorities. In general, statutes establish the corporate governance and eligible business activities for the Company, certain
acquisition and merger restrictions, limitations on inter-company transactions such as loans and dividends, capital adequacy
requirements, requirements for anti-money laundering programs and other compliance matters, among other regulations. The
Company is extensively regulated under federal and state banking laws and regulations that are intended primarily for the
protection of depositors, federal deposit insurance funds and the banking system as a whole. Compliance with these statutes
and regulations is important to its ability to engage in new activities and to consummate additional acquisitions.

In addition, the Company is subject to changes in federal and state tax laws as well as changes in banking and credit
regulations, accounting principles and governmental economic and monetary policies. The Company cannot predict whether
any of these changes may adversely and materially affect it. Federal and state banking regulators also possess broad powers
to take supervisory actions as they deem appropriate. These supervisory actions may result in higher capital requirements,
higher insurance premiums and limitations on the Company’s activities that could have a material adverse effect on its
business and profitability. While these statutes are generally designed to minimize potential loss to depositors and the FDIC
insurance funds, they do not eliminate risk, and compliance with such statutes increases the Company’s expense, requires
management’s attention and can be a disadvantage from a competitive standpoint with respect to non-regulated competitors.

The earnings of financial services companies are significantly affected by general business and economic conditions.

The Company’s operations and profitability are impacted by general business and economic conditions in the United States
and abroad. These conditions include short-term and long-term interest rates, inflation, money supply, political issues,
legislative and regulatory changes, fluctuations in both debt and equity capital markets, broad trends in industry and finance,
and the strength of the U.S. economy and the local economies in which the Company operates, all of which are beyond the
Company’s control. Deterioration in economic conditions could result in an increase in loan delinquencies and non-
performing assets, decreases in loan collateral values and a decrease in demand for the Company’s products and services,
among other things, any of which could have a material adverse impact on the Company’s financial condition and results of
operations.

Financial services companies depend on the accuracy and completeness of information about customers and counterparties.

In deciding whether to extend credit or enter into other transactions, the Company may rely on information furnished by or
on behalf of customers and counterparties, including financial statements, credit reports and other financial information. The
Company may also rely on representations of those customers, counterparties or other third parties, such as independent
auditors, as to the accuracy and completeness of that information. Reliance on inaccurate or misleading financial statements,
credit reports or other financial information could have a material adverse impact on the Company’s business and, in turn, the
Company’s financial condition and results of operations.




Consumers may decide not to use banks to complete their financial transactions.

Technology and other changes are allowing parties to complete financial transactions that historically have involved banks
through alternative methods. For example, consumers can now maintain funds that would have historically been held as bank
deposits in brokerage accounts or mutual funds. Consumers can also complete transactions such as paying bills and/or
transferring funds directly without the assistance of banks. The process of eliminating banks as intermediaries, known as
“disintermediation,” could result in the loss of fee income, as well as the loss of customer deposits and the related income
generated from those deposits. The loss of these revenue streams and the lower cost deposits as a source of funds could have
a material adverse effect on the Company’s financial condition and results of operations.

ITEM iB: UNRESOLVED STAFF COMMENTS

None
ITEM 2: PROPERTIES
As of December 31, 2007, the Bank operated 12 full-service banking offices, of which three were owned and nine were
leased. None of the lessors of the properties leased by the Bank are affiliated with the Company or the Bank and all of the
properties are located in the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania. The Company is headquartered at its owner occupied main

branch located on the corner of Blakely and Drinker Streets in Dunmore, PA.

The following table provides information with respect to the principal properties from which the Bank conducts business:

Location Owned/leased* Type of use Full service Drive-thru ATM
Drinker & Blakely Sts., Owned Main Branch ‘" X X X
Dunmore, PA
111 Green Ridge St., Leased Green Ridge Branch @ X X X
Scranton, PA
139 Wyoming Ave., Leased Scranton Branch X X
Scranton, PA
1311 Morgan Hwy., Leased Abington Branch **! X X X
Clarks Summit, PA
Industrial Park Rd., Owned Keystone Industrial Park X X X
Dunmore, PA Branch
403 Kennedy Blvd., Leased Pittston Branch X X
Pittston, PA
338 North Washington Ave., Owned Financial Center Branch © X X
Scranton, PA
4010 Bimey Ave., Leased Moosic Branch X X X
Moosic, PA
801 Wyoming Ave., Leased West Pittston Branch X X
West Pittston, PA
1558 Main St., Leased Peckville Branch X X X
Peckville, PA
247 Wyoming Ave., Leased Kingston Branch X X X
Kingston, PA
511 Scranton-Carbondale Hwy., Leased Eynon Branch X X X
Eynon, PA

*All of the owned properties are free of encumbrances
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(1) Executive and administrative, commercial lending, trust and asset management services are located at this facility. This office has two
automated teller machines {ATMs).

(2) This office has two ATMs.

(3) In addition, there is a banking facility located in the Clarks Summit State Hospital. The office is leased from the hospital under a lease-
for-service-provided agreement with service limited to employees and patients of the hospital.

(4) Executive, mortgage and consumer lending, finance and operational offices are located in this building. A portion of the building is
leased to a non-related entity, The Company also owned an adjacent attached building which was leased to a non-related entity. The
Company sold this building in 2007.

The Bank maintains several free-standing 24-hour ATMs located at the following locations in Pennsylvania:

U.S. Mini Marts, Inc., 511 Main St., Childs

Marywood University, 2300 Adams Ave., Nazareth Hall, Scranton
Sné Mountain Ski Resort, 1000 Montage Mountain Rd., Moosic
Convenient Food Mart, 100 Highland Ave., Clarks Summit

Ice Box Sports Complex, 3 West Olive St., Scranton

Shops at Montage, 1035 Shoppes Blvd., Moosic

The Company also owned a commercial facility located at 116—118 N. Blakely Street, Dunmore, PA which was leased to a
non-related entity. The Company sold this facility in 2007,

The Company also owns property located at Luzerne Street and South Main Avenue, Scranton. This property is currently
under construction and will be the site of our West Scranton Branch scheduled to open for business in 2008.

Other real estate owned includes all foreclosed properties listed for sale. Upon possession, foreclosed properties are recorded
on the Company’s balance sheet at the lower of cost or fair value.

ITEM 3: LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

The nature of the Company’s business generates some litigation involving matters arising in the ordinary course of business.
However, in the opinion of the Company after consulting with legal counsel, no legal proceedings are pending, which, if
determined adversely to the Company or the Bank, would have a material effect on the Company’s undivided profits or
financial condition. No legal proceedings are pending other than ordinary routine litigation incidental to the business of the
Company and the Bank. In addition, to management’s knowledge, no governmental authorities have initiated or
contemplated any material legal actions against the Company or the Bank.

ITEM 4: SUBMISSION OF MATTERS TO A VOTE OF SECURITY HOLDERS

No matter was submitted during the quarter ended December 31, 2007 to a vote of our security holders through solicitation of
proxies or otherwise.

PART 11

ITEM 5: MARKET FOR REGISTRANT’S COMMON EQUITY, RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS AND
ISSUER PURCHASES OF EQUITY SECURITIES

The common stock of the Company is traded on the over-the-counter bulletin board under the symbol “FDBC.”
Shareholders requesting information about the Company’s common stock may contact Salvatore R. DeFrancesco, Jr,,
Treasurer. Requests may be mailed to:

Fidelity D & D Bancorp, Inc.
Blakely and Drinker St.
Dunmore, PA 18512

(570) 342-8281




The following table lists the quarterly cash dividends paid per share and the range of sales prices for the Company’s common
stock. Such over-the-counter prices do not include retail mark-ups, markdowns or commissions:

lgroig;,s Dividends Prices Dividends

High Low paid High Low paid
R8Ty 1= OO $ 40.00 $ 3250 § 022 $ 4250 $ 3636 0§ 022
2™ QUATLET...oovovveeeeeeeeeesee e e $ 3775 $ 3200 $ 022 $ 3800 % 3250 § 022
3 QUAIET oot ens e $ 3400 $ 2710 $ 024 $ 3500 $ 3210 § 022
A QUATTEL oo rss e $ 3400 $ 2700 $ 025 $ 3550 $ 3125 $ 022

Dividends are determined and declared by the Board of Directors of the Company. On January 17, 2006, the Board of
Directors declared a 10% stock dividend. The new shares were distributed on February 15, 2006 to sharcholders of record at
the close of business on January 30, 2006. The Company expects to continue to pay cash dividends in the future; however,
future dividends are dependent upon earnings, financial condition, capital needs and other factors of the Company. For a
further discussion of regulatory capital requirements see Note 14, “Regulatory matters,” contained within the notes to the
consolidated financial statements.

The Company has established a dividend reinvestment plan (DRP) for its shareholders. The plan is designed to make the
Company’s stock available at no transactional cost to our shareholders. Cash dividends, paid to shareholders who are
enrolled in the DRP, are used to purchase shares directly from the Company or shares that are available in the open market.
The Company had approximately 1,335 shareholders at February 29, 2008 and approximately 1,338 at December 31, 2007.
The number of shareholders is the actual number of individual shareholders of record. Each security depository is considered
a single shareholder for purposes of determining the approximate number of shareholders.

Securities authorized for issuance under equity compensation plans

The information required under this section is incorporated by reference herein, to the information presented in the
Company’s definitive Proxy Statement for its 2008 Annual Meeting of Shareholders to be filed with the SEC.
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Performance graph

The following graph and table compare the cumulative total shareholder return on the Company’s common stock against the
cumulative total return of the NASDAQ Composite and the SNL index of greater than $500 million in-asset banks traded on
the OTC-BB and Pink Sheet (the SNL index) for the period of five fiscal years commencing January 1, 2003, and ending
December 31, 2007. The graph illustrates the cumulative investment return to shareholders, based on the assumption that a
$100 investment was made on December 31, 2002, in each of: the Company’s common stock, the NASDAQ Composite and
the SNL index. All cumulative total returns are computed assuming the reinvestment of dividends into the applicable
securities. The shareholder return shown on the graph and table below is not necessarily indicative of future performance:

Total Return Performance
225
—e— Fidelity D & D Bancorp, Inc.
200 —— NASDAQ Composite
—&-SNL Bank Pink > $500M Index
175
]
=2
S 150
%
[
b -]
£
125
100
75 : ¢ t t
12/31/02 12/31/03 12/31/04 12/31/05 12131106 12/31/07
Period ending
Index 12/31/02 12/31/03 12/31/04 1231705  12/31/06  12/31/07
Fidelity D & D Bancorp, INC.......ccccoeeeievverevineies s inesnens 100.00 99.07 93.07 116.78 106.30 93.11
NASDAQ COMPOSIE ...oceooiiieeiiieecrircvs et seessesneees 100.00 150.0f 162.89 165.13 180.85 198.60
SNL > $500M OTC-BB and Pink Sheet Banks............c.ouo..... 100.00 139.37 163.02 17349 19035 175.39
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ITEM 6: SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA

Set forth below are our selected consolidated financial and other data. This financial data is derived in part from, and should
be read in conjunction with, the Company’s consolidated financial statements and related footnotes:

Balance sheet data:

Total aS5et5 .cvvvivvervreicieeeerciereeeane
Total investment securities ..........
Net 10anS.......coeeeiivvrierreeeee e
Loans available-for-sale ..............
Total deposits......ccvevcveerenerrenan
Short-term borrowings.................
Long-term debt .......cccovrrvcaiininnns
Total shareholders’ equity ...........

Operating data for the year ended:

Total interest income ...................
Total interest eXpense ..........c......
Net interest INCOME........oocerininns
(Credit) provision for loan losses

Net interest income after (credit)

provision for loan losses

Other iNCOmMe ...t
Other operating expense ..............

Income before provision for

INCOME LAXES. . vvrerrraeeeeenenreeennns
Provision for income taxes ..........
Net INCOME woevveeeeeeireiree e

Per share data:

Net income per share, basic.........
Net income per share, diluted......
Dividends declared......oeovcnnnnee
Dividends per share .....................

Book value per share
Weighted-average number of

shares outstanding *..............

Number of shares outstanding

at year-end *........cccocveereriinnnns

Ratios:

Return on average assets..............
Return on average equity.............
Net interest margin .........ccccceceues
Efficiency ratio......cccoevirnincnnns
Expense ratio ...

Allowance for loan losses to

total 10ans ..c.cveevvrecrerrceniins
Dividend payout ratio..................
Equity t0 8SS€tS ..ccvvvnirernierernennas
Equity to deposits ........cceeevreenene

2007 2006 2005 2004 2003

$587,412,555 $562,317,988 $544,060,698 $536,675,138 §$575,215,466
122,984,160 100,410,736 97,678,573 115,668,818 139,654,074
421424379 417,199,048 403,144,095 381,546,375 366,981,640
827,250 122,000 428,584 576,378 19,863,577
425,708,361 410,334,595 379,498,640 365,615,335 401,442,546
39,656,354 33,656,150 28,772,997 50,534,046 54,756,978
62,708,677 62,536,210 83,704,188 71,119,188 71,876,034
55,191,294 51,611,863 48,846,029 46,366,760 43,931,899
$ 35,279,357 $ 33,529,710 $ 29,020,261 § 27,395491 § 28,462,093
17,660,075 16,361,109 11,720,986 11,180,135 14,237,129
17,619,282 17,168,601 17,299,275 16,215,356 14,224,964
(60,000} 325,000 830,000 2,150,000 3,715,000
17,679,282 16,843,601 16,469,275 14,065,356 10,509,964
5,205,215 4,522,138 4,150,502 4,153,217 4,182,739
16,636,760 15,878,376 14,561,968 13,818,565 12,902,963
6,247,737 5,487,363 6,057,809 4,400,068 1,789,740
1,636,165 1,362,080 1,466,112 1,035,594 146,492
§ 4,611,572 § 4,125283 § 4591697 3 3364474 § 1,643,248
$ 223 % 201 % 226 % 167 % 0.82
$ 223 % 201 % 225 % 1.67 § 0.82
$ 1,921,533 % 1,801,361 $ 1624263 § 1,610423 § 1,601,898
$ 093 % 088 % 080 § 080 § 0.80
$ 2662 % 2509 % 2395 % 2292 % 21.91
2,066,683 2,047,975 2,031,211 2,013,798 2,002,443
2,072,929 2,057,433 2,039,639 2,023,529 2,005,347

0.80% 0.73% 0.86% 0.61% 029%

8.65% 8.31% 9.64 % 7.51% 3.63%

3.34% 331% 151% 3.20% 2.74%

71.61% 71.67% 65.99% 64.45% 72.32%

2.01% 2.02% 1.93% 1.69 % 1.68 %

1.13% 1.29% 1.46 % 1.54% 1.28 %

41.67% 43.67% 35.37% 47.87% 97.48 %

9.40% 9.18% 8.98% 8.64% 7.64 %

12.96% 12.58% 12.87 % 12.68% 10.94 %

* The number of shares and the weighted-average number of shares outstanding prior to 2006, have been adjusted to reflect the effect of the
10% stock dividend paid on February 15, 2006.




ITEM 7: MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF
OPERATIONS

Forward-Looking Statements

This Annual Report on Form 10-K contains a number of forward-looking statements within the meaning of Section 27A of
the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, or the Securities Act, and Section 21E of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as
amended, or the Exchange Act. These statements may be identified by the use of the words “anticipate,” “believe,” “couid,”
“estimate,” “expect,” “intend,” “may,” “outlook,” “plan,” “potential,” “‘predict,” “project,” “should,” “will,” “would” and

similar terms and phrases, including references to assumptions. Forward-looking statements include risks and uncertainties.

EAITY » i "7 ik

Forward-looking statements are based on various assumptions and analyses made by us in light of management’s experience
and its perception of historical trends, current conditions and expected future developments, as well as other factors it
believes are appropriate under the circumstances. These statements are not guarantees of future performance and are subject
to risks, uncertainties and other factors (many of which are beyond our control) that could cause actual results to differ
materially from future results expressed or implied by such forward-looking statements, These factors include, without
limitation, the following;:

s the timing and occurrence or non-occurrence of events may be subject to circumstances beyond our control;

e there may be increases in competitive pressure among financial institutions or from non-financial institutions;

s changes in the interest rate environment may reduce interest margins;

e changes in deposit flows, loan demand or real estate values may adversely affect our business;

e changes in accounting principles, policies or guidelines may cause our financial condition to be perceived
differently;

e general economic conditions, either nationally or locally in some or all areas in which we do business, or
conditions in the securities markets or the banking industry may be less favorable than we currently anticipate;

o legislative or reguiatory changes may adversely affect our business;
¢ technological changes may be more rapid, difficult or expensive than we anticipate;
e success or consummation of new business initiatives may be more difficult or expensive than we anticipate;
s acts of war or terrorism; or
¢ natural disaster.
Management cautions readers not to place undue reliance on forward-looking statements, which reflect analyses only as of
the date of this report, We have no obligation to update any forward-looking statements to reflect events or circumstances

after the date of this document,

Readers should review the risk factors described in [tem 1 A, above, and in other documents that we file, from time-to-time
with the SEC, including quarterly reports on Form 10-Q and any current reports on Form 8-K.

Critical accounting policies

The presentation of financial statements in conformity with GAAP requires management to make estimates and assumptions
that affect many of the reported amounts and disclosures. Actual results could differ from these estimates,

A material estimate that is particularly susceptible to significant change relates to the determination of the allowance for loan
losses. Management believes that the allowance for loan losses at December 31, 2007 is adequate and reasonable. Given the
subjective nature of identifying and valuing loan losses, it is likely that well-informed individuals could make different




assumptions, and could, therefore calculate a materially different allowance value. While management uses available
information to recognize losses on loans, changes in economic conditions may necessitate revisions in the future. In addition,
various regulatory agencies, as an integral part of their examination process, pericdically review the Company’s allowance
for loan losses. Such agencies may require the Company to recognize adjustments to the allowance based on their judgment
of information available to them at the time of their examination.

Another material estimate is the calculation of fair values of the Company’s investment securities. The Company receives
estimated fair values of investment securities from an independent valuation service. [n developing these fair values, the
valuation service uses estimates of cash flows, based on historical performance of similar instruments in similar interest rate
environments. Based on experience, management is aware that estimated fair values of investment securities tend to vary
among valuation services. Accordingly, when selling investment securities, management may obtain price quotes from more
than one source. As described in Notes 1 and 3 of the consolidated financial statements, the large majority of the Company’s
investment securities are classified as available-for-sale (AFS). AFS securities are carried at fair value on the consolidated
balance sheet, with unrealized gains and losses, net of income tax, reported separately within shareholders” equity through
accumulated other comprehensive income (loss).

The fair value of residential mortgage loans, classified as AFS, is obtained from the Federal National Mortgage Association
(FNMA). To determine the fair value of student }oans, classified as AFS, the Bank uses the pricing obtained from the most
recent student loans sold from its AFS portfolio. The market to which the Bank sells mortgage and other loans is restricted
and price quotes from other sources are not typically obtained. For a further discussion on the accounting treatment of AFS
loans, see the section entitled “Loans available-for-sale,” contained within management’s discussion and analysis. As of
December 31, 2007, loans classified as AFS consisted of residential mortgages.

All significant accounting policies are contained in Note 1, “Nature of operations and summary of significant accounting
policies,” within the notes to consolidated financial statements and incorporated by reference in Part 11, Item 8.

The following discussion and analysis presents the significant changes in the financial condition and in the results of
operations of the Company as of December 31, 2007 and December 31, 2006 and for each of the years then ended. This
discussion should be read in conjunction with the consolidated financial statements and notes included in Part 1, Item 8 of
this report.

Comparison of Financial Condition as of December 31, 2007
and 2006 and Results of Operations for each of the Years then Ended

Financial Condition
Overview

Compared to 2006, the interest rate environment improved during 2007. The yield curve, which continues to steepen,
should help widen the interest-rate spreads, bolster margins and improve the operating performance of the Bank. This, in
conjunction with our successful deposit gathering tactics, improved credit quality and hedging strategy should continue to
help position the Bank to optimize net interest income during this downward, challenging yet improving interest rate
environment. The Bank will continue to monitor cash inflows from prepayments of interest-earning assets, which tend to
accelerate during down interest rate cycles. We are proactively seeking means by which to redeploy excess funds should
this occur, including but not limited to debt reduction, loan funding and structured investment strategies.

Consolidated assets increased $25,095,000, or 4%, during the year ended December 31, 2007 to $587,413,000. The increase
resulted from increases in total deposits of $15,374,000, total borrowings of $6,173,000 and total shareholders’ equity of
$3,579,000. During 2007, the carrying values of the investment and loan portfolios increased $22,573,000 and $4,931,000,
respectively, while premises and equipment, net plus construction in process, a component of other assets in the consolidated
balance sheet, increased $1,287,000, Cash decreased $3,392,000 since December 31, 2006.
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The following table is a comparison of condensed balance sheet accounts and percentage to total assets at December 31,
2007, 2006 and 2005 (thousands of dollars):

2007 2006 2005
Amount Percent Amaount Percent Amount Percent
Assets:
Cash and cash equivalents.......occoooevvene. % 10,409 1.8% §$ 13,801 " 24% % 12,594 2.3%
Investment Securities............coceeveeeeervienenn. 122,984 20.9 100,411 17.9 97,679 18.0
Federal Home Loan Bank Stock ................ 3,303 0.6 3,795 0.7 4,628 0.8
Loans and leases, net..........ccceeeeviervicinicnnnnns 422,252 71.9 417,321 742 403,573 74.2
Bank premises and equipment.................... 12,965 2.2 11,324 2.0 11,683 2.2
Life insurance cash surrender value ........... 8,489 1.4 . 8,178 1.5 7,892 1.4
Other SSETS ....neoeeereie e ve e eeereeees 7,011 1.2 7,488 1.3 6,012 1.1
Total @SSEtS .. .ovvvvviiieeiir it iieieeesiiens £587.413 100.0% $562,318 100.0% $544,061 100.0%
Liabilities;
Total deposits .......coceeeieeeeeirieeeeec e $425,708 72.5% $410,335 73.0% $379,499 69.7%
Short-term borrowings ..........ocecerevrvevvreees 39,656 6.7 33,656 6.0 28,773 5.3
Long-term debt........cccovvimnireevvriinerniierens 62,709 10.7 62,536 11.1 83,704 15.4
Other labllities., oo 4.149 0.7 4179 0.7 3,239 0.6
Total Habilities .....oocoovvvveeiereeeieeeceeeens 532,222 90.6 510,706 90.8 495,215 91.0
Shareholders’ equity.....coceeireerreicecnirenens 55,191 94 51,612 9.2 48,846 9.0
Total liabilities and
shareholders’ equity .....c.ocveveennee. $587.413 100.0% $562,318 100.0% $544,061 100.0%

A comparison of net changes in selected balance sheet categories as of December 31, are as follows:

Earning Short-term Other
Assels %% assets * Y Deposits Va borrowings Ve borrowings %
2007 e § 25,094,567 4 $ 26,073,807 5 $ 15,373,766 4 $ 6000204 18 § 172467
18,257,290 3 21,202,050 4 30,835,955 8 4,883,153 17 QLISTITR)  (25)
7,385,560 1 2,784,580 1 13,883,305 4 21,761,049)  (43) 12,585,000 18
(38,540,328) ™ (35,884,098) @ (35,827,211 (9 (4222,932) @) (756,846) W
(2.777,850) 0 (3,007,038) ) (12,345,630) 3) 3,543,964 7 8,876,034 14

* Earning assets exclude loans placed on non-accrual status,
Deposits

The Bank is a community-based, commercial financial institution that offers a variety of deposit accounts with a range of
interest rates and terms. Deposit products include savings accounts, interest-bearing checking (NOW), money market, non-
interest bearing deposits (DDAs) and certificate of deposit accounts. Certificate of deposit accounts, or CDs, are deposits
with stated maturities ranging from seven days to five years. The flow of deposits is significantly influenced by general
economic conditions, changes in prevailing interest rates, pricing and competition, Most of the Bank’s deposits are obtained
from the communities surrounding its 12 branch offices. We attempt to attract and retain deposit customers via sales and
marketing efforts with new products, quality service, competitive rates and maintaining long-standing customer relationships.
To determine deposit product interest rates, the Bank considers local competition, market yields and the rates charged for
alternative sources of funding such as borrowings. Though we continue to experience intense competition for deposits, we
set deposit rates based on liquidity needs, balance sheet structure and cost effective strategies that takes into consideration the
current interest rate environment.
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The following table represents the components of total deposits as of December 31, 2007 and 2006 (thousands of dollars):

2007 2006
Amount Percent Amount Percent

Money MATKEL ........cocivrecnariirnrrerei e sesrsse e § 87,892 206% § 72,359 17.6%
NOW ittt sbe e stt e be e bes b e e s sa e b e s nes e s saesemeemeenreeneeas 54,695 12.9 65,122 159
Savings and Clubs .....oeccveecir e 40,125 9.4 45,301 11.0
Certificates of dePOSIt ..c.ovvvvrerevricc e 178,200 41.9 153,811 37.5

Total interest-bearing ..o vcocvriercii e 360,912 84.8 336,593 82.0
NOR-INLEFESt-BRATIINE .....cvecvrevreereverarmesnre e cssssssra s ssasaans 64,796 15.2 73,742 18.0

TOLAl dEPOSHS ..cvceei e $425,708 100.0% $410,335 100.0%

Total deposits increased $15,373,000, or 4%, during 2007 to $425,708,000. The growth in deposits was from increases in
money market and certificate of deposit accounts of $15,533,000 and $24,389,000, or 21% and 16%, respectively, partially
offset by declines in NOW, savings and DDAs of $10,427,000, $5,176,000 and $8,946,000, respectively. Certificate of
deposit accounts continue to grow as customers are locking in rates during the current declining interest rate environment.
The ongoing increase in money market accounts, net of the decline in savings and club accounts, is from success in our
deposit-gathering strategies in conjunction with promotional interest rates tailored to depositors’ needs. DDAs decreased
12% compared to December 31, 2006; however, management believes this outflow to be related to customer transaction
timing and therefore temporary rather than permanent. Management continues to monitor the activity in this account and will
develop strategies and implement campaigns to attract and retain this important source of cost-lowering funds.

The maturity distribution of certificate of deposit accounts at December 31, 2007 is as follows:

Three months Three to six Six to twelve Over
or less Months months twelve months Total
CDs of $100,000 or more........cceeeueees $ 28,196,901 $ 6,108435 $ 23,724,159 § 22,827,030 § 80,856,525
CDs of less than $100,000 ................. 11,748,231 8,898,664 35,234,358 41,462,764 97,344,017
Total CDS oo $ 39,945,132 $ 15,007,099 § 58,958,517 § 64,289,794 $178,200,542

Approximately 64% of these CDs are scheduled to mature in one year. Renewing CDs may re-price to higher or lower
market rates depending on the direction of interest rate movements, the shape of the yield curve, competition, the rate profile
of the maturing accounts and depositor preference for alternative products. To help reduce the financial impact of the
unpredictable and highly volatile interest rate environment, management intends to continue to deploy strategies that will
diversify the deposit mix across the entire spectrum of products offered. As always, consideration will be given to customer
retention.

Short-term borrowings

In addition to deposits, other funding sources available to the Bank are overnight funds purchased from the Federal Home
Loan Bank of Pittsburgh (FHLBY), fed funds purchased from correspondent banks and repurchase agreements with
individuals, businesses and public entities. The Bank uses overnight funding for asset growth, deposit run-off and short-term
liquidity needs. Investment security pre-refunding strategies and late-year deposit outflow resulted in an increase n
overnight borrowings of $8,555,000 as of December 31, 2007 compared to December 31, 2006.

Repurchase agreements are offered in both sweep and fixed-term products. These agreements are non-insured interest-
bearing liabilities that have a security interest in qualified pledged investments of the Bank. A sweep account 1s designed to
ensure that on a daily basis, an attached DDA is adequately funded and excess DDA funds are transferred, or swept, into an
interest-bearing overnight repurchase agreement account. In addition, the sweep is designed to transfer funds to the DDA as
necessary to cover checks presented for payment. Due to the nature of the sweep product, these accounts tend to be more
volatile than the fixed-term product because the daily sweep is dependent on the level of available funds in depositor
accounts. Customer liquidity and investment needs and changes in interest rates are the typical causes for variances in
repurchase agreements, which during 2007 declined to $20,504,000 from $22,224,000 at December 31, 2006. At December
31, 2007 and 2006, sweep accounts represented 62% and 70%, respectively, of total repurchase agreements.

Overnight borrowings and repurchase agreements are included with short-term borrowings on the consolidated balance sheet.

For a further discussion on short-term borrowings, see Note 7, “Short-term borrowings,” contained in the notes to
consolidated financial statements in Part 11, Item 8.
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Long-term debt

Long-term debt consists of borrowings from the FHLB. The weighted-average rate in effect on funds borrowed at December
31,2007, was 5.26% compared to 5.15% as of December 31, 2006. The 2007 weighted-average rate was 133 basis points
below the tax-equivalent yield of 6.59% on average ¢arning assets for the year ended December 31, 2007, Rates on
$42,000,000 of the tota] long-term advances are currently fixed but will adjust quarterly should market rates increase beyond
the issues’ original or strike rates. As of December 31, 2007, the weighted-average rate on this convertible debt was 5.35%.
Significant prepayment penalties attached to the borrowings are a disincentive from paying off the high cost advances.
However, in the event underlying market rates drift above the rates currently paid on these borrowings, the FHLE rate will
convert to floating and the Bank has the option, at that time, to repay or to renegotiate the converted advance. To help reduce
the Bank’s reliance on overnight funding, during 2007 $16,000,000 of advances that had matured or converted, and carried a
weighted-average interest rate of 4.78%, were replaced with fixed- and capped floating-rate advances. The new advances
aggregated of $20,000,000 that mature in 2009 and carried an initial weighted-average interest rate of 5.40%. As of
December 31, 2007, the weighted-average interest rate on these advances amounted to 5.13%.

At December 31, 2007, the Bank had the ability to borrow an additional $122,133,000 from the FHLB by utilizing the
numerous funding products available at a variety of terms.

Investments

The Bank’s investment policy is designed to complement its lending activities, generate a favorable return without incurring
undue interest rate and credit risk, manage interest rate sensitivity, provide monthly cash flow and manage liquidity at
acceptable levels. In establishing investment strategies, the Bank considers its business, growth or restructuring plans, the
economic environment, the interest rate sensitivity position, the types of securities held, permissible purchases, credit quality,
maturity and re-pricing terms, call or average-life intervals and investment concentrations. The policy prescribes permissible
investment categories that meet the policy standards and management is responsible for structuring and executing the specific
investment purchases within these policy parameters. Management buys and sells investment securities from time-to-time
depending on market conditions, business trends, liquidity needs, capital levels and structuring strategies. Investment
security purchases provide a way to quickly invest excess liquidity in order to generate additional earnings. The Bank
generally earns a positive interest spread by assuming interest rate risk and using deposits and/or borrowings to purchase
securities with longer maturities.

At the time of purchase, management classifies investment securities into one of three categories: trading, AFS or held-to-
maturity (HTM). To date, management has not purchased any securities for trading purposes. Most of the securities
purchased are classified as AFS even though there is no immediate intent to sell them. The AFS designation affords
management the flexibility to sell securities and position the balance sheet in response to capital levels, liquidity needs or
changes in market conditions. Securities AFS are carried at net fair values in the consolidated balance sheet with an
adjustment to shareholders’ equity, net of tax, presented under the caption *Accumulated other comprehensive income
(loss).” Securities designated as HTM are carried at amortized cost and represent debt securities that the Company has the
ability and intent to hold until maturity. As of December 31, 2007 and December 31, 2006, the aggregate fair value of
securities HTM exceeded their respective aggregate amortized cost by $33,000 and $25,000, respectively.

Total investments increased $22,574,000, net of a $23,000 decline in the market value of AFS investments. The increase in
the investment portfolio during 2007 was the result of investing excess liquidity stemming from deposit inflows and late-year
overnight borrowings used as a pre-refunding strategy. The carrying value of investment securities, at December 31, 2007,
was $122,984,000, or 21%, of total assets compared to $100,411,000, or 18%, as of December 31, 2006. Mortgage-backed
securities, which amortize and provide monthly cash flow, continue to dominate the composition of the total investment
portfolio representing 48% at December 31, 2007, compared to 43% at December 31, 2006.
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A comparison of investments at December 31, for the three previous periods is as follows:

2007 2006 2005
Amount Percent Amount Percent Amount Percent

U.S. government

agencies............. $ 35,243,890 28.7% $ 33,891,985 33.8% $ 31,125,909 31.9%
Mortgage-backed

SECUrities. . .ccvveee 58,767,109 47.8 42,900,005 42.7 42,615,197 43.6
State & municipal

subdivisions....... 12,133,443 9.8 12,576,684 12.5 13,401,874 13.7
Preferred term

SECUritieS......cuvae 16,335,486 13.3 10,570,993 10.5 10,083,684 10.3
Equity securities.... 504,232 0.4 471,069 0.5 452,509 0.5

Total ..o $122,984,160 100.0% $100,410,736 100.0% $ 97,678,573 100.0%

The distribution of debt securities by stated maturity date at December 31, 2007 is as follows:

One year One through Five through More than
or less five years ten years ten years Total
U.S. government agencies..........oeveeeenn $ 997500 § 5012356 $ 16,076,875 §13,157,159 $ 35,243,890
Mortgage-backed securities..........ooooeeee. 18,120 3,315,644 6,272,027 49,161,318 58,767,109
State & municipal subdivisions............ — — 1,292,533 10,840,910 12,133,443
Preferred term securities ......cc...oceveeieenn, —_ — — 16,335,486 16,335,486
Total debt securities ........c.ocecevvininns $1,015,620 $ 8328000 § 23,641,435 §89,494,.873 $122,479,928

AFS securities are stated net of unrealized gains and losses. As of December 31, 2007, AFS debt securities were recorded
with a net unrealized loss in the amount of $1,663,000. At December 31, 2007, AFS equity securities were recorded at
$505,000 including an unrealized gain of $176,000.

The tax-equivalent yield on debt securities by stated maturity date at December 31, 2007, is as follows:

One year One through Five through More than
or less five years ten years ten years Total
U.S. government agencies .. .....ooweereeenec 3.00 % 483 % 4.90 % 599 % 525 %
Mortgage-backed securities.........c.oocoeene. 6.00 4.11 432 5.22 5.06
State & municipal subdivisions.................. — — 5.55 5.71 5.69
Preferred term SECUTItIES ..ovvveeeievnciiarniiinn, — — — 6.25 6.25
Total debt SECUTHIES .ooovvviveereeeeeeiieiens 3.05 % 4.54 % 4,78 % 559 % 534 %

In the above table, the book yields on state & municipal subdivisions were adjusted to a tax-equivalent basis using the corporate federal tax
rate of 34%. In addition, average yields on securities AFS are based on amortized cost and do not reflect unrealized gains or losses.

Loans and leases

Gross loans and leases increased $3,606.000, or 1%, from $422,643,000 at December 31, 2006, to $426,249,000 at December
31, 2007. Gross loans represented 73% and 75% of total assets at December 31, 2007 and December 31, 2006, respectively.

in 2007, the Bank originated $32,919,000 of commercial loans, $24,032,000 of residential mortgage loans and $28,062,000
of consumer loans. This compares to $17,152,000, $21,431,000 and $29,565,000, respectively, in 2006. Included in
mortgage loans is $12,515,000 of real estate construction lines in 2007 and $11,111,000 in 2006. In addition for 2007, the
Bank originated lines of credit in the amounts of $18,564,000 for commercial borrowers and $6,296,000 in home equity and
other consumer lines of credit.

Though loan originations increased in 2007 compared to 2006, and despite operating in an overall higher interest rate
environment, payoffs and pay-downs were high in 2007 almost offsetting the originations. As a resuit, there was only a
subtle increase in the loan portfolio. With the recent steepening of the yield curve and the hiring of a new senior lender,
management anticipates growth in all sectors of the loan portfolio during 2008. During 2008, the Company will channel
efforts to develop total banking relationships with new customers and strengthen relationships with our existing base of loyal
customers.
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Commercial and Commercial Real Estate Loans:

Though commercial and commercial real estate (CRE) originations were relatively strong, they were fully offset by
scheduled principal curtailments and pre-payments, thereby resulting in a commercial loan decline of $2,155,000 to
$216,058,000 from $218,213,000, or almost 1% during 2007. The Company has recently hired a new senior lender and has
restructured its existing team of commercial loan officers to better serve our existing customer base and strategically
penetrate the markets for new business relationships.

Residential Real Estate Loans:

Residential real estate loans increased $4,235,000, or 4%, to $116,978,000 in 2007. Though operating in a higher interest
rate environment, which tends to reduce the level of prepayment and refinance activity, the Company was able to continue to
grow its residential real estate loan portfolio on the strength of its very dedicated staff of loan originators and transfers of
construction loans to permanent financing.

Consumer Loans:

Consumer loans increased $4,269,000, or 6%, during 2007. The increase in this sector is mainly from less refinance and
payoff activity caused by a relatively higher interest rate environment. This enabled the portfolio to grow despite a minor

decline in loan originations.

Real Estate Construction Loans:

Real estate construction loans decreased by $2,666,000, or 20%, at December 31, 2007 compared to December 31, 2006.
These loans fund residential and commercial construction projects and then convert to a residential mortgage or to a
commercial real estate loan usually within one year from the origination date. Generally, the converted loans will bear the
same terms as the residential or the commercial construction loans. The decline in 2007 was caused by more residential
construction loans converting to permanent mortgage loans;, however, both categories remain strong.

Direct Financing Leases:

The balance represents tax-free leasing arrangements provided to municipal customers. For 2007, the activity represents
scheduled run-off.

A comparison of domestic loans at December 31, for the five previous periods is as follows:

2007 2006 2005 2004 2003

Commercial and CRE ..............o.oce0. $216,057,2882  $218.213,216  $216,288,597 §221,968,137 $221,275,922
Residential real estate...........o.ocouveene 116,978,378 112,742,692 103,920,613 91,294,401 77,077,315
CONSUMET ....coeeiirriiiiiiiee v eeesiee e 81,998,093 77,729,520 74,070,328 61,487,608 62,919,070
Real estate construction...............oreee. 10,703,249 13,369,712 14,198,858 10,620,472 7,267,616
Direct financing leases ..........c.ccoeeenen. 511,178 588211 650,348 2,211,978 3,685,802

Gross 10808 .o ecvovrvvce e 426,248,780 422,643,351 409,128,744 387,582,596 372,225,725
Less:
Unearned discount..........ccoviieeeceinns — — -— 48,423 247.119
Allowance for loan losses .................. 4,824,401 5,444,303 5,984,649 5,987,798 4,996,966

Net 10anS .o $421,424 379 $417,199,048 $403,144,095 $381,546,375 $366,981,640
Loans available-for-sale.....cccoveeenen. $ 827,250 § 122,000 § 428,584 % 576,378 % 19,863,577
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A comparison of gross loans by percent at year-end for the five previous periods is as follows:

2007 2006 2005 2004 2003
Commercial and CRE ... 50.7 % 51.6 % 52.9 % 57.3 % 59.5 %
Residential real estate.....cocooniiiinnnns 27.5 26.7 25.4 235 20.7
CONSUIMIET ....ovveeeeeeeceirerreearraseieeeentainns 19.2 18.4 18.1 15.9 16.9
Real estate cOnStruction.......c..coveeeeeens 2.5 32 35 2.7 1.9
Direct financing 1eases ....coovvevienees 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.6 1.0
Gross loans......oceeeecviicienisiereccnenns 100.0 % 100.0 % 100.0 % 100.0 % 100.0 %

The following table sets forth the maturity distribution of select components of the loan portfolio at December 31, 2007.
Excluded from the table are residential real estate loans, consumer loans and direct financing leases (dollars in thousands):

One-year One to five  More than

or less years five years Total
Commercial ANd CRE .uveveeeiie e eeasssssisssmsesane e sines $ 35289 $ 72,576 $108,193 $216,058
Real estate CONSIIUCTION . cicieivteirrrerersinrrensrresssssnsssbnaserrsneeeeass 10,703 — — 10,703
TOUAL 1o eevteeeeerrtrereesemeeaesrre e e e rr s s es s enaaeaseaaraeasa s rane e snanees $ 45992 § 72,576 $108,193 $226,761

Real estate construction loans are included in the one-year or less category since, by their nature, these loans are converted
into residential and CRE loans within one year from the date the real estate construction loan was consummated. Upon
conversion, the residential and CRE loans would normally mature after five years.

The following table sets forth the sensitivity changes in interest rates for commercial and CRE loans at December 31, 2007
(doltars in thousands):

One to five More than

years five years Taotal
FiXed ITEETESE FALE cuvveeeeeeeeeeeereressressrnerssessersssseesissesnnnssaneeensenss $ 36,571 § 29561 § 66,132
Variable INLETESE TALE veveeeeeeriiveerrrerreerarnrermssesssrsersernrsessssnssns 26,721 9,340 36,061
TOUAL vt eeereierseseeeeeeetesssssasesassesaasmassessasnasne s s reemannnsbsssssnasans $ 63292 % 38,901 $102,193

Non-refundable fees or costs associated with all loan originations are deferred. Using the principal reduction method, the
deferral is released as charges or credits to loan interest income over the life of the loan.

There are no concentrations of loans to a number of borrowers engaged in similar activities exceeding 10% of total loans that
are not otherwise disclosed as a category in the tables above. There are no concentrations of loans that, if lost, would have a
material adverse effect on the business of the Bank. The Bank’s loan portfolio does not have a material concentration within
a single industry or group of related industries that is vulnerable to the risk of a near-term severe negative business impact.

Loans available-for-sale

Generally, upon origination, certain residential mortgages, the guaranteed portions of SBA loans and student loans are
classified as AFS. Should market rates increase, fixed-rate loans and loans not immediately scheduled to re-price would no
longer produce yields consistent with the current market. Ina declining interest rate environment, the Bank would be
exposed to prepayment risk and, as rates on adjustable rate loans decrease, interest income would be negatively affected.
Consideration is given to the current liquidity position and projected future liquidity needs. To better manage interest rate
and prepayment risk, loans meeting these conditions may be classified as AFS. The carrying value of loans AFS is at the
lower of cost or estimated fair value. If the fair values of these loans fall below their original cost, the difference is written
down and charged to current earnings. Any subsequent appreciation in the portfolio is credited to current earnings but only
to the extent of previous write-downs.

Loans AFS at December 31, 2007, were $827,000, with a corresponding fair value of $843,000 compared to $122,000 and
$123,000, respectively, at December 31, 2006, During 2607, residential mortgages and student loans with principal balances
of $16,210,000 and $57,000, respectively, were sold into the secondary market and combined gains of approximately
$159,000 were recognized. There were no sold SBA loans during 2007.
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The Bank retains mortgage servicing rights (MSRs) on loans sold into the secondary market. MSRs are retained so that the
Bank can continue the personal relationship developed with its customers. At December 31, 2007 and 2006, the servicing
portfolio balance of sold residential mortgage loans was $61,023,000 and $53,112,000, respectively.

Allowance for loan losses

Management continually evaluates the credit quality of the Bank’s loan portfolio and performs a formal review of the
adequacy of the allowance for loan losses (the allowance) on a quarterly basis. The allowance reflects management’s best
estimate of the amount of credit losses in the loan portfolio. Management’s judgment is based on the evaluation of individual
loans, past experience, the assessment of current economic conditions and other relevant factors including the amounts and
timing of cash flows expected to be received on impaired loans. Those estimates may be susceptible to significant change.
The provision for loan losses represents the amount necessary to maintain an appropriate allowance. Loan losses are charged
directly against the allowance when loans are deemed to be uncollectible. Recoveries from previously charged-off loans are
added to the allowance when received.

Management applies two primary components during the loan review process to determine proper allowance levels. The two
components are a specific loan loss allocation for loans that are deemed impaired and a generat loan loss allocation for those
loans not specifically atlocated. The methodology to analyze the adequacy of the allowance for loan losses is as follows:

+ identification of specific impaired loans by loan category;

» calculation of specific allowances where required for the impaired loans based on collateral and other objective and
quantifiable evidence;

*  determination of homogenous pools by loan category and eliminating the impaired loans;

» application of historical loss percentages (five-year average) to pools to determine the allowance allocation; and

+ application of qualitative factor adjustment percentages to historical losses for trends or changes in the loan
portfolio.

Allocation of the allowance for different categories of loans is based on the methodology as explained above. A key element
of the methodology to determine the allowance is the Company’s credit risk evaluation process, which includes credit risk
grading of individual commercial loans, Commercial loans are assigned credit risk grades based on the Company’s
assessment of conditions that affect the borrower’s ability to meet its contractual obligations under the loan agreement. That
process includes reviewing borrowers’ current financial information, historical payment experience, credit documentation,
public information and other information specific to each individual borrower. The changes in allocations in the commercial
loan portfolio from period to period are based upon the credit risk grading system and from periodic reviews of the loan and
lease portfolios.

Each quarter, management performs an assessment of the allowance and the provision for loan losses. The Company’s
Special Assets Committee meets quarterly and the applicable lenders discuss each relationship under review and reach a
consensus on the appropriate estimated loss amount based on Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 114,
“Accounting by Creditors for Impairment of a Loan,” (SFAS 114). The Special Assets Committee’s focus is on ensuring the
pertinent facts are considered and the SFAS 114 reserve amounts are reasonable. The assessment process includes the review
of all Joans on a non-accruing basis as weli as a review of certain loans to which the lenders or the Company’s Credit
Administration function have assigned a criticized or classified risk rating.

Total charge-offs, net of recoveries, for the year ended December 31, 2007, were $560,000, compared to $865,000 in 2006.
Combined consumer loan and lease financing net charge-offs increased slightly from $161,000 at December 31, 2006 to
$237,000 through December 31, 2007. Commercial loan net charge-offs were $597,000 for the year 2006 compared to
$357,000 for 2007. Mortgage loans showed net recoveries of $35,000 in 2007 compared to net charge-offs of $108,000 in
2006. This reversal from net mortgage charge-offs in 2006 to net recoveries in 2007 was the result of recording one large
mortgage loan recovery of $107,000 on a loan which had been charged-off in a prior year. For further discussion on the
provision for loan losses, see the “Provision for loan losses,” located in the results of operations section of management’s
discussion and analysis contained herein.

For a further discussion of delinquencies and net charge-offs, see the section entitled “Non-performing assets.” Additional
discussion is in Note 1, “Nature of operations and summary of significant accounting policies — Allowance for loan losses,”
and Note 4, “Loans and leases,” contained in the notes to consolidated financial statements, and incorporated herein by
reference.
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Management believes that the current balance in the allowance for loan losses of $4,824,000 is sufficient to withstand the
identified potential credit quality issues that may arise and others unidentified but are inherent to the portfolio. Currently,
management is unaware of any potential problem loans that have not been reviewed. Potential problem loans are those where
there is known information that leads management to believe repayment of principal and/or interest is in jeopardy and the
loans are currently neither on non-accrual status nor past due 90 days or more. However, there could be certain instances
which become identified over the upcoming year that may require additional charge-offs and/or increases to the aliowance.
The ratio of allowance for loan losses to total loans was 1.13% at December 31, 2007 compared to 1.29% at December 31,
2006. :

The following table sets forth the activity in the allowance for loan losses and certain key ratios for the periods indicated
{dollars in thousands):

2007 2006 2005 2004 2003

Balance at beginning of period........c..ococovniinnens $ 5444 § 5985 § 5988 0§ 4997 § 3,900
Charge-offs:
Commercial and all other ..o, 376 661 1,077 775 1,334
REal @SLALE ....ooveeeeeiceeeaeerereeresrense e eetssanassresnes s 90 109 21 266 503
COMSUIMIEY 1ovvvevivirreeeeceneeisiesessses e snssnasssnsstesassasasarasneas 256 285 288 480 1,167
Lease fINanCing .....cooe oot — — 8 85 92

TOAL e eeeer e eceeteeesee e s e et s r e n e 722 1,055 1,394 1,606 3,096
Recoveries:
Commercial and all other......ooeonmiimis 18 64 395 226 204
Real @StAe ....oiieiiecrreirrs e e e e 125 1 11 20 34
CONSUIMIET «....eeeviievreeenessemeeeanmesssassransarassrsnensasesiaen 19 124 155 178 230
Lease fINANCINE ....covreirenenriee e insssr e oo — — — 23 10

TOtAL e e s 162 189 561 447 478
Net charge-off5......cooviniiiim e 560 866 833 1,159 2,618
(Credit) provision for loan 108Se€s ...cccoccvevvrrinnnnnnn, (60 325 830 2,150 3,715
Balance at end of period........coocviennininnnncs $ 4824 % 5444 § 5985 $ 5988 % 4,997
Net charge-offs to average net loans outstanding..... 0.13 % 021 % 0.22 % 0.30 % 0.68 %
Allowance for loan losses to net charge-offs ........... 8.62x 6.29x 7.18x 5.17x 1.91x
Allowance for loan losses to total loans................... 1.13 % 1.29 % 1.46 % 1.54 % 1.28 %
Loans 30 - 89 days past due and accruing............. $ 4698 $ 2571 8§ 1,609 § 4317 § 3,975
Loans 90 days or more past due and accruing.......... $ 26 § 81 % 197 $ 357 §& 938
Non-2cering 10ans ........ooovmnvivenermesessesesesensnns $ 3,811 $ 3358 % 9453 $ 9904 $ 7,323

Allowance for loan losses to loans 90 days or more

past due and ACCIUING ..o 189.41x 67.54x 30.39x 10.75x 5.22x
Allowance for loan losses to non-accruing loans ..... 1.27x 1.62x 0.63x 0.60x 0.68x
Allowance for loan losses to non-performing loans. 1.58x 1.58x 0.62x 0.57x 0.60x
AVerage et I0ANS ...ocvuviveenciniccnn s $419,586  $412,523  $385,800  $381,366  $383,226

The allowance for loan losses can generally absorb losses throughout the loan and lease portfolios. However, in some
instances an allocation is made for specific loans or groups of loans. Allocation of the allowance for loan losses for different
categories of loans is based on the methodology used by the Bank, as previously explained. The changes in the allocations
from year-to-year are based upon year-end reviews of the loan and lease portfolios.
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* Allocation of the allowance among major categories of loans for the past five years is summarized below. This table should
-not-be interpreted -as an indication that charge-offs in future perieds will occur in these amounts or proportions, or that the
ailocation indicates future charge-off trends. The portion of the allowance designated as unallocated is within the Company’s
policy guidelines.

2007 Ye 2006 %Y 2005 %o 2004 Ve 2003 %

Category
Residential

real estate ... $ 6363899 132 £ 578,117 106 $ 595002 99 $ 451,349 15 £ 354207 7.1
Consumer............. 960,505 19.9 1,157,091 21.2 1,180,175 19.7 966,081 16.1 884,689 17.7
Commercial

and

commercial

real estate ..., 2,979,372 61.7 3,549,870 55.2 4,035,950 674 4,330,285 723 3,699,488 4.0
Direct

financing

leases.....cccrvns 5,355 02 14,058 0.3 14,828 03 40,851 0.7 42, 706 09
Real

estate

construction ..., 52,634 1.1 59,617 1.t 59,953 1.0 46,465 0.8 15,876 03
Unallocated ... 185,636 39 85,550 L6 98.651 1.7 152,727 2.6 . — —

Total.oviiiinn $4,824,401 100.0 % $5,444,303 100.0 % $5,984,649 100.0 % §5,987,798 100.0 % $4,996,966 100.0 %

The allocation of the allowance for the commercial loan portfolio comprised 62%, or $2,979,000, of the total altowance for
loan losses at December 31, 2007, of which approximately 18% is reserved for non-performing commercial ioan
relationships. Collateral values were prudently valued to provide a conservative and realistic value of the collateral
supporting these loans. The allocations to the other categories of loans are adequate compared to the actual three-year
historical net charge-offs.

Non-performing assets
The Bank defines non-performing assets as accruing loans past due 90 days or more, non-accrual loans, restructured loans,
other real estate owned (ORE) and repossessed assets. As of December 31, 2007, non-performing assets represented 0.67%

of total assets compared to 0.65% at December 31, 2006.

The following table sets forth non-performing assets at December 31 (dollars in thousands):

2007 2006 2005 2004 2003

Net loans, including loans available-for-sale .................... $422,252 $417,321 $403,573 $382,123 $386,846
Loans past due 90 days or more and accruing................... $ 26 % 81 § 197 § 557 § 958
Non-acerual JOans ......cccovvvvrvirermnninrerernieseee e eeseeeens 3,811 3,358 9,453 9,904 7,323

Total non-performing loans.........coeevvvereceicrneceererenen, 3,837 3,439 9,650 10,461 8,281
Restructured 1oans......ooovvievenceeccececies e — — — — —
Other real estate owned ... 107 197 — 163 394
Repossessed asSets ..o — - 19 50 73

Total non-performing asSetS......oovveveveeeceieeresscensennes $ 3944 % 3636 $ 9669 $ 10674 § 8,748
Non-accrual loans to net loans ...........ccocceeeeecevnevereeeeenen, 0.90% 0.80% 2.34% 2.59% 1.89 %
Non-performing assets to net loans, foreclosed real

estate and repossessed asserS.....viiiiiiiinissiiecne e 0.93% 0.87% 2.40% 2.79% 226 %
Non-performing assets to total assets.........c.ccococeeveveciennns 0.67% 0.65 % 1.78% 1.99 % 1.52 %
Non-performing loans to net 1oans...........cceevvvevreeccecnes 0.91% 0.82% 239% 2.74% 2.14 %

In the review of loans for both delinquency and collateral sufficiency, management concluded that there were a number of
loans that lacked the ability to repay in accordance with contractual terms. The decision to place loans or leases on a non-
accrual status is made on an individual basis after considering factors pertaining to each specific loan.

The majority of non-performing assets for the period is attributed to non-accruing commercial business loans and non-
accruing real estate loans in the process of foreclosure. Most of these loans are collateralized, thereby mitigating the Bank’s
potential for loss. In 2006, non-performing loans were $3,439,000 compared to $3,837,000 at year-end 2007. There were no
repossessed assets at December 31, 2007 or 2006. ORE at December 31, 2007 consisted of one property which had an
agreement to sell pending. At year-end 2006, five residential properties were owned, all of which were sold. The Special
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Assets Department had developed specific action plans for each of the Company’s non-performing loans. During 2007,
many of those plans came to a conclusion resulting in repayments of non-performing loans. The non-accrual loans
aggregated $3,811,000 at December 31, 2007, an increase of $453,000 from year-end 2006. During 2007 approximately
$3,075,000 of loans were placed in non-accrual status. These were partially offset by payoffs or pay-downs of $1,888,000,
charge-offs of $236,000, $352,000 in transfers to ORE and $146,000 of loans that returned to performing status. Loans past
due 90 days or more and accruing declined 68%, to $26,000, at December 31, 2007. The non-accrual loans rose by 14 % to
$3.811,000 and ORE declined by 46 % to $107,000. These three items comprise the non-performing assets of $3,944,000.
The percentage of non-performing assets to total assets was 0.67% at December 31, 2007, a minor change from 0.65% at
December 31, 2006. Non-performing loans to net loans were 0.91% at December 31, 2007, and 0.82% at December 31,
2006.

Repossessed assets consist of previously financed vehicles held-for-sale. Subsequent to the loan or lease maturity, the
borrower or lessee defaulted on their contract and the Company repossessed the unit. Repossessed assets are sold through
either a private or public sale and any deficiency balance from the sale of the asset is charged to the allowance for loan losses.
The Bank terminated its automobile leasing business in 2005,

Payments received on non-accrual loans are recognized on a cash basis. Payments are first applied against the outstanding
principal balance, then to the recovery of any charged-off loan amounts. Any excess is treated as a recovery of interest
income. During 2007, the Bark collected $93,000 of interest income recognized on the cash basis. If the non-accrual loans
that were outstanding as of December 31, 2007 had been performing in accordance with their original terms, the Bank would
have recognized interest income with respect to such loans of $391,000 for the year ended December 31, 2007.

Bank premises and equipment, net

Net of accumulated depreciation and disposals, premises and equipment increased $1,640,467. During 2007, the Bank
purchased or transferred from construction in process, a component of other assets in the consolidated balance sheet,
approximately $3,293,000 compared to $852,000 in 2006. The increase was principally from the completion of the
Company’s Green Ridge branch relocation construction project.

Foreclosed assets held-for-sale

Other Real Estate Owned

ORE was $107,000 at December 31, 2007 consisting of one property, the sale of which is pending. The five residential
properties which were owned at year end 2006 have all been sold.

Cash surrender value of bank owned life insurance

The Bank maintains bank owned life insurance (BOLI) for a chosen group of employees, namely its officers, where the Bank
is the owner and sole beneficiary of the policies. BOLI is classified as a non-interest earning asset. Increases in the cash
surrender value are recorded as non-interest income. The BOLI is profitable from the appreciation of the cash surrender
values of the pool of insurance and its tax-free advantage to the Bank. This profitability is used to offsct a portion of current
and future employee benefit costs. The BOLI can be liquidated, if necessary, with associated tax costs. However, the Bank
intends to hold this pool of insurance, because it provides income that enhances the Bank’s capital position. Therefore, the
Bank has not provided for deferred income taxes on the earnings from the increase in cash surrender value.

Other assets

The decrease in other assets of $384,000, or 8%, from December 31, 2006 was due mostly to the reduction of capitalized
interim construction costs for the Bank’s branch expansion and other projects and a decrease in the net deferred tax asset,
partially offset by an increase in the market value of the Bank’s derivative contract. See Note 10, “Income Taxes,” for an
analysis of the net deferred tax asset. For a further discussion on the Bank’s derivative contract, see Note 1, “Nature of
operations and summary of significant accounting policies,” and Note 12, “Fair value of financial instruments and
derivatives,” contained within the notes to consolidated financial statements in Part 11, ltem 8.
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Results of Operations

Earnings Summary

The Company’s results of operations depend primarily on net interest income. Net interest income is the difference between
interest income and interest expense. Interest income is generated from yields on interest-earning assets, which consist
principally of loans and investment securities. Interest expense is incurred from rates paid on interest-bearing liabilities,
which consist of deposits and borrowings. Net interest income is determined by the Company’s interest rate spread (i.e., the
difference between the yiclds earned on its interest-earning assets and the rates paid on its interest-bearing liabilities) and the
relative amounts of interest-carning assets and interest-bearing liabilities, The interest rate spread is significantly impacted
by: changes in interest rates and market yield curves and their related impact on cash flows; the composition and
characteristics of interest-earning assets and interest-bearing liabilities; differences in the maturity and re-pricing
characteristics of assets compared to the maturity and re-pricing characteristics of the liabilities that fund them and by the
competition in our marketplace.

The Company’s profitability is also affected by the level of its non-interest income and expenses, provision for loan losses
and provision for income taxes. Non-interest income consists mostly of service charges on the Bank’s loan and deposit
products, trust and asset management service fees, increases in the cash surrender value of the BOLI, net gains or losses from
the sales of loans and securities AFS and from the sales of ORE. Non-interest expense consists of compensation and related
employee benefit expenses, occupancy, equipment, data processing, advertising, marketing, professional fees, insurance and
other operating overhead.

The Company’s profitability is significantly affected by general economic and competitive conditions, changes in market
interest rates, government policies and actions of regulatory authorities. The Company’s loan portfolio is comprised
principally of commercial and commercial real estate loans. The properties underlying the Company’s mortgages are
concentrated in Northeastern Pennsylvania. Credit risk, which represents the possibility of the Company not recovering
amounts due from its borrowers, is significantly related to local economic conditions in the areas where the properties are
located as well as the Company’s underwriting standards. Economic conditions affect the market value of the underlying
collateral as well as the levels of adeguate cash flow and revenue generation from income-producing commercial properties.

Overview

Net income for the year ended December 31, 2007 was $4,612,000, compared to $4,125,000 for the year ended December 31,
2006. During the same periods, diluted earnings per common share was $2.23 and $2.01, respectively. For the year ended
December 31, 2007, the Company’s return on average assets (ROA) and return on average sharcholders’ equity (ROE) were
0.80% and 8.65%, respectively, compared to ¢.73% and 8.31% for the vear ended December 31, 2006. The improvement in
net income was primarily from a 3%, or $451,000, increase in net interest income, a 15%, or $683,000, rise in non-interest
income, partially offset be a 5%, or $758,000, increase in operating expenses. Also contributing to the improvement was a
credit for loan losses of $60,000 during the twelve months ended December 31, 2007 compared to a provision of $325,000 in
2006. The improvement in ROA and ROE was largely due to the improvement in net income.
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Net interest income

The following table sets forth a comparison of average balances of assets and liabilities and their related net tax equivalent
yields and rates for 2007, 2006 and 2005 (dollars in thousands):

2007 1006 2008
Average Yield/ Average Yield/ Average Yield/
balance Interest rate balance Interest rate balance Interest rate
Interest-eaming assets
Interest-bearing deposits ........ § 184 8§ 9 481% $ 240 % 9 382% § 540 % 14 2.67%
Investments:
LS. government agencies...... 34,682 1,724 4.97 43,299 1,795 4.15 31,976 1,171 3.66
Mortgage-backed
SECUFIHES ..o eeieiriienins 51,781 2,540 491 42,999 1,944 4.52 54,257 2,328 4.29
State and municipal............... 12,267 780 6.36 14,485 927 6.40 13,203 337 6.34
Other ..o 17,487 1,175 6.72 14,536 946 6.50 14,126 643 4.55
Total investments............ 116,217 6,219 5.35 115,319 5,612 4.87 113,562 4,979 4.38
Loans:
Commercial......ccoovvevervrrnninns 220,968 16,458 7.45 219,482 16,018 7.30 216,385 13,646 6.31
Consumer......ccco... 68,395 4,625 6.76 65,011 4,200 6.46 53,675 3,548 6.61
Real estate .........cccoreevvcrenncnne 134,869 8,360 6.20 133,279 8,101 6.08 120,407 7,237 6.01
Direct financing leases ........... 549 34 6.16 618 18 6.18 1,387 83 6.01
Total toans...........ccoeoveen. 424,781 29477 6.94 418,390 28,357 6.78 391,854 24514 6.26
Federal funds sold .................. 1,948 103 5.28 2,479 123 4.97 1,866 49 2.60
Total earning assets.... $543,130 § 35,808 6.59 % $536428 § 34,101 6.36 % $507,822 § 29,556 5.82%
Interest-bearing liabilities
Deposits:
Savings $ 41,055 § S5t 1.24% $ 46422 § 620 1.34% § 48273 § 450 0.93%
NOW... 67,489 1,837 272 69,138 1,880 2.72 52,244 666 1.28
MMDA... rereereeeeennene 84,000 3,658 4.35 68,476 2,948 430 24183 438 1.81
CDs < $100 000 94,420 4,173 4.42 87,345 3,235 3.70 85612 2,534 2.96
CDs > $100,000 .. 66,998 3,168 4.73 67,129 2,791 4,16 89,076 2,821 3.17
Clubs... 1,908 23 1.21 1,750 19 1.08 1,781 19 1.07
Total deposus e 335,870 13,370 3.76 340,260 11,493 338 301,169 6,928 2.30
Repurchase agreements.......... 19,580 465 2.38 23,39 624 2.67 35,106 634 1.81
Borrowed funds...........ccoee. 71,573 3,825 5.34 79,627 4,244 5.33 82,114 4,159 5.06
Total interest-bearing
liabilities ............... $447,023 § 17660 3.95% $443,278 § 16,361 3.69% 3418389 $ 1i,721 2.80%
Net interest income ................ $ 18,148 3 17!740 $ 17,835
Net interest spread........coovnne 2.64% 2.67% 3.02%
Net interest margin................. 3.34% 331 % 3.51%
Total average assets ............... 3575458 $564,923 $536,262
Average
non-interest- bearmg
deposits ovvveee e 370,606 § 68,224 ¥ 67,093

[n the above table, interest income was adjusted to a tax-equivalent basis, using the corporate federal tax rate of 34%, to recognize the
income from tax-exempt interest-eaming assets as if the interest was taxable, This treatment allows a uniform comparison between yields
on interest-earning assets. Loans include loans AFS and non-accrual loans but exclude the allowance for loan losses. Within consumer
loans, direct financing leases are presented net of uneamed interest. Average balances are based on amortized cost and do not reflect
unrealized gains or losses. Net interest rate spread represents the difference between the average yleld on average interest-earning assets
and the average cost of average interesi-bearing liabilities. Net interest margin represents net interest income divided by total average
interest-carning assets.




Changes in net interest income are a function of both changes in interest rates and changes in volume of interest-earning
assets and interest-bearing liabilities. The following table presents the extent to which changes in interest rates and changes
in volumes of interest-earning assets and interest-bearing liabilities have affected the Bank’s interest income and interest
expense during the periods indicated. Information is provided in each category with respect to (1) the changes attributable to
changes in volume (changes in volume multiplied by the prior period rate), (2) the changes attributable to changes in interest
rates (changes in rates multiplied by prior period volume) and (3) the net change. The combined effect of changes in both
volume and rate has been allocated proportionately to the change due to volume and the change due to rate. Tax-gxempt
income was not converted to a tax-equivalent basis on the rate/volume analysis (dollars in thousands):

Years ended December 31,

2007 compared to 2006 2006 compared to 2005
Increase (decrease) due to Increase (decrease} due to
Volume Rate Total Volume Rate Total
Interest income:
Loans and leases:
MOTIZAZE ..ottt $ 97 § 183 % 260 § 781 & 8 § 863
CoOmMMETCIALL...oiiveei ittt 108 318 426 194 2,180 2,374
COMSUITIET ... sr s srs s ree e ee e ee e s eae e eanas 219 203 422 682 (73) 609
Total loans and 1€aSeS......cooovveeeeeecciiieice e e 424 684 1,108 1,657 2,189 3,846
Investment securities, interest-bearing deposits and
federal funds sold ... 14 628 642 86 577 663
Total INterest INCOME .......ovicveevvvcereceeeeree e eeee e 438 1,312 1,750 1,743 2,766 4,509
Interest expense:
Deposits:
Certificates of deposit greater than $100,000................... (5) 382 377 (793) 754 (39
L0 11+ T U U O UR SN 520 980 1,500 1,414 3,190 4,604
Total deposits .....co.vecveiiivecciree e 515 1,362 1,877 621 3,944 4,565
Other interest-bearing liabilities..........ccovevnnecinene, (558) (20) (578) (620} 695 75
Total interest eXPense.......oovvvirierererrenrereeeneernesnnnes (43) 1,342 1,299 i 4,639 4,640
Net interest iNCOME ...........coovevnieiererecrsiseesneens $ 481 & (30) § 451 §1,742 (1,873 § (131

The slope of the yield curve, which became inverted, or negatively sloped in 2006, has returned to a more normial, positive
slope in 2007. An inverted yield curve presents challenges to banks because short-term rates are higher than long-term rates
which tends to compress net interest income because deposit and borrowing terms are generally shorter than investment and
loan terms. The Federal Open Market Committee (FOMC) reduced short-term interest rates three times during the second
half of 2007. In response to these actions, national prime also decreased during 2007. National prime, the benchmark rate
banks use to set rates on various lending and other interest sensitive products, also decreased three times for a total decrease
of 100 basis points from 8.25% at December 31, 2006 to 7.25% at December 31, 2007, As a result of the rate reductions, the
yield curve has become more positively sloped thereby providing opportunities for the Bank to bolster its net interest margin.

Though national prime decreased 100 basis points, the weighted-average national prime rate increased to 8.05% in 2007
compared to 7.96% in 2006. This phenomenon was caused by the first rate reduction occurring well into the third quarter.
Thus, most of the 2007 consisted of market rates that existed at the year-end 2006 level. The effect of this average increase
pressured rates paid on interest-bearing liabilities and was only marginally offset by the effect rates had on interest earning-
assets. During 2008, the FOMC has already reduced short-term rates two times, by 125 basis points in January. The Bank’s
asset liability committee meets regularly to combat the rapidly downward adjustments in order to minimize the effect rate
changes will have on net interest income during what appears to be the beginning of a period of rate easing and the Bank will,
no doubt, operate in a relatively lower interest rate environment in 2008 than what existed during 2006 and most of 2007.

As market rates fall along with national prime, loan originations, renewing commercial and residential loans and lines of
credit should price below the average 2007 portfolio yields. In addition, the decrease in the Treasury yields and other capital
market rates could have an unfavorable impact on the Bank’s total investment portfolio by decreasing yields, which had been
on the rise during 2005 and continued through 2007. As expected, the relative and predominantly higher interest rate
environment during 2007 continued to have a positive influence on the Bank’s interest-earning assets. Total interest income
increased 5%, from $33,530,000 in 2006 to $35,279,000 in 2007 and further, caused the tax-equivalent yield on earning
assets to increase 23 basis points. The Bank should begin a period of yield decline on its interest-earning assets during the
current interest rate environment.
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Interest expense increased $1,299,000, or 8%, from $16,361,000 in 2006 to $17,660,000 in 2007. The cost of interest-
bearing liabilities increased 26 basis points in 2007. The higher interest rate environment that was prevalent throughout most
of 2007, in conjunction with higher average interest-bearing deposit balances, necessitated the need for the Bank to increase
offering rates on its deposit products. As a result, interest expense on deposits increased $1.877,000 during 2007, of which
approximately $1,362,000 was caused by a 38 basis point rise in average rates. Average balances in interest-bearing deposits
increased by $15,610,000 during 2007, resulting in an additional $515,000 in expense. Interest expense on borrowings,
including repurchase agreements, declined $578,000 during 2007, due almost entirely to lower average balances.

As a result of the mix of the Bank’s interest-sensitive assets and liabilities and the varying effects the slope of the interest rate
yield curve has had during 2007, net interest income increased $451,000, or 3%, from $17,168,000 in 2006 to $17,619,000 in
2007. On a tax-equivalent basis, the net interest rate spread declined 3 basis points from 2.67% to 2.64% and the tax-
equivalent margin improved 3 basis points, from 3.31% in 2006 to 3.34% in 2007, respectively. The decrease in spread was
due to a larger increase in rates paid on interest-bearing liabilities than the increase in yields from interest-earning assets. The
margin improvement was from more net interest income in 2007 compared to 2006.

Provision for loan losses

The provision for loan losses represents the necessary amount to charge against current earnings, the purpose of which is to
increase the allowance for loan losses to a level that represents management’s best estimate of known and inherent losses in
the Bank’s loan portfolio. Loans and leases determined to be uncollectible are charged-off against the allowance for loan
losses. The required amount of the provision for loan losses, based upon the adequate level of the allowance for loan losses,
is subject to ongoing analysis of the loan portfolio. The Bank’s Special Asset Committee meets periodically to review
problem loans and leases. The committee is comprised of Bank management, including the chief risk officer, loan workout
officers and collection personnel. The committee reports quarterly to the Credit Administration Committee of the Board of
Directors.

Management continuously reviews the risks inherent in the loan and lease portfolio. Specific factors used to evaluate the
adequacy of the loan loss provision during the formal process include:

« specific loans that could have loss potential,

» levels of and trends in delinquencies and non-accrual loans;
» levels of and trends in charge-offs and recoveries;

« trends in volume and terms of loans;

»  changes in risk selection and underwriting standards;

»  changes in lending policies, procedures and practices;

= experience, ability and depth of lending management;

+  national and local economic trends and conditions; and

»  changes in credit concentrations.

A credit for loan losses of $60,000 was made to the allowance during 2007 compared to a provision for loan losses of
$325,000 for the year ended December 31, 2006. In 2007, the Company did not need to make provisions and reduced the
allowance for loan losses due to a reduced level of internally criticized and classified loans. These reductions occurred as a
result of some adversely rated loans which were either upgraded in rating due to credit improvement or were repaid. The
allowance for loan losses was $4,824,000 at December 31, 2007, compared to $5,444,000 at December 31, 2006. The
reduced level of the allowance this year was due to the improved quality of the portfolio mentioned previously.

Other income

Other (non-interest) income consists of service charges or fees collected on the Bank’s various deposit and loan products,
fees from trust, asset management and other financial services, net mortgage servicing revenue, the increase in the cash
surrender value of the BOLI, the net realized gains and losses from the sales of investment securities, loans and foreclosed
assets held-for-sale and other various classifications of non-interest related income.

For the year ended December 31, 2007, total other income was $5,205,000, an increase of $683,000, or 15%, from the
$4,522,000 recorded during 2006. In 2007, the Company experienced growth in service charges on deposit accounts of
$376,000, or 14%, and also recognized net gains of $144,000 from sales of foreclosed properties held-for-sale. An increase
in overdraft charges was the principal reason for growth in deposit service charges. The significant gain from the sale of
foreclosed properties was the result of excess collateral value compared to the carrying value. Further contributing to the
increase in non-interest income were: increased sales activities of residential mortgages into the secondary market resulting in
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$62,000 more of gains compared to 2006; increases in BOLI earnings; higher revenue from financial services activities; and
the disposal of premises and equipment that produced net gains of $98,000 in 2007 compared to net losses of $20,000 in
2006. Included in 2007 were the sales of two commercial facilities previously leased to non-related third parties.

Other expense

For the twelve months ended December 31, 2007, other operating expenses were $16,637,000 compared to $15,878,000 for
the twelve months ended December 31, 2006, a $758.000 or 5% increase. Merit and performance-based incentive increases
caused salary and employee benefit costs to rise $377,000, or 5%, for the twelve months ended December 31, 2007 compared
to the same period in 2006. Advertising and marketing related expenses were up $144,000, or 27%, due to activities
associated with the grand opening and relocation project of Company’s Green Ridge branch office. Other expenses increased
$225,000, or 6%, in 2007 compared to 2006 caused by increased professional services, ATM expense and other branch
related operating costs,

The ratio of non-interest expense less non-interest income (expense ratio) to average assets at December 31, 2007 and 2006
was 2.01% and 2.02%, respectively. The overhead expense ratio of the Company remains comparable to the Uniform Bank
Performance Report peer comparison group ratio,

Provision for income taxes
Income before provision for income taxes in 2007 increased $760,000 from 2006. The effective federal income tax rate was
26.2% and 24.8% for the years ending December 31, 2007 and 2006, respectively. The increase in the effective tax rate is

attributed to an increase in pre-tax income and a decrease in tax-free income.

Comparison of Financial Condition as of December 31, 2006

and 2005 and Results of Operations for each of the Years then Ended

Financial Condition

Overview

Consolidated assets increased $18,257,000, or 3%, during the year ended December 31, 2006 to $562,318,000. The increase
resulted from increases in total deposits of $30,836,000 and total shareholders® equity of $2,766,000, partially offset by a net
decrease in total borrowings of $16,285,000. During 2006, the carrying values of total loans and total securities increased
$13,748,000 and $2,732,000, respectively, while cash and cash equivalents increased $1,206,000.

Deposits

Total deposits increased $30,836,000, or 8%, during 2006 to $410,335,000. The growth was principally due to increases in
money market and NOW accounts of $20,775,000 and $15,074,000, or 40% and 30%, respectively. The positive
relationships we have garnered with our customers in the public sector continued to strengthen our position in NOW
accounts. The increase in money market accounts was due to continued success in the implementation of deposit-gathering
strategies in conjunction with increased short-term promotional interest rates and transfers from less attractive longer-term
certificates of deposit. Though the Bank has introduced some promotional strategies for shorter-term certificates of deposit,
management did not aggressively pursue CDs; rather, most of the efforts were targeted 1o attract transactional core deposits
such as NOW and money market accounts. Certificate of deposit accounts continued to shrink with a sustaining shift of
depositor sentiment toward more attractive interest-bearing core deposits. Certificate of deposit accounts represented 38% of
total deposits with a significant portion scheduled to mature in 2007. DDAs increased 5% compared to December 31, 2005
and the Bank continues to experience growth from both its personal and non-personal relationship customers.

Short-term borrowings

At December 31, 2006 and 2005, sweep accounts represented 70% and 66%, respectively, of total repurchase agreements.
Customer liquidity and investment needs and changes in interest rates caused a net decrease in repurchase agreements from
$26,913,000, at December 31, 2005, to $22,224,000 at December 31, 2006. This variance included a shift from repurchase
agreements to NOW and money market deposit accounts.
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A combination of loan demand, investment in branch expansion projects and a desire to strategically reduce dependency on
fong-term financing has resulted in an increase in overnight borrowings of $9,626,000 at December 31, 2006 compared to
December 31, 2005.

Long-term debt

The weighted-average rate in effect on funds borrowed at December 31, 2006, was 5.15% compared to 5.16% as of
December 31, 2005. The 2006 weighted-average rate was 121 basis points below the tax-equivalent yield of 6.36% on
average carning assets for the year ended December 31, 2006, During the third quarter of 2006, the Bank refinanced a
portion of its long-term debt with the FHLB in order to reduce interest expense. The Bank repaid a 516,000,000 convertible
select 6.22% advance scheduled to mature in 2010. Simultaneously, the Bank entered into a new FHLB $16,000,000
convertible select 5.26% advance with a scheduled maturity in 2016. The immediate effect of the 96 basis point decrease in
rate was to reduce interest expense by approximately $154,000 per annum.

Long-term debt decreased $21,168,000, or 25%, during 2006, to $62,536,000. The decrease was the result of increased
deposit generation that was used to repay FHLB advances during the second and third quarters of 2006 and the Bank’s desire
to reduce its dependency on this long-term funding source.

Accrued expenses and other liabilities

Net increases in interest-bearing liabilities along with higher interest rates caused an increase in accrued interest payable
which was the primary contributor to an increase in accrued expenses and other liabilities of $940,000, or 29%, from
December 31, 2005 to December 31, 2006.

Investments

Total investments increased $2,732,000, net of $221,000 appreciation in the market value of AFS investments. Throughout
2006, tactics were undertaken to re-position the portfolio to meet earnings and liquidity objectives. These measures
contributed to the increase in the yield of the portfolio 49 basis points in 2006 compared to 2005. The carrying value of
investment securities, at December 31, 2006, was $100,411,000, or 18%, of total assets compared to $97,679,000, or 18%, as
of December 31, 2005. Mortgage-backed securities continued to dominate the composition of the total investment portfolio
representing 43% at December 31, 2006, essentially unchanged from 44% at December 31, 2005.

During 2006, interest rates throughout the yield curve continued to increase with the most significant increase at the short-
end and the least significant at the long-end, basically resulting in a continued period of yield curve inversion. This
environment continued to preclude structured growth strategies, especially for earning assets that are market driven, such as
the investment portfolio, due to the lack of investments that produced adequate interest rate spreads to the Bank’s funding
sources. Because of this unusual interest rate environment, the Bank used cash flows from its investment portfolio to repay
borrowings and fund growth in the loan portfolio.

AFS securities are stated net of unrealized gains and losses. As of December 31, 2006, AFS debt securities were recorded
with a net unrealized loss in the amount of $1,656,000. At December 31, 2006 AFS equity securities were recorded at
$471,000 including an unrealized gain of $192,000.

The tax-equivalent yield on debt securities by stated maturity date at December 31, 2006, was as follows:

One year One through Five through More than
or less five years ten years ten years Total
U.S. government agencies . .......oweneieneens — % 435 % 438 % 564 % 4.65 %
Mortgage-backed SECUFITIES....oovvirirriereenen. — 3.78 3.82 5.01 4.69
State & municipal subdivisions.........ccco.... — — 5.77 5.71 5.71
Preferred term SECUNties «....ovviiiniriinnnen, — — — 7.02 7.02
Total debt securities ........coveverevnverrinnn : — % 4.11 % 4.27 % 5.56 % 5.04 %

32




Loans and leases

Gross loans and leases increased $13,514,000, or 3%, from $409,129,000 at December 31, 2005, to $422,643,000 at
December 31, 2006. Gross loans represented 75% of total assets at December 31, 2006 and December 31, 2005.

In 2006, the Bank originated $17,152,000 of commercial loans, $21,431,000 of mortgage loans and $29,565,000 of consumer
loans. This compares to $27,030,000, $39,398,000 and $38,763,000, respectively, in 2005. Included in mortgage loans was
$11,111,000 of real estate construction lines in 2006 and $18,128,000 in 2005. In addition for 2006, the Bank originated
lines of credit in the amounts of $29,389,000 for commercial borrowers and $6,768,000 in home equity and other consumer
lines of credit.

Though loan originations were down in 2006 compared to 2005, payoffs and pay-downs subsided resulting in a net increase
in the loan portfolio.

Commercial and Commercial Real Estate Loans:

Net of scheduled principal curtailments, loan participation sales and pre-payments, commercial loans increased $1,924,000 to
$218,213,000 from $216,289,000, or almost 1% during 2006.

Residential Real Estate Loans:

Residential real estate loans increased $8,822,000, or 8%, to $112,743,000. Due to the interest rate environment, and lower
amounts of pay-downs and payoffs growth was primarily from converted construction loans and to a lesser extent, sales
campaigns.

Consumer Loans:
Consumer loans increased $3,659,000, or 5%, during 2006. Success in the spring and fall sales campaigns, with added
advertising and marketing, along with less pay-downs, helped boost the home equity installment program by more than

$8,000,000. These campaigns more than offset declines in home equity lines of credit, during a period of a rising prime rate.

Real Estate Construction Loans:

Real estate construction loans decreased by $829,000, or 6%, at December 31, 2006 compared to December 31, 2005, The
commercial construction loans did not quite offset the decline in the residential construction loan balance but both categories
remained strong.

Direct Financing Leases:

The balance represents tax-free leasing arrangements provided to municipal customers. For 2006, the activity represented
scheduled annual run-off. In years prior to 2003, the balance also consisted of automobile lease financing.

Loans available-for-sale

Loans AFS, at December 31, 2006, were $122,000, with a corresponding fair value of $123,000, compared to $429,000 and
$434,000, respectively, at December 31, 2005. During 2006, residential mortgages and student loans with principal balances
of $11,792,000 and $707,000, respectively, were sold into the secondary market and gains of approximately $98,000 were
recognized.

At December 31, 2006 and 2005, the servicing portfolio balance of sold residential mortgage loans was $53,112,000 and
$47,835,000, respectively.

Allowance for loan losses
Total charge-offs, net of recoveries, for the year ended December 31, 2006 were $866,000, compared to $833,000 in 2005.

Combined consumer loan and lease financing net charge-offs increased slightly from $141,000 at December 31, 2005 to
$161,000 through December 31, 2006, Commercial loan net charge-offs were $597_ 000 for the year 2006 compared to
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$682,000 for 2005. Mortgage loan net charge-ofts were $108,000 in 2006 compared to $10,000 in 2005. The ratic of
allowance for loan losses to total loans was 1.29% at December 31, 2006 compared to 1.46% at December 31, 2005.

Neon-performing assets

In 2006, non-performing loans were reduced by $6,211,000, or 64%, to $3,439,000, There were no repossessed assets at
December 31, 2006 compared to $19,000 in 2005. At year-end 2006 ORE totaled $197,000. There was no ORE at year-end
2005. Five residential propertics were owned at year-end 2006, four of which were under agreements to be sold. The Special
Assets Department had developed specific action plans for each of the Company’s non-performing loans. During 2006,
several of those plans came to a conclusion resulting in a substantial reduction of non-performing loans. The non-accrual
loans were $3,358,000 at December 31, 2006, a reduction of $6,095,000, or 64%, from year-end 2005. During 2006
approximately $1,583,000 of loans were placed in non-accrual status. This was more than offset by payoffs or pay-downs of
$2,485,000, charge-offs of $909,000, $240,000 in transfers to foreclosed assets and $4,045,000 of loans that returned to
performing status. Loans past due 90 days or more and accruing declined by 59%, to $81,000, at December 31, 2006. Asa
result, the percentage of non-performing assets to total assets declined to 0.65% at December 31, 2006, compared to 1.78%
for the prior year-end and non-performing loans to net loans declined to 0.82% at December 31, 2006, from 2.39% at
December 31, 2005.

During 2006, the Bank collected $279,000 of interest income recognized on the cash basis. [f the non-accrual loans that were
outstanding as of December 31, 2006 had been performing in accordance with their original terms, the Bank would have
recognized interest income, with respect to such loans, of $332,000 for the year ended December 31, 2006.

Bank premises and equipment, net

The Bank’s premises and equipment decreased $359,000, net of accumulated depreciation. During 2006, the Bank purchased
or transferred from construction in process, a component of other assets, approximately $852,000, net of disposals compared
to $1,724,000 in 2005.

Foreclosed assets held-for-sale

Other Real Estate Owned

ORE was $197,000. Five residential properties were owned at year end 2006, four of which were under agreements to be
sold. There were no foreclosed real estate properties owned at December 31, 2005.

Repossessed Assets

Improvement in the turn-around time on sales of repossessed vehicles and the termination of the Bank’s automobile leasing
business in 2005 reduced the repossessed asset balance from $19,000 at December 31, 2005 to $0 as of December 31, 2006.

Terminated lease assets held-for-sale

At the end of 2005, the Bank’s vehicle lease program terminated. Terminated lease assets were vehicles that were lease-
financed by the Company with contractual terms fulfilled. Pursuant to the lease agreement, the vehicles were returned to the
Company and recorded on the books in other assets at the residual value. These vehicles were subsequently sold as soon as
practicable. The difference between sales price and residual value, if any, was charged against current earnings.
Simultaneously, a claim was submitted to the Company’s residual insurance carrier for payment. Receipt of any residual
insurance proceeds was then credited to current earnings. All vehicles which were returned to the Bank were subsequently
sold prior to December 31, 2005. During 2006, the Bank received $15,000 from residual insurance claims for vehicles that
were sold at the end of 2005,

Accrued interest receivable and other assets
The increase in accrued interest receivable of $543,000, or 28%, from December 31, 2005 to December 31, 2006 was
principally due to higher average balances of interest-earning assets as well as an increase in the number of days in the

accrual compared to the prior year. The increase in other assets of $755,000, or 19%, for the same period, was due mostly to
capitalized interim construction costs for the Bank’s Green Ridge branch expansion and other projects and the purchase of an
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interest rate floor derivative contract. These increases were partially offset by a cumulative effect adjustment related to the
Bank’s investment in a limited partnership.

Results of Operations

Earnings Summary

Net income for the year ended December 31, 2006 was $4,125,000, compared to $4,592,000 for the year ended December 31,
2005. During the same periods, diluted earnings per common share was $2.01 and $2.25, respectively. For the year ended
December 31, 2006, the Company’s return on average assets (ROA) and return on average shareholders’ equity (ROE) were
0.73% and 8.31%, respectively, compared to 0.86% and 9.64% for the year ended December 31, 2005. The decline in net
income was caused primarily by a 9% increase in non-interest expenses. The provision for loan losses declined by $505,000
and non-interest income increased by $372,000, or 9%, while net interest income was down marginally; less than 1% for the
vear ended December 31, 2006 compared to year end 2005. The decrease in ROA and ROE was primarily due to the
variance in net income.

Net interest income

The slope of the yield curve, which flattened in 2004 and continued to flatten in 2005 became inverted, or negatively sloped
in 2006. An inverted yield curve presents challenges to all banks because short-term rates are higher than long-term rates.
This situation is unusual and tends to squeeze net interest income because deposit and borrowing terms are generally shorter
than investment and loan terms. The FOMC increased short-term interest rates four times in the first half of 2006. In
response to these actions, national prime also increased during 2006. National prime, the benchmark rate banks use to set
rates on various lending and other interest-sensitive products, also increased four times for a total increase of 100 basis points
from 7.25% at December 31, 2005 to 8.25% at December 31, 2006.

As expected, the relative and predominantly higher interest rate environment during 2006 continued to have a positive
influence on the Bank’s interest-earning assets. Total interest income increased 15.5%, from $29,020,000 in 2005 to
$33,530,000 in 2006 and further, caused the tax-equivalent yield on earning assets to increase 54 basis points.

Interest expense increased $4,640,000, or 39.6%, from $11,721,000 in 2005 to $16,361,000 in 2006. The cost of interest-
bearing liabilities increased 89 basis points in 2006, The increased interest rate environment, in particular at the short- to
mid-term range of the yield curve, in conjunction with deposit gathering strategies, required the Bank to increase offering
rates on its deposit products. The bulk of the rate increases impacted the Bank’s interest expense on customer deposits,
which increased $4,565,000 during 2006 of which over $3,944,000 was caused by a 108 basis point rise in rates. Average
balances in deposits increased by more than $39,000,000 during 2006, with growth in most all categories, resulting in
additional interest expense of $621,000 during 2006.

The weighted-average interest rate paid on borrowed funds increased 27 basis points in 2006 compared to 2005 largely due to
higher rates paid on overnight borrowings. During the third quarter of 2006, the Bank refinanced a portion of its long-term
debt with the FHLB in order to reduce interest expense. The immediate impact of the refinance was a reduction of interest
expense by approximately $154,000 per annum.

As a result of the mix of the Bank’s interest-sensitive assets and liabilities and the varying effects that the slope of the interest
rate yield curve had during 2006, net interest income decreased $131,000, or 0.8%, from $17,299,000 in 2005 to $17,168,000
in 2006. On a tax-equivalent basis, the net interest rate spread declined 35 basis points from 3.02% to 2.67% and the tax-
equivalent margin declined 20 basis points, from 3.51% in 2005 to 3.31% in 2006, respectively.

Provision for loan losses

The provision for loan losses was $325,000 for the year ended December 31, 2006, compared to $830,000 in 2005. Asa
result, the allowance for loan losses was $5,444,000 at December 31, 2006, compared to $5,985,000 at December 31, 2005.
The significant reduction in the provision was due to the improved quality of the portfolio coupled with a decline in loans
migrating to non-performing status. Non-performing loans declined $6,211,000, or 64%, to $3,439,000 at December 31,
2006, from $9,650,000, at December 31, 2005. The reduction was both in nen-accrual loans which declined by $6,095,000
to $3,358,000 at December 31, 2006, and a decline of $116,000 in loans past due 90 days or more and still accruing. The
Bank continued to give heightened attention to the collection of sub-performing loans which resulted in lower levels of
delinquencies and non-accruing loans for 2006.
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Other income

For the year ended December 31, 2006, other income was $4,522.000, an increase of $372,000, or 9.0%, from $4,150,000 for
the year ended December 31, 2005. The primary cause of the increase was the lack of losses incurred from the sales of
terminated and previously leased automobiles. During 2005, the Company recognized $335,000 in losses from these vehicle
sales compared to residual insurance claims of $15,000 in 2006, The automobile leasing program expired in 2005, In
addition, the strategy to sell more loans into the secondary market resulted in gains of $98,000 in 2006 compared to $10,000
in 2005. During 2005, the gains recognized on foreclosed assets included proceeds from an insurance claim resulting in a
gain of $57,000, compared to a minor loss in 2006.

Other expense

For the twelve months ended December 31, 2006, other operating expenses were $15,878,000 or $1,316,000 more than the
$14,562,000 recorded in the same period of 2005. Salary and employee benefit costs increased $1,235,000, or 17.4%, for the
twelve months ended December 31, 2006 compared to the same period in 2005. The increase was due to pay increases,
increased number of full-time equivalent employees due to staffing needs, one-time voluntary separation benefit payments
and stock-based compensation expense.

Premises and equipment increased $190,000, or 6.4%, in 2006 compared to 2005. Equipment maintenance increased by
approximately $58,000 due to more repairs, rental and maintenance in 2006. Occupancy related expense increases were
caused by increased property insurance, facility maintenance and increased rent due to activities related to the branch
expansion project.

Advertising and marketing related expenses were down $81,000, or 13.0%, during the year ended 2006 compared to the year
ended 2005. The decrease was related to expense savings tactics implemented during the fourth quarter of 2006 caused by
expense overruns in some of the other strategic functional areas. As a result, some of the advertising programs, use of mass
media, direct mail, community events and sponsorships, slated for the fourth quarter of 2006, were either cancelled or
deferred to 2007 where the primary focus would be branch opening projects,

The ratio of non-interest expense less non-interest income (expense ratio) to average assets at December 31, 2006 and 2005
was 2.02% and 1.93%, respectively. The increase was caused predominantly by higher overhead expenses and was
comparative to the Uniform Bank Performance Report peer comparison group percentage.

Provision for income taxes

Income before provision for income taxes in 2006 decreased $570,000 from 2005. The effective federal income tax rate was

24.8% and 24.2% for the years ending December 31, 2006 and 2003, respectively. The minor increase in the effective tax
rate was attributed to an increase in temporary differences that gave rise to an increase in pre-tax income.
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Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements and Contractual Qbligations

The Company is a party to financial instruments with off-balance sheet risk in the normal course of business in order to meet
the financing needs of its customers and in connection with the overall interest rate management strategy. These instruments
involve, to a varying degree, elements of credit, interest rate and liquidity risk. In accordance with GAAP, these instruments
are either not recorded in the consolidated financial statements or are recorded in amounts that differ from the notional
amounts. Such instruments primarily include lending commitments, lease obligations and derivative instruments. For a
further discussion on the Bank’s derivative instrument, see Note 1, “Nature of operations and summary of significant
accounting policies,” and Note 12, “Fair value of financial instruments and derivatives,” contained within the notes to
consolidated financial statements in Part II, Item 8.

Lending commitments include commitments to originate loans and commitments to fund unused lines of credit.
Commitments to extend credit are agreements to lend to a customer as long as there is no violation of any condition
established in the contract, Commitments generally have fixed expiration dates or other termination clauses and may require
payment of a fee. Since some of the commitments are expected to expire without being drawn upon, the total commitment
amounts do not necessarily represent future cash requirements.

In addition to lending commitments, the Company has contractual obligations related to operating lease commitments.
Operating lease commitments are obligations under various non-cancelable operating leases on buildings and land used for
office space and banking purposes.

The following table presents, as of December 31, 2007, the Company’s significant determinable contractual obligations and
significant commitments by payment date. The payment amounts represent those amounts contractuaily due to the recipient,
excluding interest (dollars in thousands):

Over one Over three
Cne year year through  years through Qver
or less three years five years five years Total

Contractual obligations:

Certificates of deposit ....ocvvvvvvevcvcerecrieraracencnes $ 113911 $ 61,542 § 2,514 § 234§ 178,201
Long-term debt..........ccocoernene 709 41,000 — 21,000 62,709
Repurchase agreements 19,711 793 — — 20,504
Operating 1€ases .......cooocvrorrrineerecreeeeeeeeene 375 693 698 4,262 6,028
Significant commitments:

Letters of credit.....ccocrververvimimmreensirieecinee e 2.661 725 — 2,564 5,950
Loan commitments*...........cccveevvevveercrennienriennenns 15,103 — — — 15,103
TOAL..e e e $ 152470 § 104,753 § 3,212 8 28,060 § 288495

*Available credit to borrowers in the amount of $68,276 is excluded from the above table since, by its nature, the borrowers may not have
the need for additional funding, and, therefore, the credit may or may not be disbursed by the Bank.

In addition to the items above, in 2008 the Company expects to complete the construction of a new branch office in West
Scranton. As of December 31, 2007, the Company expects to incur approximately $2,000,000 of additional capital

expenditures, representing outstanding construction commitments, and the cost for design, furniture and equipment to
complete the project.

Related Party Transactions

Information with respect to related parties is contained in Note 15, “Related party transactions,” within the notes to the
consolidated financial statements, and incorporated by reference in Part 11, Item 8,

Impact of Accounting Standards and Interpretations

Information with respect to the impact of accounting standards is contained in Note 18, “Recent accounting
pronouncements,” within the notes to the consolidated financial statements, and incorporated by reference in Part 11, Item 8.

37




Impact of Inflation and Changing Prices

The consolidated financial staterents and notes thereto presented herein have been prepared in accordance with GAAP,
which requires measurement of our financial condition and results of operations in terms of historical doilars without
considering the changes in the relative purchasing power of money over time due to inflation. The impact of inflation is
reflected in the increased cost of our operations. Unlike industrial businesses, most all of the Company’s assets and liabilities
are monetary in nature. As a result, interest rates have a greater impact on our performance than do the effects of general
levels of inflation as interest rates do not necessarily move in the same direction or, to the same extent, as the price of goods
and services.

Capital Resources

The $3,579,000 increase in shareholders’ equity (capital) during 2007 was primarily attributable to net income of $4,612,000,
an increase in common stock from the Company’s dividend reinvestment, stock purchase and stock option plans for a total of
$521,000 and an increase in other comprehensive income (loss) of $369,000 due to the increased intrinsic value of the
Company’s cash flow hedge. These items were partially offset by the declaration of cash dividends of $1,922,000.

The Company is subject to various regulatory capital requirements administered by the federal banking agencies. Failure to
meet minimum capital requirements can initiate certain mandatory and possible additional discretionary actions by regulators
that, if undertaken, couid have a direct material effect on the Company’s financial statements. Under capital adequacy
guidelines and the regulatory framework for prompt corrective action, the Company must meet specific capital guidelines that
involve quantitative measures of the Company’s assets, liabilities and certain off-balance-sheet items as calculated under
regulatory accounting practices. The Company’s capital amounts and classification are also subject to qualitative judgments
by the regulators about components, risk-weightings and other factors.

Under these guidelines, assets and certain off-balance sheet items are assigned to broad risk categories, each with appropriate
weights. The resulting capital ratios represent capital as a percentage of total risk-weighted assets and certain off-balance
sheet items. The guidelines require all banks and bank holding companies to maintain a minimum ratio of total risk-based
capital to total risk-weighted assets (Total Risk Adjusted Capital} of 8%, including Tier I capital to total risk-weighted assets
(Tier 1 Capital) of 4% and Tier | capital to average total assets (Leverage Ratio) of at least 4%. Additional information with
respect to capital requirements is contained in Note 14, “Regulatory matters,” within the notes to the consolidated financial
statements, and incorporated by reference in Part II, [tem 8.

The Company’s major source of capital during the previous five years has been from the retention of equity in undistributed
earnings of the Bank, as reflected below:

Net Cash dividends Earnings

Income declared retained
2007 oot $ 4,611,572 % 1,921,533 § 2,690,039
2000, 4,125,283 1,801,361 2,323,922
2005 . 4,591,697 1,624,263 2,967,434
2004 ..o 3,364,474 1,610,423 1,754,051
2003 ... 1,643,248 1,601,898 41,350

At December 31, 2007, the Bank reported a net unrealized loss of $982,000 on AFS securities compared to a net unrealized
loss of $966,000 as of December 31, 2006, or a minor deterioration of less than 2%. Fluctuations in the capital markets may
cause frequent changes in the fair value of AFS securities. Further declines in value of the Bank’s AFS securities should not
be construed as a weakness in the capital position of the Company. The Company monitors market conditions closely and is
prepared to take remedial action when appropriate.

Liguidity

Liquidity management ensures that adequate funds will be available to meet customers’ needs for borrowings, deposit
withdrawals and maturities and normal operating expenses of the Bank. Current sources of liquidity are cash and cash
equivalents, asset maturities and pay-downs within one year, loans and investments AFS, growth of core deposits, growth of
repurchase agreements, increases of other borrowed funds from correspondent banks and issuance of capital stock. Although
regularly scheduled investment and loan payments are a dependable source of daily funds, the sales of both loans and
investments AFS, deposit activity and investment and loan prepayments are significantly influenced by general economic
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conditions and the level of interest rates. During a declining interest rate environment, prepayments from interest-sensitive
assets tend to accelerate and provide significant liquidity which will then be re-invested at the lower market rates.
Conversely, in a period of rising interest rates, prepayment speeds from interest-sensitive assets tend to decelerate. Deposit
inflow may accelerate and will then be invested at higher market interest rates. The Company closely monitors activity in the
capital markets and takes appropriate action to ensure that the liquidity levels are adequate for funding, investing and
operating activities.

At December 31, 2007, the Company had $10,409,000 in cash and cash equivalents. In addition, the Company had $827,000
of loans AFS and $121,837,000 in investments AFS. This combined total of $133,073,000 represented 23% of total assets at
December 31, 2007. Management believes this level of liquidity to be strong and adequate to support current operations. For
a discussion on the Bank’s significant determinable contractual obligations and significant commitments, see “Off-balance
sheet arrangements and contractual obligations,” above.

The Company considers its primary source of liguidity to be its core deposit base consisting of deposits from customers
throughout the branch network. The Company will continue to promote the acquisition of deposits through its branch offices
and marketing efforts. At December 31, 2007, approximately 72% of the Company’s assets were funded by deposits, which
increased 4% during 2007, and an additional 9% of the assets were funded by the Company’s equity, which increased 7%
during 2007. The Company expects Lo continue 1o grow these two components, which provide a substantial and steady
source of funds.

As detailed in the statement of cash flows, incorporated by reference, total cash and cash equivalents declined $3,392,000
during 2007. Cash from operations of $4,563,000, was supported by healthy earnings. The $20,130,000 provided by
financing was mostly due to increased deposits. The Bank invested $28,085,000 from these two sources and $3,362,000 of
cash on hand as of December 31, 2006, in interest-sensitive assets and premises and equipment, the latter mostly due to
branch expansion projects,

At December 31, 2007, the Bank had approximately $138,836,000 in unused sources of borrowed funds available to meet
liquidity requirements, if needed. The sources were the approximate borrowing capacity at the Federal Reserve Bank of
Philadelphia of $5,652,000, available funding at the FHLB of $122,134,000 and $11,050,000 from correspondent banks,

Management of interest rate risk and market risk analysis

The Company is subject to the interest rate risks inherent in its lending, investing and financing activities. Fluctuations of
interest rates will impact interest income and interest expense along with affecting market values of all interest-earning assets
and interest-bearing liabilities, except for those assets or liabilities with a short term remaining to maturity. Interest rate risk
management is an integral part of the asset/liability management process. The Company has instituted certain procedures and
policy guidelines to manage the interest rate risk position. Those internal policies enable the Company to react to changes in
market rates to protect net interest income from significant fluctuations. The primary objective in managing interest rate risk
is to minimize the adverse impact of changes in interest rates on net interest income along with creating an asset/liability
structure that maximizes eamings.

Asset/Liability Management. One major objective of the Company when managing the rate sensitivity of its assets and
liabilities is to stabilize net interest income. The management of and authority to assume interest rate risk is the
responsibility of the Company’s Asset/Liability Committee (ALCO), which is comprised of senior management and
members of the board of directors. ALCO meets quarterly to monitor the relationship of interest sensitive assets to interest
sensitive liabilities. The process to review interest rate risk is a regular part of managing the Company. Consistent policies
and practices of measuring and reporting interest rate risk exposure, particularly regarding the treatment of non-contractual
assets and liabilities, are in effect. In addition, there is an annual process to review the interest rate risk policy with the board
of directors which includes limits on the impact to earnings from shifts in interest rates.

Interest Rate Risk Measurement. Interest rate risk is monitored through the use of three complementary measures: static gap
analysis, earnings at risk simulation and economic value at risk simulation. While each of the interest rate risk measurements
has limitations, taken together they represent a reasonably comprehensive view of the magnitude of interest rate risk in the
Company and the distribution of risk along the vield curve, the level of risk through time and the amount of exposure to
changes in certain interest rate relationships.

Static Gap. The ratio between assets and liabilities re-pricing in specific time intervals is referred to as an interest rate

sensitivity gap. Interest rate sensitivity gaps can be managed to take advantage of the slope of the yield curve as well as
forecasted changes in the level of interest rate changes.
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To manage this interest rate sensitivity gap position, an asset/liability model commonly known as cumulative gap analysis is
used to monitor the difference in the volume of the Company’s interest sensitive assets and liabilities that mature or re-price
within given time intervals. A positive gap (asset sensitive) indicates that more assets will re-price during a given period
compared to liabilities, while a negative gap (liability sensitive) has the opposite effect. The Company employs
computerized net interest income simulation modeling to assist in quantifying interest rate risk exposure. This process
measures and quantifies the impact on net interest income through varying interest rate changes and balance sheet
compositions. The use of this mode] assists the ALCO to gauge the effects of the interest rate changes on interest-sensitive
assets and liabilities in order to determine what impact these rate changes will have upon the net interest spread. At
December 31, 2007 the Bank maintained a one-year cumulative gap of negative $27.5 million, or negative 4,7%, of total
assets. The effect of this negative gap position provided a mismatch of assets and liabilities which may expose the Bank to
interest rate risk during periods of increasing interest rates. Conversely, in a declining interest rate environment, net interest
income could be positively impacted because more liabilities than assets will re-price downward during the one-year period.

Certain shortcomings are inherent in the method of analysis discussed above and presented in the next table. Although
certain assets and liabilities may have similar maturities or periods of re-pricing, they may react in different degrees to
changes in market interest rates. The interest rates on certain types of assets and liabilities may fluctuate in advance of
changes in market interest rates, while interest rates on other types of assets and liabilities may lag behind changes in market
interest rates. Certain assets, such as adjustable-rate mortgages, have features which restrict changes in interest rates on a
short-term basis and over the life of the asset. In the event of a change in interest rates, prepayment and early withdrawal
levels may deviate significantly from those assumed in calculating the table. The ability of many borrowers to service their
adjustable-rate debt may decrease in the event of an interest rate increase.

The following table reflects the re-pricing of the balance sheet or “gap” position at December 31, 2007 (dollars in thousands):

Interest sensitivity gap at December 31, 2007

Three months Three to One to Over
or less twelve months three years three years Total
Cash and cash equivalents............................. $ 378§ — — 5 10,031 $ 10,409
Investment securities ™ ..., 21,658 13,705 28,406 62,518 126,287
Loans @ ... 121,338 66,967 107,793 126,154 422,252
Fixed and other assets .....coooovveoeeieeeeeeeneennn. — 8,489 — 19,976 28,465
Total SSELS..urrerrieririereireei s er e en s $ 143374 % 89,161 § 136,199 § 218,679 $ 587,413

Total cumulative assets .......cc.ocoeee..... $ 143374 § 232535 § 368,734 § 587413
Non-interest-bearing transaction
deposits ... $ — $ 6480 $ 17,819 S 40497 $ 64,79
Interest-bearing transaction deposits LI 89,289 — 37,024 56,399 182,712
Certificates of Deposit.......ccoooeeeiiiiiiinnnnn, 39,941 73,966 61,542 2,751 178,200
Repurchase agreements...........cccooooeivnenne 20,504 — — — 20,504
Short-term bOmOWINES ....oooe e 19,152 — — — 19,152
Long-term debt.........cccccoorennvvviirncrrnnnnn 10,213 496 31,000 21,000 62,709
Other labilities..........c.coovevevvvvncniciniene. — — — 4,149 4,149
Total liabilities .......ccccoveieerininne. $ 179099 5 80942 § 147385 § 124,796 § 532,222
Total cumulative liabilities................ $ 179,099 § 260,041 § 407426 § 532,222
Interest SenSItIVILY ZaP..coovveevireiiresicciees § (3572% % 8219 % (11,186) $§ 93,883
Cumulative gap ........cccoooeev.... O $ (35725) $§ (27506) $ (38,692) § 55,191
Cumulative gap to total assets............cooeerers 6.1)% {4.7)% (6.6)% 9.4%

(I} Includes FHLB stock and the net unrealized gains/losses on available-for-sale securities.

(2} Investments and loans are included in the earlier of the period in which interest rates were next scheduled to adjust or the period in
which they are due. In addition, loans were included in the periods in which they are scheduled to be repaid based on scheduled
amortization. For amortizing loans and mortgage-backed securities, annual prepayment rates are assumed reflecting historical
experience as well as management’s knowledge and experience of its loan products.

(33 The Bank’s demand and savings accounts were generally subject to immediate withdrawal. However, management considers a
certain amount of such accounts to be core accounts having significantly longer effective maturities based on the retention
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experiences of such deposits in changing interest rate environments. The effective maturities presented are the recommended
maturity distribution limits for non-maturing deposits based on historical deposit studies.

FEarnings at Risk and Economic Value at Risk Simulations. The Company recognizes that more sophisticated tools exist for
measuring the interest rate risk in the balance sheet that extend beyond static re-pricing gap analysis. Although it will
continue to measure its re-pricing gap position, the Company utilizes additional modeling for identifying and measuring the
interest rate risk in the overall balance sheet. The ALCO is responsible for focusing on “eamings at risk™ and “economic
value at risk”, and how both relate to the risk-based capital position when analyzing the interest rate risk.

Earnings at Risk. Earnings at risk simulation measures the change in net interest income and net income should interest rates
rise and fall. The simulation recognizes that not all assets and liabilities re-price one-for-one with market rates (¢.g., savings
rate). The ALCO looks at “earnings at risk™ to determine income changes from a base case scenario under an increase and
decrease of 200 basis points in interest rate simulation models.

Economic Value at Risk. Earnings at risk simulation measures the short-term risk in the balance sheet. Economic value (or
portfolio equity) at risk measures the long-term risk by finding the net present value of the future cash flows from the
Company’s existing assets and liabilities. The ALCO examines this ratio quarterly utilizing an increase and decrease of 200
basis points in interest rate simulation models. The ALCO recognizes that, in some instances, this ratio may contradict the
*“garnings at risk” ratio.

The following table illustrates the simulated impact of an immediate 200 basis points upward or downward movement in
interest rates on net interest income, net income and the change in the economic value (portfolio equity). This analysis
assumed that interest-earning asset and interest-bearing liability levels at December 31, 2007 remained constant. The impact
of the rate movements was developed by simulating the effect of the rate change over a twelve-month period from the
December 31, 2007 levels:

Rates +200 Rates -200

Earnings at risk:
Percent change in:
INET INTETESE LICOINIE 1evervrereuereeeieirereeeeees et etesteteessmneseeaseseseenesrevesns b sea b b sensabasnsnseberesassresesseans {3.5)% (3.2)%
INEL INCOIMIE ettt ettt ettt et s sm s peemse b s vesn b v sb b sesbib e e st sba e s rr e rnarasnnnans (9.8) (9.7

Economic value at risk:
Percent change in:
Economic value of @QUItY ...ttt st et en e (23.4) (5.3)
Economic value of equity as a percent of total asSets .........ocooeeveeeee e 2.5) (0.6)

Economic value has the most meaning when viewed within the context of risk-based capital. Therefore, the economic value
may normally change beyond the Company’s policy guideline for a short period of time as long as the risk-based capital ratio
(after adjusting for the excess equity exposure) is greater than 10%. At December 31, 2007, the Company’s risk-based
capital ratio was 13.6%.

The table below summarizes estimated changes in net interest income over a twelve-month period beginning January 1, 2008,
under alternate interest rate scenarios using the income simulation model described above (dollars in thousands):

Net interest b %

Change in interest rates income variance variance
F200 DASIS POINLS.c..rvererirerietisieire et ere et eteieeeesesseesesseaessb e s s ba b s srsb e b raebebesnsasnss $ 17,864 § (641) (3.5)%
100 DASIS POIMES..eiuririieeee ettt s srrs b b r e e er e e s e e srares 18,158 (347) (1.9

| Q13 41 L OO 18,505 — —
=100 BASES POINS...eitiiiees ettt eie et e e eae st er s er e ra v neneseneasesnen e sarares 18,490 (15) {0.1)
<200 BASIS POINES. c.uetiireeeneerenieteet e ceeeeereeeesere et errersster s erastasaareesssnirtemssessararssesssasnses 17,920 (585) 3.2)

Simulation models require assumptions about certain categories of assets and liabilities. The models schedule existing assets
and liabilities by their contractual maturity, estimated likely call date or earliest re-pricing opportunity. Mortgage-backed
securities and amortizing loans are scheduled based on their anticipated cash flow including estimated prepayments. For
investment securities, the Bank uses a third-party service to provide cash flow estimates in the various rate environments,
Savings, money market and interest-bearing checking accounts do not have a stated maturity or re-pricing term and can be
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withdrawn or re-price at any time. This may impact the margin if more expensive alternative sources of deposits are required
to fund loans or deposit runoff. Management projects the re-pricing characteristics of these accounts based on historical
performance and assumptions that it believes reflect their rate sensitivity. The model reinvests all maturities, repayments and
prepayments for each type of asset or liability into the same product for a new like term at current product interest rates
provided by management. As a result, the mix of interest-earning assets and interest bearing-liabilities is held constant.

Derivative Financial Instruments. As part of the Bank’s overall interest rate risk strategy, the Company has adopted a policy
whereby the Bank may periodically use derivative instruments to minimize significant fluctuations in earnings caused by
interest rate volatility. This interest rate risk management strategy entails the use of interest rate floors, caps and swaps. In
October 2006, the Bank entered into an interest rate floor derivative agreement on $20,0300,000 notional value of its prime-
based loan portfolio. The purpose of the hedge is to help protect the Bank’s interest income in the event interest rates decline
below a pre-determined coniractual interest rate. The strategy is reflected in the scenarios for earnings and economic value at
risk and the net interest income in the two immediately preceding tables. For a further discussion on the Bank’s derivative
contract, see Note 1, “Nature of operations and summary of significant accounting policies,” and Note 12, “Fair value of
financial instruments and derivatives,” contained within the notes to consolidated financial statements in Part [1, Itemn 8.

Supervision and Regulation

The following is a brief summary of the regulatory environment in which the Company and the Bank operate and is not
designed to be a complete discussion of all statutes and regulations affecting such operations, including those statutes and
regulations specifically mentioned herein. Changes in the laws and regulations applicable to the Company and the Bank can
affect the operating environment in substantial and unpredictable ways. We cannot accurately predict whether legislation
will ultimately be enacted, and if enacted, the ultimate effect that legislation or implementing regulations would have on our
financial condition or results of operations. While banking regulations are material to the operations of the Company and the
Bank, it should be noted that supervision, regulation and examination of the Company and the Bank are intended primarily
for the protection of depositors, not shareholders.

Recent Legislation

Financial Services Regulatory Relief Act of 2006. This federal act amends several federal banking laws to reduce redundant
and costly regulatory burden. Among its many provisions, the act allows the payment of interest on certain reserve balances
of depository institutions that are held at the Federal Reserve beginning in year 2011, requires banking regulatory agencies to
streamline reports of condition and clarifies the authority of home and host state regulators with respect to supervision of
interstate branches. The act was signed into law in October 2006.

Federal Deposit Insurance Reform Act of 2003 and the Federal Deposit Insurance Reform Conforming Amendments Act
of 2005. These federal acts were signed into law in February 2006 to amend the Federal Deposit Insurance Act. These laws
enact FDIC and banking industry deposit insurance reform proposals by amendments including: increasing the coverage for
retirement accounts to $250,000 and indexing the coverage limit for retirement accounts to inflation as with the general
deposit insurance coverage limit; merging the Bank Insurance Fund (BIF) and the Savings Association Insurance Fund
(SAIF) into a new fund, the Deposit Insurance Fund (DIF); establishing a percentage range within which the FDIC Board of
Directors may set the FDIC's Designated Reserve Ratio {DRR); allowing the FDIC to manage the pace at which the DRR
varies within this range; eliminating the restrictions on premium rates based on the DRR and granting the FDIC Board the
discretion to price deposit insurance according to risk for all insured institutions at all times.

Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002. In July, 2002, the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 was enacted. The stated goals of the Act are to
increase corporate responsibility, to provide for enhanced penalties for accounting and auditing improprieties at publicly
traded companies, and to protect investors by improving the accuracy and reliability of corporate disclosures pursuant to the
securities laws.

The Act is the most far-reaching U.S. securities legislation enacted in decades. The Act generally applies to all companies,
both U.S. and non-U.S., that file or are required to file periodic reports with the Securities and Exchange Commission under
the Securities Exchange Act of 1934,

The Act includes very specific additional disclosure requirements and corporate governance rules, requires the SEC and
securities exchanges to adopt extensive additional disclosure, corporate governance and other related rules and mandates
further studies of certain issues by the SEC. The Act adds new obligations and restrictions on directors and senior executives
of public companies, such as requiring certification of financial statements, and new audit committee procedures. The Act
represents significant federal involvement in matters traditionally left to state regulatory systems such as the regulation of the
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accounting profession, and to state corporate law such as the relationship between a board of directors and management and
between a board of directors and its committees.

USA PATRIOT Act of 2001. The Uniting and Strengthening America by Providing Appropriate Tools Required to Intercept
and Obstruct Terrorism Act of 2001 (USA PATRIOT Act) was signed into law in October 2001. The USA PATRIOT Act
broadened the application of anti-money laundering regulations to apply to additional types of financial institutions, such as
broker-dealers, and strengthened the ability of the U.S. government to detect and prosecute international money laundering
and the financing of terrorism. The principal provisions of Title Il of the USA PATRIOT Act require that regulated
financial institutions, including banks: (1) establish an anti-money laundering program that includes training and audit
components; (2) comply with regulations regarding the verification of the identity of any person seeking to open an account;
(3) take additional required precautions with regard to non-U.S. owned accounts; and (4) perform certain verification and
certification of money laundering risk for their foreign correspondent banking relationships. The USA PATRIOT Act also
expanded the conditions under which funds in a U.S. inter-bank account may be subject to forfeiture and increased the
penalties for violation of anti-money laundering regulations. Failure of a financial institution to comply with the USA
PATRIOT Acts requirements could have serious legal and reputational consequences for the institution. The Bank has
adopted policies, procedures and controls to address compliance with the requirements of the USA PATRIOT Act under the
existing regulations and will continue to revise and update its policies, procedures and contrels to reflect changes required by
the USA PATRIOT Act and implementing regulations.

As part of the USA PATRIOT Act, Congress adopted the International Money Laundering Abatement and Financial Anti-
Terrorism Act of 2001 (IML Act), The IML Act amended the Bank Secrecy Act and adopted certain additional measures that
increase the obligation of financial institutions, including the Bank, to identify their customers, watch for and report upon
suspicious transactions, respond to requests for information by federal banking regulatory authorities and law enforcement
agencies, and share information with other financial institutions, The Secretary of the Treasury has adopted several
regulations to implement these provisions, The Bank is also barred from dealing with foreign “shell” banks. In addition, the
IML Act expands the circumstances under which funds in a bank account may be forfeited. The IML Act also amended the
Bank Holding Company Act and the Bank Merger Act to require the federal banking regulatory authorities to consider the
effectiveness of a financial institution’s anti-money laundering activities when reviewing an application to expand operations.
The Bank has in place a Bank Secrecy Act compliance program.

Gramm-Leach-Bliley Act of 1999. This law authorized cross-industry affiliations between banks, securities firms, insurance
companies and other financial service providers. This was landmark legislation that repealed the Glass-Steagall Act which
since the 1930’s had prohibited such affiliations. Among other provisions, the Act provided new authority for banks and
created a revised framework for regulating affiliated financial services institutions.

Regulation W, Transactions between a bank and its “affiliates” are quantitatively and qualitatively restricted under the
Federal Reserve Act. The Federal Deposit Insurance Act applies Sections 23A and 23B to insured nonmember banks in the
same manner and to the same extent as if they were members of the Federal Reserve System. In 2002, the Federal-Reserve
Board issued Regulation W, which became effective in 2003. Regulation W codifies prior regulations under Sections 23A
and 23B of the Federal Reserve Act and interpretative guidance with respect to affiliate transactions.

Regulation W incorporates the exemption from the affiliate transaction rules but expands the exemption to cover the purchase
of any type of loan or extension of credit from an affiliate. Affiliates of a bank include, among other entities, the Bank’s
holding company and companies that are under common control with the Bank. The Company is considered to be an affiliate
of the Bank.
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Federal and State Legislation

From time-to-time, various types of federal and state legislation have been proposed that could result in additional regulations
and restrictions on the business of the Company and the Bank. We cannot predict whether legislation will be adopted, or if
adopted, how the new laws would affect our business. As a consequence, we are susceptible to legislation that may increase
the cost of doing business. Management believes that the effect of any current legislative proposals on the liquidity, capital
resources and the results of operations of the Company and the Bank will be minimal.

It is possible that there will be regulatory proposals which, if implemented, could have a material effect upon our liquidity,
capital resources and results of operations. In addition, the general cost of compliance with numerous federal and state laws
does have, and in the future may have, a negative impact on our results of operations. As with other banks, the status of the
financial services industry can affect the Bank. Consolidations of institutions are expected to continue as the financial
services industry seeks greater efficiencies and market share. Bank management believes that such consolidations may
enhance the Bank’s competitive position as a comrmunity bank.

Future Outlook

Based upon the current uncertain economic outlook and inability to predict when interest rate changes will occur, the
Company recognizes that there are challenges ahead. The Company is prepared to meet the challenges and effects of a
changing interest rate environment. Management believes that a significant impact on earnings depends on its ability to react
to changes in interest rates.

The Company will continue to monitor interest rate sensitivity of its interest-earning assets and interest-bearing liabilities to
minimize any adverse effects on future earnings. The Company’s commitment to remaining a community based organization
is very strong. Qur intention is to recognize a steady disciplined growth in the loan portfolios, while increasing our base of
core deposits. Review and implementation of policies and procedures along with adding innovative products and services
will continue. These steps are designed to provide the Company with stability and the wherewithal to provide customer
service and increase shareholder value.

Item 74: QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK
The information required by 7A is set forth at Item 7, under “Liquidity” and “Management of interest rate risk and market

risk analysis,” contained within management’s discussion and analysis of financial condition and results of operations and
incorporated herein by reference.
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Item 8: FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTARY DATA

PARENTERANDOLPH
| 7?;/?*’”' "/ﬁ" zes

Report Of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

Board of Directors and Shareholders
Fidelity D & D Bancorp, Inc.:

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Fidelity D & D Bancorp, Inc. and Subsidiary as of
December 31, 2007 and 2006 and the related consolidated statements of income, changes in shareholders’ equity and cash
flows for each of the years in the three-year period ended December 31, 2007. These financial statements are the
responsibility of the Company’s management. Qur responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based
on our audits,

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United
States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
statements are free of material misstatement. The Company is not required to have, nor were we engaged to perform, an audit
of its internal control over financial reporting. Qur audit included consideration of internal control over financial reporting as
a basis for designing audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control over financial reporting, Accordingly, we express no such
opinion. An audit also includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements, assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the
overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion,

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position of Fidelity D & D Bancorp, Inc. and Subsidiary as of December 31, 2007 and 2006, and the results of their

operations and their cash flows for each of the years in the three-year period ended December 31, 2007 in conformity with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Roene Gandtlh A4S

Scranton, Pennsylvania
March 12, 2008
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FIDELITY D & D BANCORP, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY

Consolidated Balance Sheets
As of December 31, 2007 and 2006

Assets:

Cash and due from banks ..o
Interest-bearing deposits with financial institutions............c.c..cmncn.

Total cash and cash eqUIVAIENES .......c.oovevriirreenrrercr e

Available-for-5ale SECUTTHIES. ....ccoov et ns s s sme s
Held-to-Maturity SECULILES ...rvvvvevvererreereecimeircrecrerc sttt sb s s bbb
Federal Home Loan Bank StOCK ... v e s cs s
Loans and leases, net (allowance for loan losses of $4,824,401in 2007; $5,444,303

I 2008 oo et b et e e e
Loans available-for-sale (fair value $842,923 in 2007; $123,156 in 2006) ...................
Bank premises and eqUIPMEDL, MEL........covviiiirinrm e
Cash surrender value of bank owned life INSUFANCE ......cvvvvevereveee e
BT ASSEES .. eevesreseeeeeiteeeeeeeteeesseeeseeeinbsssibbeeaasbstan s assneeenrareesemrnnressnbnaeateeeeamemtoeeen ramneessnnn
Accrued Interest TECEIVADIE ..ot e e e e
Foreclosed assets held-for-8ale..........cvvoveiiiieeciee e cb s sane s e

Ol ASSOES 1ererteeieeesiameatstereisisireiesseesasararane et aeeeesatababessseaasesatnsesaseaasessasnrnnrersen

Liabilities:

Deposits:
INEETESE-DEALINE .eoveneiitericeee ettt et en s
NON-INIETESI-BEATING ...eveverreeieee sttt
TOtal dEPOSIS ..oveeier et s e s
Accrued interest payable and other liabilities ...
ShOTt-1EMM DOITOWINES «.eeieiiriteieiieie it st e e s e s e sne e bt asbs s
Long-term debt.. ..o

TOAL LIBDALIIES ..vvvvvesesrieeeeee e e e e e e ee e st ater e sttnsassssbaessnsnseessramnresensbnannreeeememeee

Shareholders® equity:
Preferred stock authorized 5,000,000 shares with no par value; none issued.................
Capital stock authorized 10,000,000 shares with no par value; issued and

outstanding 2,072,929 shares in 2007; 2,057,433 shares in 2006 ..............cccoovnienane

REtaINed GAITHIIZS ..vevvveveverisrress s reeccacc e b e b a e bbb e e e s
Accumulated other comprehensive 1085 ...

Total shareholders” eqUILY ......coocvminnimiiiini st

Total liabilities and shareholders’ equity ......ccccovvvviniiiiiiiiicic e

See notes to consolidated financial statements
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2007

2006

§ 10,204,714

$ 13,732,137

204,102 68,711
10,408,816 13,800,848
121,836,851 98,841,364
1,147,309 1,569,372
3,302,900 3,795,100
421,424379 417,199,048
827,250 122,000
12,964,932 11,324,465
8,488,663 8,177,961
4,403,723 4,788,105
2,500,696 2,502,576
107,036 197,149
$587,412,555 $562,317,988
$360,912,740  $336,592,620
64,795,621 73,741,975
425,708,361 410,334,595
4,147,869 4,179,170
39,656,354 33,656,150
62,708,677 62,536,210
532221261 510,706,125
19223363 18,702,537
36,564,157 33,874,118
(596,226) (964,792)
55,191,294 51,611,863
$587,412,555 $562,317,988




FIDELITY D & D BANCORP, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY

Consolidated Statements of Income
For the years ended December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005

2007 2006 2005

Interest income:
Loans and leases:
TAXABIE c.ctieeee et er et s e et b ee st saar e e eas e ana s eaaet e ses sn s nmnssern et sanrar e rn e e saTet e anrareens $§ 28,765,640 § 27,681,779 § 23,829470

NONAXADIE. ..o vecr e s b s e 469,389 445,527 451,590
Interest-bearing deposits with financial INSKMHONS .....ecrresrcrere s s 8,865 9,166 14,440
Investment securities:

U.S. Government agency and COMPOALIONS . ... cmreurimeeeiceeeieeeeareeeeaesevenesesrmeseemeesenrssesssanens 4,264,152 3,738,995 3,498,419
States and political subdivisions (NONtAXABIE) .........vricvrirvesrrir v e 498,335 590,558 539,004
Other securities 1,170,063 940,467 638,738
Federal funds SOI.......o.cviiriioirir ettt teesse s eeeeees e emessesenntsssanssessrsanssstsnsassantenes 102,913 123,218 48.600
TOLA INTETESE IMCOME 1ivviiiiris virrirears e irtesiie b eeee e eeemeemeesemeeeeeresssemeseemeanesreseesmamn smmeern 35,279,357 33,529,710 29,020,261
Interest expense:
DIEPOSILS .ottt st b et bbb ea b et b A b et s et ate s ekt s stk enns e aanaborensrmseens 13,369,992 11,492,827 6,928.000
Securities sold under repurchase AgrEeMEntS.........ovverievreerrvrismi e srresns 465,391 623,902 633,942
Other short-term borrowings and other 504,972 377,958 328,857
LOMZAETIN GEB..vevririircriiieieiiirntaee ettt mn b msn s se et s sss s eeama e bense e sanssssnssarennas 3,319,720 3,866,422 3,830,187
TOUA) INIETEST EXPISE 1.vevvirers ceretemeereieeseteeess e sessesessesessesse s s s esse s sessseassesesasesesassnnsasn 17,660,075 16,361,109 11,720,986
INEE ITIETESE MCOTIE 11 eestieariibeesirsirsiraateeestheeeetbms e eeereereneeseemeneemsemanesanns s sem seesamsesaemtereamesannsanennre 17,619,282 17,168,601 17,299.275
{Credit) provision for [08N JOSSES..... ..ottt e aet e e eart e e sen et e {60.000) 325,000 830,000
Net interest income after (credit) provision for 10an 10SSES.......cocueveevveeeeeeicrerenere e eeeseneeen 17,679,282 16,843,601 16,469,275
Other income:
Service charges on deposit ACCOUMLS .........ciiiccericrrvcners s e e ss s iasrsesarsasanass 3,007,365 2,631,859 2,660,723
Gain (loss) on sale of:

LLOBINS 1ottt rr s e e bbbk e e e b At beaet bbb b eas b st beann 159,441 97.848 9,937

Investment securities 79 1,200 4,696

Premises and @GUIPIMIETE ..o.oc.vceiiiieiiiieeee e eseeseeeses e s nsssensrsaaemssssmessseae e sssssrnss e snses 97,518 (19,654) (14,779)

Foreclosed assets held-for-Sale ... ettt amese s tenrns 143,559 (3,390) 56,516

Leased asSels ...vvveevvveceeieceiinne — E5,154 (334.663)

Fees and other service charges 1,797,253 1,799,121 1,768,072
Total OtHET IMCOME c.oviveuiiveri et reer e st st b bt b sae st bases s btnee e emmes e erees 5,205,215 4,522,138 4,150,502
Other expenses:
Salaries and employee Benefits. ... e et et et 8,705,698 8,328,407 7,093,427
Premises and equipment ........ 3,156,372 3,144,669 2,954,205
Advertising .........c........ 684,732 540,543 621,103
Cther....... et bt th e bttt ere et et e b e s € eeene et en 12t e s e n et et an e e bea st raee ek rante e e anner 4,089,958 3,864,757 3,893,233
TOAl OLRET EXPENMSES 1vcviirerricirceiiee ettt em e st e eae s ea s st b et saes 16,636,760 15,878,376 14,561,968
Income before provision fOF iCOME LAXES .c..co.oce v eeeecemere e eeee e seee e smesesemse sere e saresssssmans 6,247,737 5,487,363 6,057,809
ProviSiON fOr INCOME LAKXES coiuiiieicee it ceeete e re e ereeeess e bernes e saereesearessassssesrates sessenmsaseeasensen 1,636,165 1,362,080 1,466,112
INBL IICOME 1 1vvemirerrararesse e ei e e e b s hadt 4 b52 648 e2 a0 e se e emmr et oenr e sme e smn et emnae e saesesammansaenesnannenreseanran g 4611572 § 4125283 § 4,591,697
Per share data:
INET INCOME—DBASIC vt et rte s e ans s sasnss e senes s ssresemsss s sesensssnssssaseasensassens $ 223 % 200§ 2.26
Net income—diluted $ 223 8§ 200 8§ 2.25
DIvIdends........oooivveireeeeceee ettt e e $ 093 S 088 § 0.80

See notes to consolidated financial statements
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FIDELITY D & D BANCORP, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY

Consolidated Statements of Changes in Shareholders’ Equity
For the years ended December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005

Balance, December 31, 2004...........coovnvciniieciiniinins
Total comprehensive income:
Net income.. “
Change in net unreahzed holdmg ]osses on
available-for-sale securities, net of
reclassification adjustment and tax effects .......
Comprehensive iNCOmMe.....c.o.oveeeeniiirinins,
Issuance of common stock through Employee Stock
Purchase Plan...
Dividends remvested through Dmdend Relnvestment
Plan... ;
Cash dmdends declared

Balance, December 31, 2005,
Cumulative effect adjustments........cooovmivnariiinen
Total comprehensive income:
Net income..
Change in net unreallzed holdlng losses on
available-for-sale securities, net of
reclassification adjustment and tax effects .......
Change in cash flow hedge intrinsic value............
Comprehensive income..
Issuance of common stock through Employee Stock
Purchase Plan... v
Dividends remvested through D1v1dend Remvestment
Plan... SO UPOTOTRTO
Stock- based compensatlon expense ..
Cash dividends declared... OO
Stock dividend declared ..o

Balance, December 31, 2006............ccooccciiivviinccrinns
Total comprehensive income:
Net iNCOME.....ccooocviiiiiic e
Change in net unrealized holding losses on
available-for-sale securities, net of
reclassification adjustment and tax effects .......
Change in cash flow hedge intrinsic value............
Comprehensive income..
Issuance of common stock through Employee Stock
Purchase Plan...
Dividends remvesled lhrough Dmdend Remvestmem
Plan.. .
Stock- based compensanon expense ..
Cash dividends declared...

Balance, December 31, 2007. ..ot

Capital stock

Shares

Amount

Accumulated
other
Retained

earnings

comprehensive

income {loss) Total

1,839,572

1,031

13,614

$ 10,072,134

31,671

491,096

$ 36,396,027 § (101,401) $ 46,366,760

4,591,697 4,591,697

(1,010,932) (1,010,932)
3,580,765
31,671

491,096

(1,624,263 ) (1,624,263 )

1,854,217

1,571

16,251

185,394

10,594,901

48,151

568,641
28,744

7,462,100

48,846,029
(343,717)

4,125,283

39,363,461
(343,717)

(1,112,333)

4,125,283

146,624 146,624
97 917

4,272,824

48,151

568,641

28,744
(1,801,361)
(7,448)

(1,801,361)
(7,469,548

2,057,433

2,266

13,230

18,702,537

67,820

437,145
15,861

33,874,118 (964,792) 51,611,863

4,611,572 4,611,572

(16,258)
384,824

(16,258)
384,824
4,980,138

67,820

437,145
15,861

(1,921,533} (1.921,533)

2,072,929

3

19,223,363

$ 36,564,157 § (596,226) % 55,191,294

See notes to consolidated financial statements
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FIDELITY DEPOSIT & DISCOUNT BANCORP, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows
For the years ended December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005

2007 2006 2005
Cash flows from operating activities:
Net income.. $ 4611572 § 4125283 % 4,591,697
Adjustments to reconc:lle net income to net cash provnded by operatmg
activities:
Depreciation, amortization and acCretion ... riicnee e es 1,130,274 1,349,990 1,493,621
(Credit) provision for loan 10S5€s ........cccccceiriiiinenn, {60,000) 325,000 830,000
Deferred income tax expense (benefit)..........coiciiinnvnnnccnninn 78,838 (75,003) (318,948)
' Stock-based compensation €Xpense.............coirwne 15,861 28,744 —
Loss from investment in limited partnership.......... 20,400 50,000 90,000
Proceeds from sale of loans available-for-sale ....... 16,399,530 12,573,745 2,337,108
Originations of loans available-for-sale...........ccooceiennn, (16,945,339)  (12,169,313) {2,179,377)
Write-down of foreclosed assets held-for-sale .............. — — 63,569
Increase in cash surrender value of life insurance (310,702) (286,063) (278,461)
Net galn on sale of loans .. . (159,441} {97.,848) {9,937
Net gain on sale of i mvestmcnt secur]tles (79 (1,200) (4,696)
Net (gain) loss on sale of foreclosed assets held for sale (143,559) 3,390 (56,516)
Net loss on sale of leased assets .. — — 334,663
Net (gain) loss on disposal ofeqmpment (97.518) 19,654 14,779
Change in:
Accrued interest receivable........oocuiieiceiee s 1,880 (542,750) (236,976}
Other asSet5...couviveiiiiriei e (8,933) (385,141) (172,882)
Accrued interest payable and other liabilities ..o (29,680) 922,747 200,655
Net cash provided by operating activities .......ccvveervvcccreinmesneecerini s 4,563,104 5,871,235 6,698,299
Cash flows from investing activities:
Held-to-maturity securities:
Proceeds from maturities, calls and principal pay-downs........ccccocovervvennierirnnnn 421,096 424,880 1,053,978
Available-for-sale securities:
Proceeds from sales... 3,818,914 19,554,141 25,283,946
Proceeds from maturmes calls and pr1nc1pal pay—downs................................. 12,001,895 24445735 14,121,713
Purchases... (38,399,150  {46,996,118) (24,207,221}
Net decrease (mcrease) FHLB Stock 492,200 833,100 (59,500)
Net increase in loans and leases... (4,517,367) (14,619,300} (24,026,568)
Proceeds from sale of leased assets ST — — 1,021,403
Acquisition of bank premises and equ1pment (2,939,866) (1,723,928) (1,676,465)
Proceeds from sale of bank premises and equlpment 433,186 1,560 15,345
Proceeds from sale of foreclosed assets held-for-sale...........cooeriicicninnns 584,088 55,890 546,956
Net cash used in investing activities .........cc.ocoerecericne i ccrere s (28,085,004)  {18,024,040) (7,925,913)
Cash flows from financing activities:
Net increase in deposits..........cc... 15,373,765 30,835,955 13,883,305
Net increase (decrease) in shorl term borrowmgs 6,000,204 4,883,153 (21,761,049}
Proceeds from issuance of long-term debt.................. 20,000,000 16,000,000 15,000,000
Repayments of long-term debt... (19,827,533) (37,167,978) (2,415,000)
Proceeds from employee stock purchase plan 67,820 48,151 31,671
Dividends paid, net of dividends reinvested.......... (1,484,388) (1,232,720) {1,133,167)
Cash payments in lieu of fractional shares on stock d1v1dend — (7,448) —
Net cash provided by financing activities ......ocoeeverreeinnrcscnncnenen, 20,129,868 13,359,113 3,605,760
Net {decrease) increase in cash and cash equivalents.......cococeiveinninir e (3,392,032) 1,206,308 2,378,146
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning..........coooiorinin i e 13,800,848 12,594,540 10,216,394
Cash and cash equivalents, ndiNg ......cc.coviircirccneiimart e screosesreesssesesssesnnns $ 10,408,816 $ 13,800,848 $ 12,594,540

See notes to consolidated financial statements
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FIDELITY D & D BANCORP, INC.
AND SUBSIDIARY

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS -
1, NATURE OF OPERATIONS AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
PRINCIPLES OF CONSOLIDATION

The accompanying consolidated financial statements include the accounts of Fidelity D & D Bancorp, Inc. and its
wholly-owned subsidiary, The Fidelity Deposit and Discount Bank (the Bank) (collectively, the Company). All
significant inter-company balances and transactions have been eliminated in consolidation.

NATURE OF OPERATIONS

The Company provides a variety of financial services to individuals and corporate customers in Lackawanna and
Luzerne Counties, Pennsylvania. This region has a diversified and fairly stable economy. The Company’s primary
deposit products are checking accounts, savings accounts, NOW accounts, money market deposit accounts and
certificates of deposit accounts. Its primary lending products are single-family residential loans, secured consumer
loans and secured loans to businesses. In addition to these traditional banking services, the Company also provides
asset management, investment and trust services.

Although the Company has a diversified loan portfolio, a substantial portion of its debtors’ ability to honor their
contracts is dependent on the economic sector in which the Company operates. While management uses available
information to recognize losses on loans, leases and foreclosed assets, future additions to the allowance for loan
losses and foreclosed assets may be necessary based on changes in local economic conditions. In addition,
regulatory agencies, as an integral part of their examination process, periodically review the Company’s allowance.
Such agencies may require the Company to recognize additions to the allowance based on their judgments about
information available to them at the time of their examination. Because of these factors, it is reasonably possible
that the allowance for loan losses and foreclosed assets may change materially in the near future.

USE OF ESTIMATES

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of
assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the
reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those
estimates.

Material estimates that are particularly susceptible to significant change relate to the determination of the allowance
for loan losses and the valuation of real estate acquired in connection with foreclosures or in satisfaction of loans. In
connection with the determination of allowance for losses on loans and foreclosed real estate, management obtains
independent appraisals for properties.

HELD-TO-MATURITY SECURITIES
Debt securities, for which the Company has the positive intent and ability to hold to maturity, are reported at cost.
Premiums and discounts are amortized or accreted, as a component of interest income, over the life of the related
security as an adjustment to yield using the interest method.

TRADING SECURITIES

Debt and equity securities held principally for resale in the near term are recorded at their fair values. Unrealized
gains and losses are included in other income. The Company did not have any investment securities held for trading
purposes during 2007, 2006 or 2005.
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AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE SECURITIES

Available-for-sale (AFS) securities consist of debt and equity securities not classified as either held-to-maturity
securities or trading securities and are reported at fair value, Premiums and discounts are amortized or accreted, as a
component of interest income, over the life of the related security as an adjustment to yield using the interest
method, Unrealized holding gains and losses on AFS securities are reported as a separate component of
shareholders’ equity, net of deferred income taxes, until realized. These net unrealized holding gains and losses are
a component of accumulated other comprehensive (loss) income. Gains and losses from sales of securities AFS are
determined using the specific identification method.

FEDERAL HOME LOAN BANK STOCK

Investment in Federal Home Loan Bank stock is required for membership in the organization and is carried at cost
since there is no market value available. The Company is required {o maintain an investment in the stock based
upon the level of its outstanding borrowings.

LOANS

Loans that management has the intent and ability to hold for the foreseeable future or until maturity or payoff are
stated at face value, net of unamortized loan fees and costs and the allowance for loan losses. Interest on residential
real estate loans is recorded on an amortized schedule. Commercial loan interest is accrued on the principal balance
on an actual day basis. Interest on consumer loans is determined using the simple interest method.

Loans are generally placed on non-accrual status when principal or interest is past due 90 days or more. Whena
loan is pjaced on non-accrual status, all interest previously accrued but not collected is charged against current
income. Any payments received on non-accrual loans are applied, first to the outstanding loan amounts, then to the
recovery of any charged-off loan amounts. Any excess is treated as a recovery of lost interest.

LOANS AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE

Loans originated and intended for sale in the secondary market are carried at the lower of cost or estimated fair
value in the aggregate. Net unrealized losses are recognized through a valuation allowance by charges to income.
Unrealized gains are recognized to the extent of previous write-downs.

ALLOWANCE FOR LOAN LOSSES

The allowance for loan losses is established through a provision for loan losses. The allowance represents an
amount which, in management’s judgment, will be adequate to absorb losses on existing loans and leases that may
become uncollectible. Management’s judgment in determining the adequacy of the allowance is based on
evaluations of the collectability of the loans. These evaluations take into consideration such factors as changes in
the nature and volume of the loan portfolio, current economic conditions that may affect the borrower’s ability to
pay, collateral value, overall portfolio quality and review of specific loans for impairment. Loans considered
uncollectible are charged against the allowance. Recoveries on loans previously charged off are added to the
allowance.

A loan is considered impaired when, based on current information and events, it is probable that the Company will
be unable to collect the scheduled payments in accordance with the contractual terms of the loan. Factors
considered in determining impairment include payment status, collateral value and the probability of coliecting
payments when due. The significance of payment delays and/or shortfalls is determined on a case by case basis. All
circumstances surrounding the loan are taken inte account. Such factors include the length of the delinquency, the
underlying reasons and the borrower’s prior payment record. Impairment is measured on these loans on a loan by
loan basis.
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The Company currently employs the Federal Financial Institutions Examination Council Interagency Policy
Statement, as amended December 13, 2006, following GAAP in assessing the adequacy of the allowance. Under
GAAP, the adequacy of the allowance is determined based on the provisions of Statement of Financial Accounting
Standards No. 114, “Accounting by Creditors for Impairment of a Loan,” (SFAS 114) for loans specifically
identified to be individually evaluated for impairment and the requirements of SFAS 5, “Accounting for
Contingencies,” for large groups of homogeneous loans to be collectively evaluated.

Allowances for impaired loans under SFAS 114 are determined based on collateral values or the present value of
estimated cash flows. All loans placed on a non-accruing status are considered impaired loans as well as other
specific loans which, based upon all the pertinent facts known at the time, were deemed to be impaired and to which
a specific allowance has been allotted. SFAS 5 allowances include a portion based on historical charge-off
experience and a portion based on evaluation of qualitative factors.

LEASES

Financing of equipment was provided to municipal customers under lease arrangements accounted for as direct
financing leases. Income earned is based on a constant periodic return on the net investment in the lease.

LOAN FEES

Nonrefundable loan origination fees and certain direct loan origination costs are recognized as a component of
interest income over the life of the related loans as an adjustment to yield. The unamortized balance of these fees
and costs are included as part of the loan balance to which it relates.

BANK PREMISES AND EQUIPMENT

Land is carried at cost. Bank premises and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation. Depreciation
is computed on the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of the assets. Leasehold improvements are
amortized over the shorter of the term of the lease or the estimated useful lives of the improved property.

BANK OWNED LIFE INSURANCE

The Company is the owner and sole beneficiary of bank owned life insurance (BOLI) policies on certain employecs.
The earnings from the BOLI are recognized as a component of other income. The BOLI is an asset that can be
liquidated, if necessary, with tax costs associated. However, the Company intends to hold these policies and,
accordingly, the Company has not provided for deferred income taxes on the earnings from the increase in cash
surrender value.

FORECLOSED ASSETS HELD-FOR-SALE

Foreclosed assets held-for-sale are carried at the lower of cost or fair value less cost to sell. Losses from the
acquisition of property in full and partial satisfaction of debt are treated as credit losses. Routine holding costs are
included in other operating expenses. Write-downs for subsequent declines in value are recorded in other income as
a component of gain or loss on sale of foreclosed assets held-for-sale. Gains or losses are recorded when the
properties are sold.

STOCK OPTIONS

The Company has two stock-based compensation plans, which are described more fully in Note 9. The Company
accounts for these plans under the recognition and measurement principles of SFAS No. 123R, Share-Based
Payment, which replaces SFAS 123, Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation, and supersedes Accounting
Principles Bulletin {APB) Opinion 25, Accounting for Stock Issued to Employees. SFAS 123R requires that the cost
of share-based payment transactions (including those with employees and non-employees) be recognized in the
financial statements.
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Prior to 2006, the Company accounted for these plans under the recognition and measurement principles of APB 25,
and related Interpretations. Prior to 2006, no stock-based employee compensation cost is reflected in net income, as
all options granted under these plans had an exercise price equal to the fair value of the underlying common stock on
the date of grant. The following table illustrates the effect on net income and earnings per share if the Company had
applied the fair value recognition provisions of Statement SFAS No. 123R, to stock-based employee compensation
for the year ended December 31, 2005 (dollars in thousands except for per share data):

2005

Net income, a8 TEPOIIEU....vvviivecc v st sre s e eeescecerasanenaesenes $4,592
Less: total stock-based employee compensation expense determined under

fair value based method for all awards, net of taX.......ccooeeevriiiiiiiin e —

Pro fOrma NEL IMCOME .....oceeeeevoet et st b et eeeeeteeeraebssnbeeneesesenserseeas 34,592

Earnings per share:

Basic — a8 rePOrted ......oooivvvevieie s rrsrt s nieeeees B 2,20

Basic — Pro fOFMEa ... ettt st es s $ 226

Diluted — as reported ..o $ 225

Diluted — pro forma ... $ 225

The Company did not grant stock options in 2005.
TRUST AND FINANCIAL SERVICE FEES

Trust and financial service fees are recorded on the cash basis, which is not materially different from the accrual
basis.

ADVERTISING COSTS

Advertising costs are charged to expense as incurred. For the years ended December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005,
advertising costs amounted to approximately $685,000, $541,000 and $621,000, respectively.

FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Cash and short-term instruments: The carrying amounts of cash and short-term instruments approximate their
fair value.

Securities: Fair values for securities are based on bid prices received from securities dealers. Federal Home Loan
Bank Stock is carried at cost, which approximates fair value.

Loans receivable: The fair value of all loans is estimated by the net present value of the future expected cash
flows.

Loans available-for-sale: For loans available-for-sale, the fair value is estimated using rates currently offered for
similar loans.

Deposit liabilities: The fair values of deposits with no stated maturity such as demand, NOW, savings and money
market deposit accounts, are equal to the amount payable on demand which are their carrying values. The fair
values of certificate of deposit accounts are based on discounted cash flows using rates which approximate the rates
we offer for deposits of similar maturities.

Short-term borrowings: For short-term borrowings, the fair value is estimated using the rates currently offered for
similar borrowings.

Long-term debt: For other borrowed funds, the fair value is estimated using the rates currently offered for similar
borrowings.
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Accrued interest: The carrying amounts of accrued interest approximate their fair values.

Derivative financial instruments: The carrying amount of interest rate contracts are based on proprietary models
from independent third-party sources that consider size, lack of a quoted market for the instrument and the custom
tailored nature of the transaction.

Off-balance-sheet instruments: Commitments to extend credit and unused lines of credit are priced to market.
The rates on standby letters of credit are priced on prime. Therefore, the estimated fair value of these financial
instruments is face value.

INCOME TAXES

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are reflected at currently enacted income tax rates applicable to the period in
which the deferred tax assets or liabilities are expected to be realized or settled. As changes in tax laws or rates are
enacted, deferred tax assets and liabilities are adjusted through the provision for income taxes.

DERIVATIVE INSTRUMENTS

As part of our asset/liability management program, the Company will utilize, from time-to-time, interest rate floors,
caps or swaps to reduce its sensitivity to interest rate fluctuations. These are derivative instruments which are
recorded as assets or liabilities in the consolidated balance sheets at fair value. Changes in the fair values of
derivatives are reported in the consolidated income statements or other comprehensive income (OCI) depending on
the use of the derivative and -whether the instrument qualifies for hedge accounting. The key criterion for hedge
accounting is that the hedged relationship must be highly effective in achieving offsetting changes in those cash
flows that are attributable to the hedged risk, both at inception of the hedge and on an ongoing basis.

Derivatives that qualify for hedge accounting treatment are designated as either: a hedge of the fair value of a
recognized asset or liability or of an unrecognized firm commitment (a fair value hedge) or a hedge of a forecasted
transaction or the variability of cash flows to be received or paid related to a recognized asset or liability (a cash
flow hedge). To date, the Company has only entered into a cash flow hedge. For cash flow hedges, changes in the
fair values of the derivative instruments are reported in OCI to the extent the hedge is effective. The gains and
losses on derivative instruments that are reported in OCI are reflected in the consolidated income statements in the
periods in which the results of operations are impacted by the variability of the cash flows of the hedged item.
Generally, net interest income is increased or decreased by amounts receivable or payable with respect to the
derivatives which qualify for hedge accounting. At inception of the hedge, the Company establishes the method it
uses for assessing the effectiveness of the hedging derivative and the measurement approach for determining the
ineffective aspect of the hedge. The ineffective portion of the hedge, if any, is recognized currently in the
consolidated statements of income. The Company excludes the time value expiration of the hedge when measuring
ineffectiveness.

CASH FLOWS

For purposes of reporting cash flows, cash and cash equivalents includes cash on hand, amounts due from banks and
interest-bearing deposits with financial institutions.

For the years ended December 31, 2007, 2006, and 2005, the Company paid interest of $18,306,000, $15,318,000
and $11,367,000, respectively. For the years ended December 31, 2007, 2006, and 2005, the Company paid cash for
income taxes of $1,500,000, $1,480,000 and $1,800,000, respectively.

Transfers from loans to foreclosed assets held-for-sale amounted to $352,000, $258,000 and $322,000 in 2007,

2006, and 2005, respectively. Expenditures for construction in process, a component of other assets in the
consolidated balance sheets, are included in acquisition of premises and equipment.
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OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (LOSS)

The components of other comprehensive income (Joss) and related tax effects are as follows:

2007 2006 2005

Unrealized holding (losses) gains on available-for-sale

SECUTILICS 1eveveevererreenerne s svenesenrseasas e e s esessesesesessearas $ (24,554) $ 223358 $(1,527,019)
Less reclassification adjustment for gains realized in

NCOIME .ot (79) {1,200) (4,696)
Net unrealized (10S5€8) GAINS...ccceirviviiiieereecrsaine i oo (24,633) 222,158 (1,531,715)
Change in cash flow hedge intrinsic value ...................... 384,824 917 —
Subtotal ..o 360,191 223,075 (1,531,715)
Tax effect oot 8,375 (75,534) 520,783
Net of taX AMOURL....eieicviie et et ev e § 368566 & 147541 ${1,010,932)

The components of accumulated other comprehensive loss consisted of:

2007 2606 2005
Unrealized holding losses on available-for-sale
SECUMEIES . veieiererieer s rercrevsi e e s stbs e st e e ss b saeeeesae e $ (981,967) $ (965,709) S$(1,112,333)
Change in cash flow hedge intrinsic value ...................... 385,741 917 —
Accumulated other comprehensive loss .....cooveeeeeiennan. $ (596,226) § (964,792) $(1,112,333)

2. CASH

The Company is required by the Federal Reserve Bank to maintain average reserve balances based on a percentage
of deposits. The amounts of those reserve requirements on December 31, 2007 and 2006 were $702,000 and
$714,000, respectively.

Deposits with any one financial institution are insured up to $100,000. From time-to-time, the Company maintains
cash and cash equivalents with certain other financial institutions in excess of the insured amount.
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3. INVESTMENT SECURITIES

Amortized cost and fair value of investment securities at December 31, 2007 and 2006 are as follows (in thousands):

2007
Gross Gross
Amortized unrealized unrealized Fair
cost __pains losses value
Held-to-maturity securities:
Mortgage-backed SECUNILIES .ovvviviviiiriinnimiee e $ 1,147 § 33 % — § 1,180
Available-for-sale securities:
U.S. government agencies and COrporations ... ..cowrmnnieeen. $ 35406 % 101§ 263 § 35244
Obligations of states and political subdivisions .............ccccovniees 12,127 63 57 12,133
Corporate bonds........ccoccceveeriii e 17,532 — 1,197 16,335
Mortgage-backed SECUFILIES ...oivevrvimniniennne e 57,930 70 380 57,620
Total debt SECUMES ...oovvveree e aa s 122,995 234 1,897 121,332
EQUILY SECUTIEIES . ereeeerrerrsrrs e sotrosssrssrsssesssresssesssres e 329 183 7 505
Total available-for-sale SECUrTHES .....v.civvverrrieierrreeenirenninins $ 123,324 % 417 § 1,904 $121,837
2006
Gross Gross
Amortized unrealized unrealized Fair
cost gains losses value
Held-to-maturity securities:
Mortgage-backed SECUTTHES ..cuovvvuriiiiimienicre e $ 1,569 3 29 8 — ¥ 1,598
Available-for-sale securities:
U.S. government agencies and corporations............vcoeeonecnecen. $ 34,604 § — 8 712§ 33,892
Obligations of states and political subdivisions.........eceviciinan. 12,560 49 33 12,576
Corporate bonds...........ccocoeciiimm s 10,530 52 11 10,571
Mortgage-backed SECUTILES .......coovviieeieriinsir e 42,332 1 1,002 41,331
TOtAl debt SECUIILIES....o.eoeoecvveeiiieieiceerrrasrrnsanenssaeaenmeeesssasasasonnes 100,026 102 1,758 98,370
EqUity SECUTIHES ...vveviviireicreriiees st 279 192 — 471
Total available-for-sale SECUFHES . ....coivervviiienirsisereeen e, $100,305 § 204 % 1,758  § 98,841

Most of the Company’s debt and equity securities are pledged to secure trust funds, public deposits, repurchase
agreements, other short-term borrowings, Federal Home Loan Bank of Pittsburgh (FHLB) borrowings, Federal
Reserve Bank of Philadelphia Discount Window borrowings and certain other deposits as required by law. U.S.
government securities pledged on repurchase agreements are under the Company’s control.
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The amortized cost and fair value of debt securities at December 31, 2007 by contractual maturity are shown below
(in thousands):

Amortized Fair
cost value
Held-to-maturity securities:
Mortgage-backed SECUIIEIES. ..........iiiieir et rsis et erean st ee e $ 1,147 § 1,180
Available-for-sale securities:
Debt securities:
DUe in ONE YEAL OF LE85 1uevnniieiii ettt sena e e £ Loo0 $ 997
Due after one year through five Years ... seninsensassasssese: 4,999 5,012
Due after five years through ten Years.......c.ccooooicecivnieie e veecccsiese e sssssssssinen, 17,283 17,369
DIUE ATEET T8N YRATS. ....c.eitreiriiiiecieecrt ettt et e bt et erese e beeens 41,783 40,334
TOtal debl SECULIHES ..vi v ettt ettt s st et reenes e emee e e et e sabaeeens 65,065 63,712
Mortgage-backed SECUTIEIES. .........coiiviiiii et s e 57,930 57,620

Total available-for-sale debt SECUTIIES .....cvuvvueeeeeeiiiiriise ettt 5122995 §121,332

Expected maturities will differ from contractual maturities because issuers and borrowers may have the right to call
or repay obligations with or without call or prepayment penalty. Federal agency and municipal securities are
included based on their original stated maturity. Mortgage-backed securities, which are based on weighted-average
lives and subject to monthly principal pay-downs, are listed in total.
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The following table presents the fair value and gross unrealized losses of investments aggregated by investment
category and length of time and the number of securities that individual securities have been in a continuous
unrealized loss position at December 31, 2007 and 2006 (in thousands):

Less than 12 months 12 months or more Total
Fair Unrealized Fair Unrealized Fair Unrealized
value losses value losses value losses
December 31, 2007:
U.S. government
agencies and
COrPOTAIONS cuvvrrvenenrenenn. $ 5311 % 126 $ 11,827 § 137 $17,138 % 263
Obligations of states and
political subdivisions...... 5,177 55 204 2 5,381 57
Mortgage-backed
SECUItIES ..c.eovererccrecenens 12,809 16 26,603 364 39,412 380
Corporate bonds .......cveeeee. 14,076 954 2,260 243 16,336 1,197
Subtotal, debt
SECULITIES . .ciiirerriiirrrares 37,373 1,151 40,894 746 78,267 1,897
Equity securities................ 69 7 — — 69 7
Total temporarily
impaired
SECUrities.....covnnie. $37442 § 1,158 $40894 § 746 §$ 78336 § 1904
Number of securities 33 22 55
December 31, 2006:
U.S. government
agencies and
Corporations............coooc. $ 12421 § 183 § 21471 % 529 $33892 § 712
Obligations of states and
political subdivisions...... 4,820 30 203 3 5,023 33
Mortgage-backed
SECUTILIES. ... .evveererirenenaenns 6,839 45 34,435 957 41,274 1,002
Corporate bonds.................. 3,514 11 — —_ 3,514 i1
Subtotal, debt
SECUNLIEs ....occncrnrninins 27,594 269 56,109 1,489 83,703 1,758
Equity securities ............v.r.. — — — — —_ —
Total temporarily
impaired
SECUTTtIES...ovrrereenes $27594 $§ 269 $56,109 § 1489 §$ 83,703 § 1,738
Number of securities 22 32 54

Management evaluates securities for other-than-temporary impairment on a quarterly basis or more frequently when
econormic conditions or market conditions warrant such evaluation. Consideration is given to (1) the length of time
and the extent to which the fair value has been less than cost, (2) the financial condition and near-term prospects of
the issuer, and (3) the intent and ability of the Company to retain its investment in the issuer for a period of time
sufficient to allow for any anticipated recovery in fair value.

58




At December 31, 2007 the debt securities with unrealized losses have depreciated 2.4% from the Company’s
amortized cost basis. Management believes that the cause of the unrealized losses is directly related to changes in
interest rates and not credit quality, which is consistent with its experience. In general, as interest rates rise, the fair
value of fixed rate securities will decrease; as interest rates fall, their fair value will increase. Nearly all of the
securities in the portfolio have fixed rates or have predetermined scheduled rate changes, and many have call features
that allow the issuer to call the security at par before its stated maturity without penalty.

Management views the unrealized losses to be temporary based on the impact of interest rates, and their high credit
quality. In addition, the Company has the ability and intent to hold its investments for a period of time sufficient for
the fair value of the securities to recover, which may be at maturity. Management evaluates the securities for other-
than-temporary impairment at least on a quarterly basis, and more frequently when economic or market concemns

warrant such evaluation. There were no other-than-temporary impairment write-downs recorded in 2007, 2006 or
2005.

Gross realized gains and losses on sales of available-for-sale securities, determined using specific identification of
the securities were as follows:

2007 2006 2005
Gross 188hZed BAIN ...cvovives i $ 18,853 § 71,201 §$127.414
Gross realized 10SS. ...ttt eanas 18,774 70,001 122,718
NEL ZAIL.cuvieiierce et e e e a b s e re s 3 79 % 1,200 $§ 4,696

4. LOANS AND LEASES

The major classifications of loans and leases at December 31, 2007 and 2006 are summarized as follows:

2007 2006

Commercial and CRE.........ccovvvmiiie e cs v snt s sns st esenns $216,057,882 $218,213,216
Residential real @51ate.....ovvvrrvriroirei i ss b e aesassbe s s e e erens 116,978,378 112,742,692
CONBUIMIET ...vviitiiit e eeeecer st eie e e ee et s s st b st eeeede e taessabsssmessneeennsnenins 81,998,093 77,729,520
Real estate CONSIIUCHION. ....iviiiteicviecreeere et et e eeeeeenecene e e re s e eraaesaes 10,703,249 13,369,712
Direct financing [@ases .......cooeee it cesee s 511,178 588,211
TOURL 1euieiiiii et bbb e e b e e b st s esaenane e 426,248,780 422,643,351

Less: )
Allowance for 10an LOSSES.....o.cccociviiiiiiiiceeecovrrtstssataee e s e aeesrenns 4,824,401 5,444,303
Loans and 1ea8es, Met ...c.coviieieeeoe vt it csresiienias $421,424,379  $417,199,048

Net deferred loan costs of $722,000 and $618,000 have been added to the carrying value of loans at December 31,
2007 and 2006, respectively.
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Information related to impaired and past dug loans as of December 31 is as follows:

2007 2006
At December 31:
NON-BCCTUAL LOANS .. cveereeeeeevreieeeteeeeessrs s e nrnrnesrasese e edes s sbsnsnsanans $ 3,811,205 § 3,357,718
Other impaired JOAMNS ...t 2,283,501 —
Total IMpaired 10ANS ... $ 6,094,706 § 3,357,718
Amount of impaired loans that have a specific allowance ... $ 5038972 § 1,393,660
Amount of impaired loans with no specific allowance ..., 1,055,734 1,964,058
Allowance for impaired J0ans ... e 1,143,203 278,153
Accruing loans that are contractually past due as to principal or interest:
Past due 90 days Or MOTC.........cccoiviiniiinisireime s 25,470 80,603
Past due 30-89 days ..o 4,697,953 2,570,825
During the year ended December 31:
Average investment in impaired 10anS ..o 5,214,365 8,146,755
Interest income recognized on impaired [0ans ... 109,889 390,127
Interest income recognized on impaired loans (cash basis)...........c...c.e. 93,426 278,570

Information related to the changes in the allowance for loan losses as of December 31 is as follows:

2007 2006 2005
Balance, DEgINMING........coocerrerniriininne i nssesesane $5,444,303 $5,984,649 $5987,798
R B OVRIIES « e eieeeeeetiveeee e e eeeeie s b e s b baen e s sbe e rnessmenenne ettt asasnan 161,861 189,668 560,496
(Credit) provision for loan fosses ... {(60,000) 325,000 830,000
Losses charged to allowance ............cvvinnennernnnnes (721,763) (1,055,014) (1,393,645)
Balance, ending ... ..o $4,824 401  $5,444,303  $5,984,649

The Company services real estate loans for investors in the secondary mortgage market which are not included in the
accompanying consolidated balance sheet. The approximate amount of mortgages serviced amounted to
$61,023,000 at December 31, 2007 and $53,112,000 at December 31, 2006.

5. BANK PREMISES AND EQUIPMENT

Components of bank premises and equipment at December 31, 2007 and 2006 are summarized as follows:

2007 2006

LA ooeoreeeres oo eee et tesiesssessnerseasesebeesbessesabssss e nnenrn e e et st e s e e e e et e dar e $ 2,072,048 § 2,072,048
Bank PEEMIISES ...c.coeerrinaiiiis s irsere st s 7,171,328 7,492,231
Furniture, fixtures and eqUIPMENE ...........coeeiiinmnneiiiseinee e nssians 8,603,310 8,148,040
Leasehold IMpProvemeEnts. ..o mmisimisssieee s 5,102,308 3,021,602
TOLAL e e e ee et eeeee e easeeseseeaneeeseeesesbesnsn e aaeeenre e e raseebn e e eneeeateean 22,948,994 20,733,921

Less accumulated depreciation and amortization ...c..vvinnseecennecns 9,984,062 9,409,456
Bank premises and equipment, net............coovvininneereicene $12,964,932  $11.324,465

Depreciation expense, which includes amortization of leasehold improvements, was $1,297,000, $1,191,000 and
$1,189,000 for the years ended December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005, respectively.

During 2008, the Company expects to coﬁplete the construction of a new branch office in West Scranton. As of
December 31, 2007, approximately $2,000,000 of additional capital expenditures representing outstanding
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construction commitments, design, furniture and equipment will be incurred before the entire cost of the project will
be reclassified from construction in process, a component of other assets on the consolidated balance sheets, to bank
premises and equipment.

The Company leases its Green Ridge, Scranton, Pittston, West Pitiston, Moosic, Kingston, Peckville, Clarks Summit
and Eynon branches under the terms of operating leases. Rental expense was $435,000 for 2007, $428,000 for 2006
and $380,000 for 2005. The future minimum rental payments at December 31, 2007 under these leases are as

follows:

Year ending December 31 Amount
2008 < e e $ 375,225
2009 o e ettt st s 347,962
20T et et b e ran 345,484
201T et et e bbb e e 347,151
2002 et ettt 350,484
2013 and thereafter. ..o eerr st 4,261,752

TOtal ..o e $ 6,028,058

6. DEPOSITS

At December 31, 2007, the scheduled maturities of certificates of deposit are as follows:

2008 oot eee et s $113,910,750 63.9%
2009 ..o e et e ae st 53,147,973 29.8
20T0 oo bt e bae e 8,394,364 4.7
ZOTL e err e e sa e s e et e s e s ns e et 1,392,190 0.8
2002 e e s 1,121,297 0.7
2013 and thereafter...o..iii i 233,968 0.1
$178,200,542 100.0%

Certificate of deposit accounts of $100,000 or more aggregated $8(,857,000 and $63,020,000 at December 31, 2007
and 2006, respectively.

Investment securities with a fair value of $63,505,000 and letters of credit with a notional amount of $10,563,000 as
of December 31, 2007 were pledged as collateral to secure public deposits and trust funds,

7. SHORT-TERM BORROWINGS

Short-term borrowings are as follows at December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005:

2007 2006 2005
Securities sold under repurchase agreements................. $20,504,408 $22,224445 $26,912,700
Demand note, U.S. Treasury ........c.ccovevvvemsmeeecreieenenn, 201,946 1,036,705 1,091,297
Qvernight BOITOWINES ..oovvveieevrisvc s ervsreravnn s 18,950,600 10,395,000 769,000
Total oo $39,656,354 $33,656,150 $28,772,997

61




The maximum and average amounts of short-term borrowings outstanding and related interest rates for the years
ended December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005 are as follows:

Maximum Weighted-
outstanding average
at any Average rate during Rate at
month end outstanding the yvear year end
2007
Overnight bbrrowings ........................ $30,795,000 $ 8,781,767 5.17% 4.24%
Repurchase agreements...........ccceeve, 21,678,303 19,579,632 2.38% 1.94%
Demand note, U.S. Treasury ............. 1,057,677 523,018 6.19% 3.60%
Total v $53,530,980 $28,884,417
2006 .
Overnight borrowings ......... eeeernen $13,308,000 % 6,110,115 521% 5.36%
Repurchase agreements..............coe.e.. 24,917,518 23,390,881 2.67% 2.80%
Demand note, U.S. Treasury .............. 1,081,822 500,907 6.11% 5.06%
Total ..coviierrrrreeeeeeeie $39,307,340  $30,001,903
2005
Overnight borrowings ....c.c.ccoovvnvninn $15,850,000 § 8,002,896 3.59% 4.22%
Repurchase agreements.........c.ccoeeeeens 56,137,013 - 35,105,825 1.81% 1.89%
Demand note, U.S. Treasury .............. 1,091,297 685,572 3.35% 3.96%
Total e $73,078,310  $43,794,253

Overnight borrowings may include both Fed funds purchased with correspondent banks and open repurchase
agreements with the FHLB. Securities sold under agreements to repurchase (repurchase agreements) are non-
insured interest-bearing liabilities that have a security interest in qualified investment securities of the Company.
Repurchase agreements are reflected at the amount of cash received in connection with the transaction. The carrying
value of the underlying qualified investment securities was approximately $22,000,000, $25,000,000 and
$27,000,000 at December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005, respectively. The Company may be required to provide
additional collateral based on the fair value of the underlying securities. The U. S. Treasury demand note is
generally repaid within 1 to 90 days,

At December 31, 2007, the Company had approximately $122,134,000 available to borrow from the FHLB,
$11,050,000 from correspondent banks and approximately $5,652,000 that it could borrow at the Discount Window
from the Federa! Reserve Bank of Philadelphia. There were no borrowings from the Federal Reserve Bank Discount
Window at December 31, 2007, 2006 or 2005.

8. LONG-TERM DEBT
Long-term debt consists of advances from the FHLB with interest rates ranging from 2.98% to 6.14% at December
31, 2007. These advances are secured by unencumbered U.S. government agency securities, mortgage-backed

securities, certain residential mortgages and other real estate collateralized loans with a combined fair value of
$206,000,000 at December 31, 2007.
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At December 31, 2007, the maturities and weighted-average interest rates of long-term debt are as follows:

Year ending December 31, Amount ' Rate
2008 e e $ 708,677 2.98%
200D et e ane s 20,000,000 5.13
2000 e e en 21,000,000 5.84
2003 bt 5,000,000 3.61
2006 e e 16,000,000 5.26
TOtAL it $62,708,677 5.26%

Rates on $42,000,000 of convertible select FHLB advances are fixed but may adjust quarterly, should market rates

i increase beyond the issues’ original or strike rates. Significant prepayment penalties attached to the borrowings is a
deterrent from paying off the high cost advances. However, in the event underlying market rates drift above the
rates currently paid on these borrowings, the FHLB rate will convert to floating and the Bank has the option, at that
time, to repay or to renegotiate the converted advance. As of December 31, 2007 the weighted-average interest rate
on these convertible select advances was 5.35% with maturity dates ranging from 2010 to 2016,

9. STOCK PLANS

The Company uses the fair value method of accounting for stock-based compensation provided under SFAS 123R,
Share Based Payment. SFAS 123R requires that the cost of share-based payment transactions (including those with
employees and non-employees}) be recognized in the financial statements. SFAS 123R applies to all share-based
payment transactions in which an entity acquires goods or services by issuing (or offering to issue) its shares, share
options, or other equity instruments (except for those held by an ESOP) or by incurring liabilities (1) in amounts
based (even in part) on the price of the entity’s shares or other equity instruments, or (2) that require (or may
require) settlement by the issuance of an entity’s shares or other equity instruments.

The Company has two stock-based compensation plans (the stock option plans). The stock option plans were
sharehoider-approved and permit the grant of share-based compensation awards to its directors, key officers and
certain other employees. The Company believes that these stock option plans better align the interest of its directors,
key officers and employees with the interest of its sharcholders. The Company further believes that the granting of
share-based awards, under the provisions of the stock option plans, is necessary to retain the knowledge base,
continuity and expertise of its directors, key officers and certain employees. During the fourth quarter of 2007,
various amendment provisions to the stock option plans concerning their administration are intended to qualify the
plans for exemption from the application of Section 409A of the Internal Revenue Code, as contemplated by the
recently released final Treasury Regulations under the Code. Other amendments to the stock option plans are
described more fully below.

The Company established the 2000 Independent Directors Stock Option Plan (the Directors Plan} and reserved
55,000 shares of its un-issued capital stock for issvance under the plan. 1n addition 1o the amendment 1o the
Directors’ Plan noted above, the Directors Plan was also amended to remove automatic stock option granting in
January of each year and allow the grant of stock options at any time at the discretion of the Company’s Board of
Directors. This plan was further atnended to add a six-month vesting period for options granted. During 2007,
17,500 stock options were granted under the Directors’ Plan. No stock options were awarded during each of the
years ended December 31, 2006 and 2005 due to the directors’ voluntary election to forego the award, As of
December 31, 2007, there were 32,350 unexercised stock options outstanding under this plan.

The Company has also established the 2000 Stock Incentive Ptan (the Incentive Plan) and reserved 55,000 shares of
its un-issued capital stock for issuance under the plan. In addition to the amendment to the Incentive Plan noted
above, the [ncentive Plan was also amended to provide that no qualified incentive stock options will be granted after
the date of the amendments. Under the Incentive Plan, as amended, key officers and certain other employees are
eligible to be awarded non-qualified stock options to purchase the Company’s common stock at the fair market
value on the date of grant. During 2007 and 2006, 5,000 non-qualified shares and 2,200 qualified incentive shares,
respectively, were granted under the Incentive Plan. No stock options were granted during the year ended
December 31, 2005. As of December 31, 2007, there were 10,830 unexercised stock options outstanding under this
plan.




A summary of the status of the Company’s stock option plans as of December 31, 2007, December 31, 2006 and
December 31, 2005 and changes during the periods is presented in the following table:

Weighted-
average
Weighted- remaining
average contractual
Options exercise price term (yrs)
Outstanding and exercisable, December 31, 2004 ...... 20,570 % 32.29 5.7
GIamEd. ... oeieeeieriee e s e e estetsiab e e e s e s s serrrnrerarare e as — —
EXETCISE....viiicvivei et asrreeeseeeerie e s s s sme s — —_
FOTFRItEA . eever e eitirsers e s rrrsnsesrevrn s eeeeras s cnessares (440} 34.09
Outstanding and exercisable, December 31, 2005 ...... 20,130 32.25 4.7
GIANTED e e eeeeeereie e e eeeeeesere s tasresrrerrresrnssneseeeens 2,200 36.59
EXEICISEU oo e eeiriorereeceeeeemeecetveersresstnssrnsarnneern e saneesnes — —
FOfEited . ooneeeeeeeeeeeesreeeeeee e evress s seri s s sressreaessnas e (1,650} 33.07
Outstanding and exercisable, December 31, 2006...... 20,680 32.64 4.3
GTANEA oo er et eeressirevaereeereaereeeeeeesessinsasnneaeaanns 22,500 28.90
EXErciSed....cooveeceiieeeeiiisienseeserseeesinnesssnee s snmee e e ssisassnans — —
FOfeited ..o ieemreeee et ie et sr s nnsees s s — —
Quitstanding, December 31, 2007 ........ccoooirrririeevenenen 43,180 30.69 6.8
Exercisable, December 31, 2007 20,680 % 32.64

In the above table, the weighted-average exercise price includes options with exercise prices ranging from $28.18 to $36.59.
Also, in the above table, only options that are fully vested are included in the amounts that are exercisable as of the date indicated.

As of December 31, 2007 and 2006, the intrinsic value (stock options with fair values that exceeded their exercise or
strike price) aggregated approximately $1,200 and $28,000, respectively.

Under the stock option plans, options are granted with an exercise price equal to the market price of the Company’s
stock at the date of grant. The awards vest based on six months of continuous service from the date of grant and
have 10-year contractual terms. Generally, all shares that are granted become fully vested.

The Company does not have stock options that are traded on organized capital exchanges. As such, the estimated
fair value of options awarded under its stock option plans is determined, on the date of grant, using the Bilack-
Scholes Option Pricing Valuation Model (the model). For the options granted in 2007 and 2006, the model
incorporated the assumptions noted in the following table:

2007 2006
Expected vOlatility .......ccooveiiciiiiinins s 2536 % 16.00 %
Expected dividend........coouvverrrmrrriin s, 3.46 % 2.41%
Risk-free INTErest TALE ....o.iiviviieccr et e sasee s 357% 4.35%
Expected term ...t 5.25 years 5.25 years

The expected volatility was determined based on the daily five-year historical volatility of the Company’s stock.
Management believes the five-year historical volatility measurement closely resembles the fluctuation of its stock
value under most economic conditions and cycles. Because of the relatively short vesting period, the model assumes
that all options granted will fully vest. The risk-free rate is for the period within the expected term of the options
based on the U.S. Treasury yield curve. The Company used the simplified method to determine the term in which
options are expected to be outstanding. The Company does not have sufficient historical share option exercise
experience upon which to estimate expected term and therefore used the simplified method.
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The following table summarizes the per share weighted-average fair value of options granted:

2007 2006
Weighted- Weighted-
Optiens average grant Options average grant
granted date fair value granted date fair value
Directors’ Plan ......o.oooooeieeniiee, 17,500 % 5.57 — % —_
Incentive Plan .......oooovveevvviiiieeeece, 5,000 5.57 2,200 6.21
Total ..o, 22,500 § 5.57 2,200 § 6.21

Approximately $8,900 and $13,700 of stock-based compensation expense was recorded during the twelve months
ended 2007 and 2006, respectively, and is included as a component of salaries and employee benefits in the
consolidated income statement. As of December 31, 2007, there were 22,500 non-vested shares with a grant-date
fair value of $5.57 per share. In addition, as of December 31, 2007, there was approximately $114,000 of
unrecognized compensation expense related to these non-vested shares granted under the stock option plans. The
non-vested shares are expected to be fully vested and the related unrecognized compensation is expected to be fully
recognized during the first half of 2008.

In addition to the two stock option plans, the Company has established the 2002 Employee Stock Purchase Plan (the
ESPP) and has reserved 110,000 shares of its un-issued capital stock for issuance under the plan. The plan was
designed to promote bread-based employee ownership of the Company’s stock. Under the ESPP, employees may
have automatic payroll deductions to purchase the Company’s capital stock at a discounted price based at the fair
market value of the Company’s capital stock on either the commencement date or termination date. At December
31,2007, 8,317 shares have been issued under the ESPP, The ESPP is considered a compensatory plan and, as
such, is required to comply with the provisions of SFAS 123R. The Company recognizes compensation expense on
its ESPP on the date the shares are purchased. For the year ended December 31, 2007 and 2006, compensation
expense related to the ESPP approximated $7,000 and $15,000, respectively and is included as a component of
salaries and employee benefits in the consolidated income statement. For the year ended December 31, 2008, the
Company expects to issue approximately 2,300 shares and recognize compensation expense of $3,000 under the
ESPP.

Also, as of December 31, 2007, the Company has reserved 110,000 shares of its un-issued capital stock for issuance
under a dividend reinvestment plan (the DRP). Reserved shares issued under the DRP are valued at fair value as of
the dividend payment date. At December 31, 2007, 29,330 shares are available for future issuance.

10. INCOME TAXES

The Company adopted FASB Interpretation No. 48, Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes—an interpretation
of FASB Statement No. 109 (FIN 48) during the first quarter of 2007 and has evaluated its material tax positions as
of December 31, 2007. The adoption of FIN 48 had no effect on its consolidated financial statements. Under the
“more-likely-than-not” threshold guidelines, the Company believes no significant uncertain tax positions exist,
either individually or in the aggregate, that would give rise to the non-recognition of an existing tax benefit. In
periods subsequent to December 31, 2007, determinations of potentially adverse material tax positions will be
evaluated to determine whether an uncertain tax position may have previously existed or has been originated. In the
event an adverse tax position is determined to exist, penalty and interest will be accrued, in accordance with the
Internal Revenue Service guidelines, and recorded as a component of other expenses in the Company’s consolidated
statements of income.

As of December 31, 2007, there were no unrecognized tax benefits that, if recognized, would significantly
affect the Company’s effective tax rate. Also, as of December 31, 2007, there were no penalties and interest
recognized in the consolidated statements of income as a result of the adoption of FIN 48, nor does the
Company foresee a change in its material tax positions that would give rise to the non-recognition of an existing
tax benefit during the forthcoming twelve months.




The following temporary differences gave rise to the deferred tax asset (liability) at December 31, 2007 and 2006:

2007 2006
Deferred tax assets: )
Allowance for LOAN LOSSES . ....oiviiiiiieriieiecieininr s isieessssrisaesinessreesmeesaseaseessseen: $1,640296 $1,851,063
Unrealized losses on available-for-sale securities..........covvvvenivnvcneniereneencnens 505,861 497,486
Deferred interest from non-accrual loanS...........cooovvrievciieesreirerrrr s ieees e sneees 297,482 163,593
Deferred COMPENSAION .u.vivveviiererererrceeeee e 24,479 43,702
Retirement Settlement TESEIVE ... .c.ouiuerimieiereciri i, 39,714 46,918
01 1= U OO eEUOUTOPO TSRO OR USROS 111,228 87,755
FOMAL ottt ettt etttk st eh et s et ene e 2,619,060 2,690,517
Deferred tax liabilities:
DEPTECIALION ..t teveeeeeeiae s ereerr et s s e s e e b b bbb er e s (251,475) (328,321)
Loan fees and COSIS o seermae e s e et tabs st st (469,892) (396,355)
L0117 OO OO E OO T OO OOV TSRO RSOR (108,168) (105,853)
Total........... ................................. SO OO U VRO (829,535) {830,529)
Deferred tax SSEL, B ....iiiiiiiicrieieiersesieeereeseessrasrerreraseeeeemseasesseesse, $1,789,525 §1,859,988
The provision for income taxes for the years ended December 31 are as follows:
2007 2006 2005
CUITENT ..octeeccctcseeseeresrsstessernssensesesnsessensnsesssnsessesesseasnsssassnsessesnnen: $1,557,327 $1,437,083 $1,785,060
Deferred ..o et 78,838 (75,003) (318,948)
Total PrOVISION ....ccveeeerreereenesemcrereeseenseresesreeesessssstsssssssnenins, $1,636,165 $1,362,080 $1,466,112
The recongiliation between the expected sfatutory income tax and the actual provision for income taxes is as
follows:
2007 2006 2005
Expected provision at the statutory rate ..., $2,124,231 $1,865,703 $2,059,655
Tax-EXEMPE INCOME .evvevreeerermemreecrreeercrmeeesre e seereeectaastesssssasssasaasens (348,903) (376,906) (353,559)
Nondeductible interest eXpense .........coccovrerrrneceisioiinisisnnnnn 47,385 54,670 43,206
Bank owned life insurance............ eveererareea et et e eanceaneeaneetaeeieesiaea (105,639) (97,261) (94.677)
Nondeductible other expenses and other, net...............cccocvnininis 36,792 33,575 (68,489)
Low income housing tax credits .........covvecvsinmmesiesseceieseeeeees (117,701) (117,701) (120,114)
Actual provision for INCOME LAXES ..vvevrveisrnsensesessissree e $1,636,165 $1,362,080 $1,466,112

11. RETIREMENT PLAN

The Company has a defined contribution profit sharing 401(k) plan covering substantiaily all of its employees.
The plan is subject to the provisions of the Employee Retirement Income Security Act of 1974 (ERISA).
Contributions to the plan were approximately $292,000 in 2007, $242,000 in 2006 and $214,000 in 2005.
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12. FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND DERIVATIVES

The following table represents the carrying amount and estimated fair value of the Company’s financial
instruments as of December 31 (in thousands):

2007 2006
Carrying  Estimated Carrying  Estimated
amount fair value amount fair value
Financial assets:
Cash and cash equivalents.........c.c..occevererrceneeenennns $10,409 $10,409 $13,801 $13,801
Held-to-maturity securities..........c.ccoveeevvieacnreeniens 1,147 1,180 1,569 1,598
Available-for-sale securities........coccooviveeeevscieeeeens 121,837 121,837 98,841 98,841
FHLB St0CK. civiviivvciie v erenree s sreesnne s 3,303 3,303 3,795 3,795
Loans and 18a5eS....c.cccooccevinienie s creeerererens 421,424 423219 417,199 410,412
Loans available-for-sale ........cocoe v iveeinneciennen, 827 843 122 123
Accrued INETESt.. ..o 2,501 2,501 2,503 2,503
Financial liabilities:
Deposit Habilities. .o erereeeeeennns 425,708 426,357 410,335 408,903
Short-term borrowings ...........cocceveeirsimrsrceesnseenns 39,656 39,656 33,656 33,658
Long-term debt......cccoovmveineiieerieeeicteee e 62,709 65,514 62,536 63,663
ACCrued INETEST .o 1,736 1,736 2,382 2,382
On-balance sheet derivative instrument:
Cash flow hedge ......ccovveiiniinieciieicc 441 441 225 225

Financial Instruments with Off-Balance Sheet Risk

The Company is a party to financial instruments with off-balance-sheet risk in the normal course of business to
meet the financing needs of its customers and to manage its exposure to interest rate risk. Interest rate risk
includes the possibility that the Company’s net interest income will be adversely affected as a result of changes in
interest rates. These financial instruments include commitments to extend credit, standby letters of credit and
interest rate floors. Those instruments involve, to varying degrees, elements of credit and interest rate risk in
excess of the amount recognized in the balance sheet. The contract or notional amounts of those instruments
reflect the extent of the Company’s involvement in particular classes of financial instruments.

As of December 31, 2007 and 2006, the notional amount and estimated fair values of the Company’s financial
instruments with off-balance sheet risk were as follows (in thousands):

2007 2006
Notional Estimated Notional Estimated
amount fair value amount fair value
Off-balance sheet financial instruments:
Commitments to extend credit.......ocvovoeeecimieanan, $£83,379 $83379 §71,277 $71,277
Standby letters of credit oo 5,950 5,950 5,535 5,535
Cash flow hedge.....coo oo, 20,000 441 20,000 225

In the above table, the estimated fair value of the cash flow hedge is an on-balance sheet item.

Commitments to Extend Credit and Standby Letters of Credit

The Company’s exposure to credit loss from nonperformance by the other party to the financial instruments for
commitments to extend credit and standby letters of credit is represented by the contractual amount of those
instruments. The Company uses the same credit policies in making commitments and conditional obligations as it
does for on-balance-sheet instruments.




Commitments to extend credit are legally binding agreements to lend to customers. Commitments generally have
fixed expiration dates or other termination clauses and may require payment of fees. Since commitments may expire
without being drawn upon, the total commitment amounts do not necessarily represent future liquidity requirements.
The Company evaluates each customer’s credit-worthiness on a case-by-case basis. The amount of collateral
obtained, if considered necessary by the Company on extension of credit, is based on management’s credit
assessment of the customer.

Financial standby letters of credit are conditional commitments issued by the Company to guarantee performance of a
customer to a third party. Those guarantees are issued primarily to support public and private borrowing
arrangements, including commercial paper, bond financing, and similar transactions. The Company’s performance
under the guarantee is required upon presentation by the beneficiary of the financial standby letter of credit. The
credit risk involved in issuing letters of credit is essentially the same as that involved in extending loan facilities to
customers. The Company does not have any recourse provisions or hold any assets that would enable it to recover
from third parties any of the amounts paid under the guarantee. The Company was not required to recognize any
liability in connection with the issuance of these financial standby letters of credit,

The following table summarizes outstanding financial letters of credit as of December 31, 2007 (in thousands):

Less than One to five Over five

one year years years Total

Secured by: '
Collateral ...t $ 1,570 % 720 $ 2,564 § 4,854
GUATANLEES ..o eiee e eeeer e eeee s seeeeeaebrseesssseaarns 88 — — 88
Bank lines of credit .....ocvoveveveeeeeeeeeeeee e 934 — — 934
2,592 720 2,564 5,876
UNSECUEd . ruiiiiicinree e cnr e cieeeerree e estne e s snrre e s e e s enans 69 5 — 74
TOAL e eeb e s ar e srara s $ 2,661 § 725 $ 2,564 § 5,950

The Company has not incurred any losses on its commitments in 2007, 2006 or 2005.
Interest Rate Floors, Caps and Swaps

As part of the Company’s overall interest rate risk management strategy, the Company has adopted a policy whereby
it may periodically use derivative instruments to minimize significant fluctuations in earnings caused by interest rate
volatility. This interest rate risk management strategy entails the use of interest rate floors, caps and swaps. During
the fourth quarter of 2006, the Company entered into a three-year interest rate floor derivative agreement on
$20,000,000 notional value of its prime-based loan portfolio. The transaction required the payment of a premium by
the Company to the seller for the right to receive payments in the event national prime drops below a pre-determined
level (strike rate), essentially converting floating rate loans to fixed rate loans when prime drops below the
contractual strike rate. When purchased, the Company recorded an asset representing the fair value of the hedge at
the time of purchase. The Company has designated this agreement as a cash flow hedge pursuant to SFAS No. 133,
Accordingly, the change in the fair value of the instrument related to the hedge’s intrinsic value, or approximately
$385,000 in 2007 and $900 in 2006, is recorded as a component of OCI in the consolidated statement of changes in
sharcholders’ equity and the portion of the change in fair value related to the time value expiration, or approximately
$169,000 and $22,000 for the years ended December 31, 2007 and 2006, respectively, is recorded in the consolidated
statement of income as a reduction of interest income. No gain or loss has been recognized in earnings due to hedge
ineffectiveness as of December 31, 2007. As of December 31, 2007, the Company does not expect to reclassify any
amount from OCI to earnings over the next twelve months and no hedge has been discontinued. As of December 31,
2007 and 2006, the fair value of the derivative contract approximated $441,000 and $225,000, respectively, and is
recorded as a component of other assets in the consolidated balance sheets.

The use of derivative instruments exposes the Company to credit risk in the event of non-performance by the
agreement’s counterparty to the derivative instrument. In the event of default by the counterparty, the Company
would be subject to an economic loss that corresponds to the cost to replace the agreement. The Company controls
the credit risk associated with the derivative instrument by engaging counterparties with high credit ratings,
establishing counterparty exposure limits and monitoring procedures.
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13. EARNINGS PER SHARE

Basic earnings per share (EPS) is computed by dividing income available to common shareholders by the weighted-
average number of common shares outstanding for the period. Diluted EPS is computed in the same manner as basic
EPS but reflects the potential dilution that could occur if stock options to issue additional common stock were
exercised, which would then result in additional stock outstanding to share in or dilute the earnings of the Company.
The Company maintains two share-based compensation plans that may generate additional potential dilutive common
shares. Generally, dilution would occur if Company-issued stock options were exercised and converted into common
stock.

In the computation of diluted EPS, the Company uses the treasury stock method to determine the dilutive effect of its
granted but unexercised stock options. Under this method, the assumed proceeds received from shares issued, in a
hypothetical stock option exercise, are assumed to be used to purchase treasury stock. Pursuant to the guidance of
SFAS No. 128, Egrnings Per Share, proceeds include: proceeds from the exercise of outstanding stock options;
compensation cost for future service that the Company has not yet recognized; and any “windfall” tax benefits that
would be credited directly to shareholders’ equity when the grant generates a tax deduction (or a reduction in
proceeds if there is a charge to equity). For a further discussion on the Company’s stock plans, see note 9, above.

The following data illustrates the data used in computing earnings per share and the effects on income and the
weighted-average number of shares of potentially dilutive common stock for the years ended December 31, 2007,
2006 and 2005: The number of shares and per-share data has been adjusted, for all periods, to reflect a 10% stock
dividend paid on February 13, 2006:

2007 2006 2005

Basic EPS:
Net income available to common shareholders.........cooovvveeeeceeeeeeeesee e $4,611,572 $4,125283  $4,591,697
Weighted-average common shares outstanding.............coeeeeercnieinneverenreennnen, 2,066,683 2,047,975 2,031,211
Basic EPS ...t e bttt $ 223§ 201 % 2.26
Diluted EPS:
Net income available to common shareholders. ........oovevveeveeeeeeeee e, $4,611,572 §$4,125283 $4,591,697
Weighted-average common shares outstanding.....c.ccocoeeveeviviercveseceneeiiennens 2,066,683 2,047,975 2,031,211
Diluted potential COmMMON SHATES .........oovvieers ittt ereess s s s seens 386 1,172 2,924
Weighted-average common shares and dilutive potential shares

OUESTANAINZ ..\ v vreeire e e eees e s sbessssassbssasebesntsrsensssesnan 2,067,069 2,049,147 2,034,135
DiIlUted EPS ..o e ess e bbb s b 223 % 201 § 2.25

14. REGULATORY MATTERS

The Company (on a consolidated basis) and the Bank are subject to various regulatory capital requirements
administered by the federal banking agencies. Failure to meet minimum capital requirements can initiate certain
mandatory and possible additional discretionary actions by regulators that, if undertaken, could have a direct material
effect on the Company’s and the Bank’s financial statements. Under capital adequacy guidelines and the regulatory
framework for prompt corrective action, the Company and the Bank must meet specific capital guidelines that involve
quantitative measures of their assets, liabilities and certain off-balance-sheet items as calculated under regulatory
accounting practices. The capital amounts and classification are also subject to qualitative judgments by the
regulators about components, risk-weightings and other factors. Prompt corrective action provisions are not
applicable to bank holding companies.
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Quantitative measures, established by regulation to ensure capital adequacy, require the Company and the Bank to
maintain minimum amounts and ratios (set forth in the table below) of total and Tier | capital (as defined in the
regulations) to risk-weighted assets (as defined), and of Tier I capital (as defined) to average assets (as defined). As
of December 31, 2007, the Company and the Bank met all capital adequacy requirements to which they are subject.

To be categorized as well capitalized, the Company and the Bank must maintain minimum total risk-based, Tier |
risk-based and Tier | leverage ratios as set forth in the following table. The Company’s and the Bank’s actual capital
armounts and ratios are also presented in the table. No amounts were deducted from capital for interest-rate risk in

either 2007 or 2006.

As of December 31, 2007:

Total capital (to risk-
weighted assets)

Consolidated ..o

Tier | capital (to risk-
weighted assets)
Consolidated ..........cccceee.

Tier | capital (to average
assets)
Consolidated .........cooevne.

As of December 31, 2006:

Total capital (to risk-
weighted assets)

Consolidated ...........c.coe..e.

Tier I capital (to risk-
weighted assets)
Consolidated ......cccccriernnann,

Tier I capital (to average
assets)
Consolidated .........c..ccoeeee.

Te be well capitalized

For capital under prompt corrective
Actual adequacy purposes action provisions
Amount Ratio Amount Ratio Amount Ratio
$£60,657,888 13.6% 2$35,593,844 =8.0% N/A N/A
$60,313,618 13.6% 2$35,587,244 >8.0% 2$44,484,055 >10.0%
$55,754,463 12.5% 2$17,796,922 24.0% N/A N/A
$55,485,085 12.5% 2$17,793,622 >4.0% 2>$26,690,433 26.0%
$55,754,463 9.5% =2$23,573.565 >4.0% N/A N/A
$55,485,085 9.4% 2$23,557.576 ' 24.0% =>$29,446,969 =5.0%
$57,777,905 14.0% 2$32,913,690 =8.0% N/A N/A
$57,476,581 14.0% >$32,908,004 >8.0% >$41,135,005 210.0%
$52,544,818 12.8% 2$16,456,845 =4.0% N/A N/A
- $52,322,924 12.7% >$16,454,002 24.0% 2$24,681,003 >6.0%
$52,544,818 9.3% =$22,533,961 >4.0% N/A N/A
$52,322,924 9.3% >$22,518,803  24.0%  2$28,148,504  >5.0%

The Bank can pay dividends to the Company equal to the Bank’s retained earnings which approximated $46,720,000
at December 31, 2007. However, such dividends are limited due to the capital requirements discussed above.

15, RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

During the ordinary course of business, loans are made to executive officers, directors, greater than 5% shareholders
and associates of such persons. These transactions are executed on substantially the same terms and at the rates
prevailing at the time for comparable transactions with others. These loans do not involve more than the normal risk
of collectibility or present other unfavorable features. A summary of loan activity with officers, directors, associates
of such persons and shareholders who own more than 5% of the Company’s outstanding shares is as follows:




2007 . 2006 2005

Balance, beginning ............ocoovevemeveeeeeeeeecceereeveereeeeeean $§ 9,028,873 $ 9,165,554 $ 9,243,286
Adjustments for loans to individuals no longer
officers, directors, associates or greater than 5%

shareholders.........cocoviiiiniiinic it (1,254,485) — (1,100)
AAItIONS ..ot 1,261,950 1,600,137 1,560,469
COLIECHONS e eveveeeemseeeseeeeererseeeee e eeeseesesmeeeseseeenee (1,370,628) (1,736,818) (1,637,101)
Balance, ending ..o, $ 7,665,710 $ 9,028,873 $ 9,165,554

Aggregate loans to directors and associates exceeding 2.5% of shareholders’ equity included in the table above are as
follows:

2007 2006 2005
Number 0f PErsons........eecivvererisiniecieesterere e 2 2 2
Balance, beginming ............coceverrererririrericeereeestsie e 87,349,167 $7,446,933 $7,890,075
AddItions ......cveeecccee e 793,049 2,312,295 334,734
COlleCtiONS ... s sess s sessnsere e (946,137) (1,203,870)  (777,876)
Prior loan balances no longer exceeding threshold.............. —  (1,206,191) —
Balance, ending .........cocvveeiiiiinieni et $7,196,079 $7349,167 $7,446,933

As of December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005, deposits from executive officers, directors and associates of such persons
approximated $8,100,000, $7,876,000 and $5,405,000, respectively.

16. QUARTERLY FINANCIAL INFORMATION (UNAUDITED)

The following is a summary of quarterly results of operations for the years ended December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005
(in thousands, except per share data):

First Second Third Fourth

2007 quarter quarter quarter quarter Total
INterest INCOME....vvvvviveeereeieerisieeeeees e $ 8632 $ 8684 %8892 %9071 $35279
Interest EXPense ........coovveerreeerercrercrereresenenns (4,328) (4,362) (4470) (4,500) (17,660)
Net interest iNCOME ......ccceeeeveeeecrrereeeererevne e 4,304 4,322 4,422 4,571 17,619
Credit for 1oan 1088€S .........cccecevvvvvvrievievrerenns,s — — 60 — 60
Other INCOME ..o ssree s 1,214 1,329 1,309 1,354 5,206
Other eXpenses. ..o ie e ses s erssnenes (4,113) (4,087) (4,189) (4,248) (16,637)
Income before income taxes ........oovvvererirnrnrens 1,405 1,564 1,602 1,677 6,248
Provision for income taxes ..........cevumreervrrenses (361) (405) {424) {(446)  (1,636)
NEL INCOME ... irrvrrerrieeerrresrressereesrarsestessessene $1,044 $ 1,159 § 1,178 § 1,231 § 4,612
Net income per share ............coeevcnvninenennniinienns $ 051 % 056 % 057 § 059 § 223
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First Second Third Fourth

2006 " quarter quarter quarter quarter Total
Interest INCOME ...t $ 7893 $ 8371 $ 8,595 § 8,671 $33,530
Interest eXpense ..........cvvvvevrvevrrevnerseenesvarsenens (3,663) (4,106) (4,281) (4,311} (16,361}
Net interest INCOME ....oovvviiinriiiiiniiiiniiisisnsssnnes 4,230 4,265 4314 4,360 17,169
Provision for loan losses ... (75 (175) (75) — (325)
Gain on sale of investment securities............... - — — 1 1
Other iNCOME ....ovvvvveerive e rseessaseeens 1,129 1,084 1,136 1,172 4,521
Other eXpenses .......cooovvvnerivciennie e (3,923) (3,948) (3,996) (4,012) (153879)
Income before income taxes...........ocoeeeevvervninns 1,361 1,226 1,379 1,521 5,487
Provision for income taxes.........cccocvvcvenvennns (329) (288) (349) (396) (1,362)
NELINCOME «.ovvevreeeeirre e $1032 § 938 $ 1,030 $ 1,125 § 4,i25
Net income per share.........ccooocvvecevesecrcrninnnns $ 051 § 045 § 051 § 054 § 201
First Second Third Fourth
2005 quarter quarter quarter quarter Total
INIETeSt INCOME ..vvveeveeveeeerereeeeeeraee s $6974 $ 7,103 57324 $ 7619 $29,020
Interest EXPENSe.....ocucvercvereesinresresiereenc e (2,698) (2,785) (2,962) (3,276} (11,721)
Net interest INCOME ..ovvviiivinerisieniieeieiecisee s 4276 4318 4,362 4,343 17,299
Provision for loan losses .........ocoeceeeiecene. ()] (300) (300) (150) (830)
Giain on sale of investment securities.............. — 3 —_ 2 5
Other INCOME........cocveiieeeee e 747 1,123 1,228 1,047 4,145
Other BXpenses ... viceiiiieenenisereerse s (3,565) (3,611) (3,591) (3,799 (14,561
Income before income taxes..........ocvevvicinninne 1,378 1,533 1,699 1,448 6,058
Provision for income taxes............cocevcvnncnn. {358) {397) (405) (306) _ (1,466)
NELINCOME 1vvireeiiiis s vviers i $1020 $ 1,136 $ 1294 § 1,142 § 4,592
Net income per share........c.covvvenenineneeenns § 050 $§ 056 § 064 § 056 8§ 2.26

17. CONTINGENCIES

The nature of the Company’s business generates some litigation involving matters arising in the ordinary course of
business. However, in the opinion of management of the Company after consulting with the Company’s legal counsel,
no legal proceedings are pending, which, if determined adversely to the Company or the Bank, would have a material
effect on the Company’s shareholders’ equity or results of operations. No legal proceedings are pending other than
ordinary routine litigation incident to the business of the Company and the Bank. 1n addition, to management’s
knowledge, no government anthorities have initiated or contemplated any material legal actions against the Company
or the Bank.

18. RECENT ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEMENTS

In September 2006, the FASB issued SFAS No. 157, Fair Value Measurements (SFAS 157). SFAS 157 defines fair
value, establishes a framework for measuring fair value in accounting principles generally accepted in the United States
of America, and expands disclosure about fair value measurements. SFAS 157 applies to other accounting standards
that require or permit fair value measurements. Accordingly, it does not require any new fair value measurements.
SFAS 157 is effective for fiscal years beginning after November 15, 2007 and interim periods within those fiscal years.
The Company does not expect the adoption of this pronouncement to have a material effect on its consolidated
financial statements.
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In February 2007, FASB issued SFAS 159, The Fair Value Option for Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities,
which permits entities to choose to measure at fair value eligible financial instruments and certain other items that are
not currently required to be measured at fair value. SFAS 159 requires that unrealized gains and losses on items for
which the fair value option has been elected be reported in earnings at each reporting date. SFAS 159 is effective for
fiscal years beginning after November 15, 2007, The Company does not expect the adoption of this pronouncement to
have a material effect on its consolidated financial statements.

In November 2007, the SEC staff issued Staff Accounting Bulletin (SAB) No. 109, Written Loan Commitments
Recorded at Fair Value Through Earnings. SAB 109 requires entities to include the expected net future cash flows
related to the associated servicing of the loan in the measurement of its written loan commitments that are accounted
for at fair value through earnings. The provisions of SAB 109 are applicable on a prospective basis to written loan
commitments recorded at fair value under GAAP that are issued or modified in fiscal quarters beginning after
December 15, 2007. The Company does not expect the adoption of this pronouncement to have a material impact on
its consolidated financial statements,

19. PARENT COMPANY ONLY

The following is the condensed financial information for Fidelity b & D Bancorp, Inc. on a parent company only basis
(in thousands):

Condensed Balance Sheets

December 31,
2007 2006
Assets:
11 | SO OO USSR TR TR Ny 2 8 17
Investment in SUBSIAIATY ....ccooveiieiiiiiric sttt eeeas 54,812 51,275
Securities available-for-51E. ... ... errtr e ereanees 489 447
TOUAL ettt e e $55303 $51,739
Liabilities and shareholders’ equity:
LIABIIEIES ..o ran et s s e st s st s st s st s enesan s sana b s et astnsans § 112 § 127
Shareholders” BQUILY ......ccovvvviereirc et e e be b e, oy 55,191 51,612
TOL .ottt s et s e st e st s st s sae s aassn e san e ebe e b e ebesaberaees $55,303 §51,739

Condensed Income Statements

Years ended December 31,

2007 2006 2005

Income:
Equity in undistributed earmings of subsidiary..............ccoeeeiinreinans w0 3,163 32972 33,504
Dividends from subSIdiary ......cccoceeviciivviiniiiissirs e 1,613 1,253 1,167
OREE ITCOMIE ..ot et s et ee e e e e e e e esam e esenesaneeeaesesanenas 13 14 12
TOA] IICOME...c.oi et e 4,78¢ 4,239 4,683
OPErating CXPEMNSES ...vvvereeureerrreerersriseieieiessesistereseeraresessessesesessesessaseens 267 163 136
Income before INCOME tAXES........occveeiieeiceeiee e sr e et eteesteesieens 4,522 4,076 4,547
Credit fOr INCOME tAXES c.vvueirie ittt es e st e e e et e et e e se e et eene e e aeaene s 90 49 45
INEEINCOIMIE ..ottt ee e e e e e et e e e e eeeaeeeeneseeeeaesnaenees $ 4,612 $4,125 $4,592
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Condensed Statements of Cash Flows

Years ended December 31,

2007 2006 2005
Cash flows from operating activities:
TNEL INCOME 1vviviritieeereiceieeeteeintseseessntsssnrrsstnsesbesssntersresasesssnnesssseansneesns $4,612 $4,125 $4,592
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash used in operations:

* Equity in earnings of subsidiary ... (4777 (4,225 (4,671)
Stock-based compensation eXPense .........ocvveverereerierneeeseeeeeee e 16 29 —
Deferred income tax benefit. ..o e e {3) — —
Changes in other assets and liabilities, net..........cccoovveinsinnsenenicns (10) 19 16

Net cash used in operating activities ..........c.o..., e e (162) {52) (63)
Cash flows provided by investing activities:
Dividends received from subsidiary ... 1,613 1,253 1,167
Purchases of securities available forsale ..., (50) — —
Net cash provided by investing activities .........ccococooriiriiiininns 1,563 1,253 1,167
Cash flows from financing activities:
Dividends paid, net of dividend reinvestment ... (1,484) (1,240) (1,133)
Exercise of stock Options.......covceeevviiriiimiiii — — —
Withholdings to purchase capital stock........ccoovviiiiiiiiininn 68 48 32
Net cash used in financing activities ......c..ocoovcevecirisnennrininnns (1,416) (1,192) (1,101)
Net (decrease) increase in Cash.......ciiiiccicenicnnincnninns (15) 9 3
Cash, BEZIMNINE. ... ov vt 17 8 5
Cash, eNdINg....ccvivrieniieerereee e s $§ 2 % 17 % 8
Item 9: CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTANTS ON ACCOUNTING AND FINANCIAL
DISCLOSURE
None.

Item 94: CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES

As of the end of the period covered by this Annual Report on Form 10-K, an evaluation was carried out by the
Company’s management, with the participation of its Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, of the
effectiveness of the Company’s disclosure controls and procedures, as defined in Rule 13a-15(e) under the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934, Based on such evaluation, the Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer concluded
that the Company’s disclosure controls and procedures are designed to ensure that information required to be disclosed
in the reports the Company files or furnishes under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 is recorded, processed,
summarized and reported within the time periods specified in the SEC’s rules and regulations, and are operating in an
effective manner. In addition, the SEC has proposed to extend the deadline for non-accelerated filers, such as the
Company, for an auditor attestation on internal control over financial reporting for one additional year from fiscal
years ending after December 15, 2008 to fiscal years ending after December 15, 2009. Furthermore, the Company
made no significant changes in its internal controls over financial reporting or in other factors that materially affected,
or are reasonably likely to materially affect, these controls during the last fiscal quarter ended December 31, 2007,
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Management’s Report on Internal Contrel Over Financial Reporting

Management of the Company is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal control over financial
reporting. The Company’s internal control over financial reporting is a process designed under the supervision of the
Company’s Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, and implemented in conjunction with management
and other personnel, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation
of the Company’s consolidated financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles.

There are inherent limitations in the effectiveness of any internal control, including the possibility of human error and
the circumvention or overriding of controls. Accordingly, even effective internal control can provide only reasonable
assurance with respect to financial statement preparation. Further, because of changes in conditions, the effectiveness
of internal control may vary over time.

Management assessed the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control over financial reporting as of December 31,
2007. This assessment was based on criteria for effective internal control over financial reporting described in
“Internal Control — Integrated Framework,” issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway
Commission (COSO). Based on this assessment, management determined that, as of December 31, 2007, the
Company maintained effective internal control over financial reporting.

This annual report does not include an attestation report of the Company’s registered public accounting firm regarding
internal control over financial reporting. Management’s report was not subject to attestation by the Company’s
registered public accounting firm pursuant to temporary rules of the SEC that permit the Company to provide only
management’s report in this annual report.

Item 9B: OTHER INFORMATION

None.
PART IH
Item 10: DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVE OFFICERS AND CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
The information required under Items 401 and 407(c)(3), (d)(4) and (d)(5) of Regulation S-K is incorporated by
reference herein, to the information presented in the Company’s definitive Proxy Statement for its 2008 Annual
Meeting of Shareholders to be filed with the SEC.

Section 16(a) Beneficial Ownership Reporting Compliance

The information required under this section is incorporated by reference herein, to the information presented in the
Company’s definitive Proxy Statement for its 2008 Annual Meeting of Shareholders to be filed with the SEC.

Code of Ethics
The Company adopted a written code of ethics that applies to our directors, officers and employees, including our chief
executive officer and chief financial officer, which is available on our investor relations website at http://www.the-
fidelity.com under the heading “Corporate Governance” of the Investor Relations link. In addition, copies of our code

of ethics will be provided to shareholders upon written request to Fidelity D & D Bancorp, Inc., Blakely and Drinker
Streets, Dunmore, PA 18512 at no charge.

Item 11: EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION

The information required by this Item is incorporated by reference herein, to the information presented in the
Company’s 2008 definitive Proxy Statement,
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Item 12: SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT AND RELATED
STOCKHOLDER MATTERS

The information required by this Item is incorporated by reference herein, to the information presented in the
Company’s 2008 definitive Proxy Statement.

Item 13: CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACTIONS, AND DIRECTOR INDEPENDENCE

The information required by this Item, relating to transactions with management and others, certain business
relationships and indebtedness of management, is set forth above in Item 8 “Financial Statements and Supplementary
Data™ and is incorporated by reference herein to the information presented in the Company’s 2008 definitive Proxy
Statement.

Item 14: PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTANT FEES AND SERVICES

The information required by this Item is incorporated by reference herein, to the information presented in the
Company’s 2008 definitive Proxy Statement.

PART IV
Item 15: EXHIBITS AND FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES
(aj (1) Financial Statements - The following financial statements are included by reference in Part II, Item 8 hereof:

Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm.
Consolidated Balance Sheets.

Consolidated Statements of Income.

Consolidated Statements of Changes in Shareholders’ Equity.
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements,

(2) Financial Statement Schedules

Financial Statement Schedules are omitted because the required information is either not applicable, the data is not
significant or the required information is shown in the respective financial statements or in the notes thereto or
elsewhere herein.

(3) Exhibits
The following exhibits are filed herewith or incorporated by reference as a part of this Form 10-K:
3(i) Amended and Restated Articles of Incorporation of Registrant. Incorporated by reference to Annex B of
the Proxy Statement/Prospectus included in Registrant’s Amendment 4 to its Registration Statement No, 333-

90273 on Form S-4, filed with the SEC on April 6, 2000.

3(ii) Amended and Restated Bylaws of Registrant, Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3(ii) to Registrant’s
Form 8-K filed with the SEC on November 21, 2007.

*10.1 1998 Independent Directors Stock Option Plan of The Fidelity Deposit and Discount Bank, as assumed
by Registrant. Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to Registrant’s Regisiration Statement No. 333-90273
on Form S-4, filed with the SEC on November 3, 1599.

*10.2 1998 Stock Incentive Plan of The Fidelity Deposit and Discount Bank, as assumed by Registrant.

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 of Registrant’s Registration Statement No. 333-90273 on Form 5-4,
filed with the SEC on November 3, 1999,
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*10.3 Form of Deferred Compensation Plan of The Fidelity Deposit and Discount Bank. Incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.3 to Registrant’s Registration Statement No. 333-45668 on Form $-1, filed with the SEC
on September 12, 2000.

*10.4 Registrant’s 2000 Dividend Reinvestment Plan. Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4 to Registrant’s
Registration Statement No. 333-45668 on Form S-1, filed with the SEC on September 12, 2000 and as amended
by Pre-Effective Amendment No. 1 on October 11, 2000, by Post-Effective Amendment No. 1 on May 30, 2001
and by Post-Effective Amendment No. 2 on July 7, 2005.

*10.5 Registrant’s 2000 Independent Directors Stock Option Plan. Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.3 to
Registrant’s Registration Statement No. 333-64356 on Form S-8 filed with the SEC on July 2, 2001.

*10.6 Amendment, dated October 2, 2007, to the Registrant’s 2000 Independent Directors Stock Option Plan.
Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to Registrant’s Form 8-K filed with the SEC on October 4, 2007.

*10.7 Registrant’s 2000 Stock Incentive Plan. Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.4 to Registrant’s
Registration Statement No. 333-64356 on Form S-8 filed with the SEC on July 2, 2001.

*10.8 Amendment, dated October 2, 2007, to the Registrant’s 2000 Stock Incentive Plan. Incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.1 to Registrant’s Form 8-K filed with the SEC on October 4, 2007,

*10.9 Registrant’s 2002 Employee Stock Purchase Plan. Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.5 to
Registrant’s Registration Statement No. 333-113339 on Form S-8 filed with the SEC on March 5, 2004.

*10.10 Employment Agreement between Fidelity D & D Bancorp, Inc., The Fidelity Deposit and Discount
Bank and Steven C. Ackmann, dated June 21, 2004. Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 99.1 to Registrant’s
Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the SEC on June 24, 2004.

*10.11 Complete Settlement Agreement and General Release between Michael F. Marranca, Registrant and
The Fidelity Deposit and Discount Bank, dated July 30, 2004. Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 99.1 to
Registrant’s Current Report on Form &-K filed with the SEC on August 10, 2004,

*10.12 Change of Control and Severance Agreement between James T. Gorman, Registrant and The Fidelity
Depaosit and Discount Bank, dated September 19, 2005. Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 99.1 to
Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the SEC on September 22, 2005.

*10.13 Amendment and Termination of the Deferred Compensation Agreement with Joseph J. Earyes,
Daniel Santaniello, Registrant and The Fidelity Deposit and Discount Bank, dated November 1, 2005.
Incorporated by reference to Exhibits 99.1 and 99.2 to Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the
SEC on November 3, 2005,

*10.14 Amendment to the Complete Settlement Agreement and General Release between Michael F.
Marranca, Registrant and The Fidelity Deposit and Discount Bank, dated November 4, 2005, Incorporated
by reference to Exhibit 99.1 to Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the SEC on November 9,
2005.

*10.15 Change of Control Agreements with Daniel J. Santaniello, Salvatore R. DeFrancesco, James T.
Gorman, Registrant and The Fidelity Deposit and Discount Bank, dated March 21, 2006. Incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 99.1, 99.2 and 99.3, respectively, to Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the
SEC on March 27, 2006.

*10.16 Amended and Restated Executive Employment Agreement between Fidelity D & D Bancorp, Inc., The
Fidelity Deposit and Discount Bank and Steven C. Ackmann, dated July 11, 2607. Incorporated by reference
to Exhibit 10.1 to Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K fited with the SEC on July 13, 2007.

*10.17 Executive Employment Agreement between Fidelity D & D Bancorp, Inc., The Fidelity Deposit and

Discount Bank and Timothy P. O’Brien, dated January 3, 2008, Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to
Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the SEC on January 10, 2008.
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{b)
{c)

*10.18 Executive Employment Agreement between Fidelity D & D Bancorp, Inc., The Fidelity Deposit and
Discount Bank and Daniel J. Santaniello, dated February 28, 2008. Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1
to Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the SEC on March 3, 2008.

11 Statement regarding computation of earnings per share. Included herein in Note 13 “Earnings per Share,”
contained within the notes to consolidated financial statements, and incorporated herein by reference.

12 Statement regarding computation of ratios. Included herein in Item 6, “Selected Financial Data.”

13 Annual Report to Shareholders. Incorporated by reference to the 2007 Annual Report to Shareholders filed
with the SEC on Form ARS.

14 Code of Ethics. Incorporated by reference to the 2003 Annual Report to Shareholders on Form 10-K filed
with the SEC on March 29, 2004.

21 Subsidiaries of the Registrant.

23 Consent of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm.

31.1 Rule 13a-14(a) Certification ofPrincipal Executive Officer, filed herewith.
31.2 Rule 13a-14(a) Certification of Principal Financial Officer, filed herewith.

32.1 Certification of Principal Executive Officer pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to
Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, filed herewith.

32.2 Certification of Principal Financial Officer pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to
Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, filed herewith.

The exhibits required to be filed by this Item are listed under Item 15(a) 3, above.

Not applicable.

* Management contract or compensatory plan or arrangement.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities and Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has duly
caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized.

FIDELITY D & D BANCORP, INC.
(Registrant)

Date: March 12, 2008 By: /s/ STEVEN C. ACKMANN
Steven C. Ackmann,
President and Chief Executive Qfficer

Date: March 12, 2008 By: /s/ SALVATORE R. DEFRANCESCO, JR.
Salvatore R. DeFrancesco, Jr.,
Treasurer and Chief Financial Officer

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities and Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been signed below by the following
person on behalf of the registrant and in the capacities and on the dates indicated.
|

DATE
By: /s/ STEVEN C. ACKMANN March 12, 2008

Steven C. Ackmann, President and
Chief Executive Officer

By: /s/ SALVATORE R. DEFRANCESCO, JR. March 12, 2008
Salvatore R. DeFrancesco, Jr., Treasurer
and Chief Financial Officer

By: /s/ SAMUEL C. CALI March 12, 2008
Samuel C. Cali, Chairman Emeritus
and Director

By: /s/ PATRICK J. DEMPSEY March 12, 2008
Patrick J. Dempsey, Chairman
of the Board of Directors and Director

By: /s/ JOHN T. COGNETTI March 12, 2008
John T. Cognetti, Assistant Secretary
and Director

By: /s/ MICHAEL J. MCDONALD March 12, 2008
Michael J. McDonald, Vice Chairman
of the Board of Directors and Director

By: /s/ DAVID L. TRESSLER March 12, 2008
David L, Tressler, Director

By: /s MARY E. MCDONALD March i2, 2008
Mary E. McDonald, Director

By: /s/ BRlan J. CALI March 12, 2008
Brian I. Cali, Director
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EXHIBIT INDEX

3(i) Amended and Restated Articles of Incorporation of Registrant. Incorporated by reference to Annex B of the
Proxy Statement/Prospectus included in Registrant’s Amendment 4 to its Registration Statement No. 333-90273 on
Form 5-4, filed with the SEC on April 6, 2000.

3(ii) Amended and Restated Bylaws of Registrant. Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3(ii) to Registrant’s Form 8-
K filed with the SEC on November 21, 2007,

10.1 1998 Independent Directors Stock Option Plan of The Fidelity Deposit and Discount Bank, as assumed by
Registrant. Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to Registrant’s Registration Statement No. 333-90273 on Form
S-4, filed with the SEC on November 3, 1999.

10.2 1998 Stock Incentive Plan of The Fidelity Deposit and Discount Bank, as assumed by Registrant. incorporated
by reference to Exhibit 10.2 of Registrant’s Registration Statement No. 333-90273 on Form S-4, filed with the SEC on
November 3, 1999,

10.3 Form of Deferred Compensation Plan of The Fidelity Deposit and Discount Bank. Incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.3 to Registrant’s Registration Statement No, 333-45668 on Form S-1, filed with the SEC on September 12,
2000.

10.4 Registrant’s 2000 Dividend Reinvestment Plan. Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4 to Registrant’s
Registration Statement No. 333-45668 on Form S-1, filed with the SEC on September 12, 2000 and as amended by
Pre-Effective Amendment No. 1 on October 11, 2000, by Post-Effective Amendment No. | on May 30, 2001 and by
Post-Effective Amendment No. 2 on July 7, 2005.

10.5 Registrant’s 2000 Independent Directors Stock Option Plan. Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.3 to
Registrant’s Registration Statement No. 333-64356 on Form S-8 filed with the SEC on July 2, 2001.

10.6 Amendment, dated October 2, 2007, to the Registrant’s 2000 Independent Directors Stock Option Plan.
incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to Registrant’s Form 8-K filed with the SEC on October 4, 2007.

10.7 Registrant’s 2000 Stock Incentive Plan. Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.4 to Registrant’s Registration
Statement No. 333-64356 on Form S-8 filed with the SEC on July 2, 2001.

10.8 Amendment, dated October 2, 2007, to the Registrant’s 2000 Stock Incentive Plan. Incorporated by reference
to Exhibit 10.1 to Registrant’s Form 8-K filed with the SEC on October 4, 2007.

10.9 Registrant’s 2002 Employee Stock Purchase Plan. Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.5 to Registrant’s
Registration Statement No. 333-113339 on Form S-8 filed with the SEC on March 5, 2004,

10.10 Employment Agreement between Fidelity D & D Bancorp, Inc., The Fidelity Deposit and Discount Bank and
Steven C. Ackmann, dated June 21, 2004. Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 99.1 to Registrant’s Current Report on
Form &-K filed with the SEC on June 24, 2004.

10.11 Complete Settlement Agreement and General Release between Michael F. Marranca, Registrant and The
Fidelity Deposit and Discount Bank, dated July 30, 2004. Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 99.1 to Registrant’s
Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the SEC on August 10, 2004,

10.12 Change of Control and Severance Agreement between James T. Gorman, Registrant and the Fidelity Deposit

and Discount Bank, dated September 19, 2005. Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 99.1 to Registrant’s Current
Report on Form 8-K filed with the SEC on September 22, 2005.
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10.13 Amendment and Termination of the Deferred Compensation Agreement with Joseph J. Earves, Daniel
Santaniello, Registrant and The Fidelity Deposit and Discount Bank, dated November 1, 2005, Incorporated by
reference to Exhibits 99.1 and 99.2 to Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the SEC on November 3,
2005.

10.14 Amendment to the Complete Settlement Agreement and General Release between Michael F. Marranca,

Registrant and The Fidelity Deposit and Discount Bank, dated November 4, 2005. Incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 99.1 to Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the SEC on November 9, 2005.

10.15 Change of Control Agreements with Daniel J. Santaniello, Salvatore R. DeFrancesco, James T. Gorman,
Registrant and The Fidelity Deposit and Discount Bank, dated March 21, 2006. Incorporated by reference to Exhibit
99.1, 99.2 and 99.3, respectively, to Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the SEC on March 27, 2006,
10.16 Amended and Restated Executive Employment Agreement between Fidelity D & D Bancorp, Inc., The
Fidelity Deposit and Discount Bank and Steven C. Ackmann, dated July 11, 2007. Incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.1 to Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the SEC on July 13, 2007.

10,17 Executive Employment Agreement between Fidelity D & D Bancorp, Inc., The Fidelity Deposit and Discount
Bank and Timothy P. O'Brien, dated January 3, 2008. Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.] to Registrant’s
Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the SEC on January 10, 2008.

10.18 Executive Employment Agreement between Fidelity D & D Bancorp, Inc., The Fidelity Deposit and Discount
Bank and Daniel J. Santaniello, dated February 28, 2008. Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to Registrant’s
Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the SEC on March 3, 2008,

11 Statement regarding computation of earnings per share. Included herein Note 13, “Earnings per Share,”
contained within the Notes to Consolidated Financial Siatements, and incorporated herein by reference.

12 Statement regarding computation of ratios. Included herein in Item 6, “Selected Financial Data”,

13 Annual Report to Shareholders. Incorporated by reference to the 2007 Annual Report to Shareholders filed with
the SEC on Form ARS.

14 Code of Ethics. Incorporated by reference to the 2003 Annual Report to Shareholders on Form 10-K filed with the
SEC on March 29, 2004.

21 Subsidiaries of the Registrant.

23 Consent of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm.
31.1 Rule 13a-14(a} Certification of Principal Executive Officer,
31.2 Rule 13a-14(a) Certification of Principal Financial Officer.

32.1 Certification of Principal Executive Officer pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to
Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002,

32.2 Certification of Principal Financial Officer pursuant to 18 US.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to
Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002,

*Incorporated by Reference
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Exhibit 21

Subsidiaries of the Registrant

Subsidiary State of Incorporation
The Fidelity Deposit and Discount Bank _ Pennsylvania
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Exhibit 23

PARENTERANDOLPH
7;;-/?&/:/_ feos

Consent of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

We hereby consent to the incorporation by reference in Fidelity D & D Bancorp, Inc.’s Annual Report on Form 10-K filed
with the Securities and Exchange Commission of our report dated March 12, 2008 relating to the consolidated financial
statements of Fidelity D & D Bancorp, Inc. and Subsidiary as of December 31, 2007 and 2006, and for each of the years in
the three-year period ended December 31, 2007, which report appears in the Registrant’s Annual Report to Shareholders for
the year ended December 31, 2007. .

@JM} L4C

Scranton, Pennsylvania
March 12, 2008
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Exhibit 31.1

CERTIFICATION
I, Steven C. Ackmann, certify that:
1. [ have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K of Fidelity D & D Bancorp, Inc.;
2. Based on my knowledge, this annual report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit

to state a material fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements
were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this annual report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this annual
report, fairly present in all material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as
of, and for, the periods presented in this annual report;

4. The registrant’s other certifying officer and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure
controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(¢) and 15d-15{(e})} and internal control over financial
reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:

{a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures or caused such disclosure controls and
procedures to be designed under our supervision to ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its
consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities, particularly during the period in which this
annual report is being prepared;

(b) Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such control over financial
reporting to be designed under our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting
and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;

{c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in
this report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosures and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by
this report based on such evaluation; and

{d) Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that
occurred during the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter that has materially affected , or is reasonably likely to materially affect,
the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting; and

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of
internal control over financial reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of registrant’s board of directors
{or persons performing the equivalent functions);

(a) All significant deficiencies and material weakness in the design or operation of internal control
over financial reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize
and report financial information; and

(b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees, who have a
significant role in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting.

Date: March 12, 2008 By: /s/ STEVEN C. ACKMANN
Steven C. Ackmann,
President and Chief Executive Officer
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Exhibit 31.2
CERTIFICATION
I, Salvatore R. DeFrancesco, Ir., certify that:
I. [ have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K of Fidelity D & D Bancorp, Inc.;

2. Based on my knowledge, this annual report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit
to state a material fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements
were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this annual report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this annual
report, fairly present in all materiai respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as
of, and for, the periods presented in this annual report;

4, The registrant’s other certifying officer and [ are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure
controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(¢)) and internal controi over financial
reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:

(a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures or caused such disclosure controls and
procedures to be designed under our supervision to ensure that material information relating to the registrant, inctuding its
consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities, particularly during the pericd in which this
annual report is being prepared;

(b) Destgned such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such control over financial
reporting to be designed under our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting
and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;

(c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in
this report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosures and procedures, as of the end of the petiod covered by
this annual report based on such evaluation; and

(d) Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that
occurred during the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter that has materially affected , or is reasonably likely to materially affect,
the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting; and

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of
internal control over financial reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of registrant’s board of directors
(or persons performing the equivalent functions);

(a) All significant deficiencies and material weakness in the design or operation of internal control
over financial reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize
and report financial information; and

(b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees, who have a
significant role in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting.

Date: March 12, 2008 By:/s/ SALVATORE R. DEFRANCESCQ, JR.
Salvatore R. DeFrancesco, Jr.
Treasurer and Chief Financial Officer

85




Exhibit 32.1

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350
AS ADDED BY
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Annual Report on Form 10-K of Fidelity D & D Bancorp, Inc. (the “Company”) for the year
ended December 31, 2007, as filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission (the “Report™), I, Steven C. Ackmann,
President and Chief Executive Officer of the Company, certify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. §1350, as added by § 906 of the
Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that:

1. The Report fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of
1934; and

2. To my knowledge, the information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial
condition and results of operations of the Company as of and for the period covered by the Report.

Date: March i2, 2008 By: /s/ STEVEN C. ACKMANN
Steven C. Ackmann,
President and Chief Executive Officer
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Exhibit 32.2

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350
AS ADDED BY
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Annual Report on Form 10-K of Fidelity D & D Bancorp, Inc. (the “Company™) for the year
ended December 3, 2007, as filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission (the “Report™), I, Salvatore R.
DeFrancesco, Ir., Treasurer and Chief Financial Officer of the Company, certify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. §1350, as added by §
906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that:

1. The Report fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of
1934; and

2. To my knowledge, the information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial
condition and results of operations of the Company as of and for the period covered by the Report.

Date: March 12, 2008 By:/s/ SALVATORE R. DEFRANCESCQ, JR.
Salvatore R. DeFrancesco, Jr.
Treasurer and Chief Financial Officer
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TIrn Mernorian...

Mr. Paul A. Barrett
1933-2007

Mr. Barrett served as Secretary of the Board of
Directors. He was a principal shareholder with the
law firm of O'Malley, Harris, Durkin and Perry,
P.C. He joined the Bank Board in 1988 and the
Company Board in 1999,

“Paul exemplified the qualities needed in a first
class director; he was smart, inquisitive,
engaged, and asked the hard questions, Yet, all
of these qualities came from a gentleman with a
quick wit and a open smile. Paul was a joy to
work with and we miss him greatly”.

- Steven C, Ackmann
President & Chief Executive Officer




Products and Services

CONSUMER DEPOSIT PRODUCTS

Choice Banking

Money Market Accounts
Optimum Chaoice Savings
Statement Savings Accounts
Scholar Savings Accounts
Fixed Rate or Variable Rate
IRA Certificates of Depasit

» Christmas and All Purpose Club Accounts

» Certificates of Deposit

CONSUMER ELECTRONIC

SERVICES

s Courtesy Coverage

» Fidelity At Work Program (Offered to
businesses for their employees)

= Direct Deposit Services

ATM Services:

- Fidelity Check Card

Telephone Link

On-Line Banking

Web Bill Pay

EZ Statement

CONSUMER LOAN PRODUCTS
® Home Equity Loans

« Home Equity Line of Credit
» Mortgage Loans

u Construction Mortgages

= Autc Loans

= Installment Loans

s Student Loans

s Preferred Lines of Credit

BUSINESS LOAN PRODUCTS
Commercial Loans

Equipment Loans

Lines of Credit

Municipal Loans

Community Development Loans
Commercial/Equipment Leasing
Commercial Morigages

Letters of Credit

SPECIAL BUSINESS
LOAN PROGRAMS

= SBA Loan Programs

= PEDFA Loans

s FHLB - BOB Program

BUSINESS ELECTRONIC
SERVICES

= Cash Manager

s Telephone Link

= On-Line Banking

» MasterCard/Visa

Merchant Processing

ACH Origination Processing

m Business Check Card

= Remote Deposit

BUSINESS DEPOSIT
PRODUCTS AND SERVICES
» Business Freedom Checking

w Business NOW Accounts

Corporate Checking

Fidelity Visa Business Check Card
Savings Accounts

Certificates of Deposit

Sweep Accounts

Fidelity At Work Program

Fidelity Muni Choice

Business Money Market Deposit Accounts

INVESTMENT SERVICES*
Retirement Planning

College Funding

Estate Planning

Life Insurance

Annuities

Mutual Funds

Stocks & Bonds

TRUST SERVICES
= Corporate Trust Services

- Bond Trustee

- Paying Agent

- Institutional Money Management
= Personal Trust
- Revocable and Irrevocable Trusts
Charitable Trusts
Special Needs Trusts
Testamentary Trusts
Estate Settlement & Services
Endowments
Guardianships

ADDITIONAL BANK SERVICES
s Acceptance of County Real Estate Taxes
= Acceptance of Tax Payments

for Business
= Series “EE” and "I" U.S. Savings Bonds
Travelers Checks, Money Orders,
Certified Checks, and Cashier Checks
Wire Transfer Services
Safe Deposit Services
ACH Services
Direct Depaosit Services

Nat £DIC insured. Na Bank Guarantee. May Lose Value. LEvpeR FDlC

LENDER — — T

oy

DEPrOSIT & DISCOUNT Member FIRE

END

800.388.4380 | WWW.BANKATFIDELITY.COM

This Annual Report may contain forward-looking statements as defined in the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995, Actual results and trends could
differ materially from those ser forth in such statements due to various factors. These factors include the possibility that increased demand or prices for the
company's financial services and products may not occur, ¢hanging economic, interest rate and competitive conditions, technological developments and other
vicbe and unrcectainnies. including those detailed in the company's filings with the Securities and Exchange Commission,




